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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 
NOTICE is hereby given that the Twenty-Third Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) of the Members 
of GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED (‘the Company’) will be held on Wednesday, 26th August 2020, 
at 11 a.m. through the medium of Video Conferencing (VC) to transact the following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements and Audited 

Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2020, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 
 

2. To declare final Dividend on Equity Shares @ Rs. 1,000 (Rupees Thousand only) per Equity 
Share for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020. 

 
3. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Nyrika Holkar (DIN: 07040425), who retires by rotation 

and, being eligible, offers herself for re- appointment.  
 
4. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. A.G. Verma (DIN: 02366334), who retires by rotation 

and, being eligible, offers himself for re- appointment.  
 

 
NOTES:  

 
a) In view of the continuing restrictions on the movement of people at several places in the 

country, due to outbreak of COVID-19, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has, vide its 
General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020 read with General Circular No. 14/2020 
dated 8th April, 2020, allowed the companies to conduct the AGM through Video 
Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) during the calendar year 2020. In 
accordance with the said circulars of MCA and applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 (‘the Act’), the 23rd AGM of the Company shall be conducted through VC.  

b) Video Conferencing via Microsoft Teams: 
 
 The VC link to join and participate in the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) is sent to you 

through the email.   

 The VC facility to join the AGM shall open 15 minutes prior to the time scheduled for the 
Meeting. 

 Please follow the steps mentioned below to join and participate in the AGM of the 
Company: 

1. Click on the link provided in the email sent to you. 
2. Those Members who do not have the Microsoft Teams App downloaded on their 

laptops/ mobile devices can join the Meeting as a Guest via Web. 
3. Further, Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good 

speed to avoid any disturbance during the Meeting. 
4. For any assistance in joining/ participating through Video Conferencing please 

contact: 
a. Mr. Ajay R. Pimparkar, Chief Executive Officer at arp@godrej.com or  
b. Mr. Anil Sidhwani, Head – Finance, Accounts & Compliances at 

sidhwani@godrej.com  
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c) Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC, physical 
attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment 
of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form, 
Attendance Slip and Route Map are not annexed to this Notice. 

d) In case of joint holders attending the AGM, only such joint holder who is higher in the order 
of names will be entitled to vote at the AGM. 
 

e) The Dividend on Equity Shares, as recommended by the Board of Directors, if declared at 
the AGM, will be paid as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, to the Members 
whose name appear on the Company’s Register of Members on 3rd August 2020. 

f) Attendance of the Members through the medium of VC will be counted for the purpose of 
Quorum under Section  103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

g) Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to your name, postal 
address, e-mail address, telephone / mobile numbers, bank details including change in bank 
account number, IFSC Code, MICR Code, name of bank and branch details, to your 
respective Depository Participant(s) (DPs) in case the shares are held by you in electronic 
form and to Mr. Ajay R. Pimparkar, Chief Executive Officer at arp@godrej.com in case the 
shares are held by you in physical form. 

 
h) Corporate Member intending to appoint its Authorized Representative(s) to attend the AGM, 

pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, is requested to send a scanned 
certified true copy of the Board Resolution with attested specimen signature of the duly 
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to attend and vote on their behalf at the AGM 
at sidhwani@godrej.com and a copy marked to purav@godrej.com .   

 
i) Brief Resume of Directors proposed to be re-appointed, as stipulated in Secretarial 

Standards as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, is provided after this 
Notice. 

 
j) Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are available for inspection 

online during office hours on all days except Sundays and public holidays, up to the date of 
the AGM, electronically with the Mr. Ajay R. Pimparkar, Chief Executive Officer of the 
Company. 

 
k) If a poll is demanded by any Member, all the Members shall cast their votes on the 

Resolutions by sending an email to Mr. Ajay R. Pimparkar, Chief Executive Officer of the 
Company arp@godrej.com only from their email addresses registered with the Company. 
If it is envisaged that the process of counting votes will take longer than expected, the 
Meeting may be adjourned and called later to declare the result of the Poll. 

 
l) The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from 1st 

August 2020 to 3rd August 2020 (both days inclusive). 
 

m) Members may please note that in terms of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, any 
dividend which has not been paid or claimed within thirty days from the date of declaration, 
shall be transferred within seven days from the date of expiry of the said period of thirty 
days to the Unpaid Dividend Account with a scheduled bank. Any money transferred to the 
Unpaid Dividend Account which remains unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years 
from the date of such transfer, shall be transferred by the Company to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) set up by the Government of India under Section 
125 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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n) Dispatch of Annual Report through Electronic Mode: 
 

The Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report is being sent to the Members only 
through electronic mode at the email addresses registered with the Company. 
 
Members may also note that the Notice and Annual Report 2019-20 will also be available 
on the Company’s website which is as under: 
 
https://www.godrejinfotech.com/assets/pdf/statutoryReport/AnnualReport-2019-20.pdf   
   

o) Any Member seeking any information is requested to write to the Company at least a week 
before the date of AGM through email on arp@godrej.com. The same will be replied by the 
Company suitably. 
 

p) The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company. 
 

 
 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
 

                
 
       Sd/-      

K.A. PALIA 
                             Chairman 
        DIN: 00281971 
 
Mumbai, 3rd August 2020 
 
Registered Office:  
Pirojshanagar, L.B.S. Marg,                                       
Vikhroli, Mumbai 400 079  
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Pursuant to the Secretarial Standards issued by ‘The Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India’, the following information is furnished about the Directors proposed to be re-

appointed: 

Brief Resume of the Directors 

Name of the Director Mrs. Nyrika Holkar  
 (DIN 07040425) 

Mr. A.G. Verma 
(DIN 02366334) Particulars 

Age 38 Years  63 Years 

Nationality Indian  Indian 

Date of Appointment 14-07-2017 26-02-2014 

Shares held in the 
Company 

465 shares Nil 

Qualification Graduated with an International 
Baccalaureate degree from the 
United World College of the 
Adriatic, Italy, holds a Bachelor’s 
Degree in Philosophy and 
Economics from Colorado 
College, an LL.B and an LL.M 
degree in law from University 
College London. She qualified as 
Solicitor from the United Kingdom 
and holds a Diploma from 
Harvard Business School in 
General Management Program. 

Graduate in Engineering from the 
Indian Institute of Technology, 
BHU.  
 
MBA from the Indian Institute of 
Management, Ahmedabad.    
 
Executive course from the Sloan 
School of Management, M.I.T., 
USA. 

Expertise/ 
Experience in 
specific functional 
area 

Business, Legal and 
Management expertise 

Over 35 years of experience 
including leadership roles in 
Sales,Marketing,Manufacturing, 
Human Resources and Strategic 
Business Units with PNL 
responsibilities. Currently working 
as the ED and President of Godrej 
& Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd.  

Terms & 
Conditions of re- 
appointment/ 
variation of 
remuneration 

Appointment as a Non- 
Executive Director subject 
to retirement by rotation 

Appointment as a Non- 
Executive Director subject 
to retirement by rotation 

Remuneration last 
drawn/sought to be 
paid 

Nil Nil 
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Directorships held in 
other 
companies 

Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 
Mukteshwar Reality Pvt. Ltd. 
Umoja Travels Pvt. Ltd. 
Centre for Advancement of 
Philanthropy 
Jaldhaara Foundation 

Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 
Godrej Consoveyo Logistics 
Automation Ltd. 

Chairman/ 
Membership of 
committees of other 
Boards 

Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd.: 
Chairperson of Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee 

Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd.:  
Member of Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee  
 
Godrej Consoveyo Logistics 
Automation Ltd.: Chairman of 
Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee  

Inter-se relationship 
with other directors/ 
Key Managerial 
Personnel 

None None 

No. of Board meetings 
attended during the 
year 

4 (Four) 4 (Four) 
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BOARDS’ REPORT  

TO THE MEMBERS,  
  
The Directors hereby present the Twenty-Third Annual Report of the Company together with 
the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,2020.  
  
1.  FINANCIAL RESULTS (STANDALONE)  

  
  The Company's performance during the financial year ended 31st March 2020 as 

compared to the previous financial year, is summarized below:  
 

 
  
  
2. DIVIDEND 

The Board of Directors recommend payment of Rs. 1,000 per Equity Share as final dividend 
for the financial year 2019-20. The dividend declared for the financial year 2018-19 was 
Rs.1,000 per Equity Share.  

 
3.  STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS  
 

For the year under review, the Company generated total revenue from operations of Rs. 
122.90 crore (previous year: Rs. 122.05 crore), of which the exports accounted for Rs. 52.39 
crore (previous year: Rs. 56.08 crore), which is 43 % (previous year:46%) of total revenue. 
The Company earned profit before tax of Rs. 13.85 crore (previous year: Rs. 18.61 crore) 
and profit after tax of Rs. 10.09 crore (previous year: Rs. 12.87 crore).  

4.  EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN  

As required under Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Annual Return for the 
financial year 2018-19 can be accessed on the Company’s website at 
https://www.godrejinfotech.com/assets/pdf/statutoryReport/AnnualReturn-2018-19.pdf and 
the Extracts of the Annual Return in form MGT-9 for the year ended 31st March, 2020 can be 
accessed at https://www.godrejinfotech.com/assets/pdf/statutoryReport/AnnualReturn-
2019-20.pdf    

  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
2019-2020 2018-2019

(Rs.) (Rs.)

Revenue from Operations 12,290                       12,205                         
Other Income 184                            154                              
Total Revenue 12,474                       12,358                         
Less: Other Expenses 11,089                       10,497                         
Profit/(Loss) before Interest and Tax 1,385                         1,862                           
Less: Finance Cost -                             -                               
Profit /(Loss) before Tax 1,385                         1,862                           
Less: Tax Expenses 375                            575                              
Profit /(Loss) after Tax 1,009                         1,287                           
Add: Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (289)                           (106)                             
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 720                            1,181                           
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5. DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL  
 
The Board consists of Dr. K.A.Palia (DIN: 00281971), Mr. P.E.Fouzdar (DIN: 00066123), Mr. 
K.K.Dastur (DIN: 00050199), Mr. S.N.Irani (DIN: 00213862), Mr. R.D.Contractor (DIN: 
00011878), Mr. M.M.Parpia (DIN: 00118333), Mr. A.G.Verma (DIN: 02366334) and Mrs. 
Nyrika Holkar (DIN: 07040425).  
 
Pursuant to Section 152(6)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Articles of Association of 
the Company, Mrs. Nyrika Holkar (DIN: 07040425) and Mr. A.G.Verma (DIN: 02366334), will 
retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves 
for re- appointment.  
  
In terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, Mr. M.M.Parpia (DIN: 00118333) and Mr. K.K.Dastur 
(DIN: 00050199) have been appointed as Independent Directors of the Company, to hold 
office for a term of five consecutive years with effect from 11th September, 2018 till 11th 
September 2023, and they are not liable to retire by rotation. The Company has received 
declarations from all the Independent Directors confirming that they meet with criteria of 
independence as prescribed by Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and shall abide 
by the provisions of Code for Independent Directors. There has been no change in the 
circumstances affecting their status as Independent Directors of the Company.  
  
As required by Section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 all our Independent Directors have 
registered themselves in the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (‘the Institute’) databank. 
None of our Independent Directors are required to pass the online proficiency self-
assessment test conducted by the Institute, since both the Independent Directors of the 
Company have served as directors in listed companies or in an unlisted public company as 
prescribed.  
  
In the opinion of the Board, as per Rule 8(5)(iiia) of the Companies (Meetings of Board and 
its Powers) Rules, 2014, our both Independent Directors possess high standards of integrity, 
expertise and experience (including proficiency) which contribute to the advancement and 
progress of the Company.  
  
The specified Non-Executive Directors of the Company received Sitting fees in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.   
  
Mr. Ajay R. Pimparkar, Chief Executive Officer is the Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company as at the date of this report.  

  
6.  NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

 
The Board met four times during this financial year, viz. on 26th April 2019, 2nd August 2019, 
26th November 2019, and 16th March 2020.  

  
7.  DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT  

 
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors, based on the 
representations received from the Operating Management, after due enquiry, confirm that:   

  
a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020, 

the applicable accounting standards have been followed;  
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b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at 31st March, 2020 and of the profit 
and loss of the Company for the year ended on 31st March, 2020;  

  
c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities;  

  
d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;   

  
e) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of 

all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.  
  

8.  CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY  
 
The Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR’) Committee has been constituted in accordance 
with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and comprises of Mrs. Nyrika Holkar, 
Chairperson, Mr. P. E. Fouzdar, Mr. R. D. Contractor and Mr. K.K. Dastur.  
  
The CSR Committee met twice during the year under review, viz 26th November 2019 and 
16th March 2020.  
  
Based on the recommendation of the CSR Committee, the Board has approved the CSR 
Policy of the Company, including the CSR activities and the projects proposed to be 
undertaken by the Company, and its governance structure and the CSR Policy is placed on 
the website of the Company at 
https://www.godrejinfotech.com/assets/pdf/corporatePolicies/CSR.pdf    
  
The details required under the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 
2014 are given in the CSR Report, which is attached to this Report. (Annexure 2)  

  
9.  AUDIT COMMITTEE   

 

The Audit Committee has been constituted in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and comprises of Mr. M.M. Parpia, Chairman, Dr. K.A. Palia and Mr. 
K.K. Dastur. The Internal and Statutory Auditors are permanent invitees to the Meetings of 
the Audit Committee.  

The Audit Committee met four times during the year under review, viz 2nd May 2019, 2nd 

August 2019, 26th November 2019 and 16th March 2020.  

The Audit Committee had reviewed and recommended the Audited Standalone Financial 
Statements and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year 2019-
20, for further approval of the Board of Directors and adoption of the same by the Members 
of the Company.   
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10.  NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE  
 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) has been constituted by the Board of 
Directors of the Company in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and comprises of Mr. A.G. Verma, Chairman, Mr. M.M. Parpia and Mr. K.K. Dastur.  

The NRC met once during the year under review, viz 26th November 2019.      

11.  FIXED DEPOSITS FROM MEMBERS AND FROM PUBLIC  
 
During the financial year under review, the Company has neither accepted nor renewed any 
deposit(s) covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.  

  
12. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES  

 
All transactions entered into during the financial year 2019-20 with related parties as defined 
under the Companies Act, 2013, were in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length 
basis, details of which are given in the notes to the financial statements which have been 
disclosed under item 2 of Form AOC-2, pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014; the said Form AOC-2 is 
annexed to this Report as (Annexure 1).   
  
Since there have been no transactions entered into during the financial year 2019-20 with 
related parties which are not at arm’s length basis, disclosure under item 1 of Form AOC-2 
is not applicable.   

  
13.  PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENTS MADE, GUARANTEES PROVIDED AND LOANS 

GIVEN BY THE COMPANY  
 
The details of guarantees and investments as required by the provisions of Section 186 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder are set out in the Notes to the 
Financial Statements of the Company.  

  
14.  MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 

OF THE COMPANY  
 
There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of 
the Company, which have occurred between 31st March 2020 and the date of this Report.  
  

15. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS 
OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS  
 

The Directors would like to draw your attention to the Demand letters received during the 
year from Department of Telecommunication (DoT) by the Company amounting to Rs. 121 
crore. The brief details of the same are stated below: 

The Company was issued Internet Service Provider (ISP) license on 17th April 2001, which 
was further amended to ISP-Internet Telephony licence on 11th October 2002. The intent of 
obtaining the license was to provide Internet services to customers – though the primary 
business was to provide services related to Information Technology. The said license was 
with the Company till 7th September 2015 when it was submitted for cancellation.  
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During the financial year 2019-20, the Company has received Demand letters from 
Department of Telecommunication (DoT) amounting to Rs. 121 crore (including interest and 
penalty up to the date of respective letters) for year 2006-07 to 2013-14 (except 2007-08) by 
adding non-telecom revenue i.e., revenue related to Sale of ERP and its Implementation and 
Support charges as “Miscellaneous income” in Adjusted Gross Revenue (AGR). The 
Company has contested the demands before DoT and requested for their withdrawal, as the 
same are not payable in terms of ISP license agreements and accordingly not considered in 
accounts.  

In the light of recent judgment, dated 24.10.2019 of Hon’ble Supreme Court on the dispute 
between DoT and Telecom Service Operators (TSPs) regarding interpretation of AGR, DoT 
vide communication dated 05.12.2019 requested submission of a comprehensive 
representation since all the earlier demands are being re-examined in the light of  the Hon’ble 
Supreme Court’s Judgement.   

In the opinion of the management and based upon legal opinion received, the said judgement 
dated 24.10.2019 of Hon’ble Supreme Court is not applicable to the Company as the nature 
of license in case of telecom service providers is different and distinct from the licenses given 
to the Company.  

16.  INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS  
 
The Company has in place proper and adequate internal controls commensurate with the 
nature of its business and size of its operations. The financial statements are prepared on 
the basis of the significant accounting policies that are adopted by the management. The 
accounting policies are reviewed from time to time and updated as may be required. The 
Company recognizes that any internal control framework, no matter how well designed, 
requires regular audit and review processes to ensure that such systems are strengthened 
on an ongoing basis.  
  
The Company, through the independent Internal Audit Department of its Holding Company, 
Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Company Ltd., carries out periodic audits based on the 
annual audit plan. The Audit plan is approved by the Audit Committee which also reviews 
the compliance of the plan.   
  

17.  RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
The Board is of the opinion that there are no major risks affecting the existence of the 
Company. The Company has laid down procedures to inform the Board about the risk 
assessment and minimization procedures. These procedures are periodically reviewed to 
ensure that executive management controls risk through means of a properly defined 
framework. The Board and its executive management collectively identifies the risks 
impacting the Company's business and document their process of risk identification, risk 
minimization, risk optimization as a part of a risk management policy.  
   

18.  CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE            
EARNINGS AND OUTGO  
a. Conservation of Energy:  

  
i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:  

      Not Applicable  
  
ii) The steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy:  

     Not Applicable  
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iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipment:  
     Not Applicable  

  
b. Technology Absorption:  
  

i) The efforts made towards technology absorption and the benefits derived therefrom:  
     Not Applicable  

  
ii) The details of technology imported and its absorption:  

     Not Applicable  
  

iii) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development:    
 Not Applicable  

     
c. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo:  

  
The Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo during the financial year ended 31st March 
2020 is Rs. 52.39 crore (Previous Year: Rs. 56.08 crore) and Rs. 13.62 crore 
(Previous Year: Rs. (14.84 crore) respectively.  

  

19.  SUBSIDIARIES  
 
As on 31st March 2020, the Company has 3 subsidiary companies, viz. Godrej Infotech 
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd., LVD Godrej Infotech NV and Godrej Infotech Americas, Inc.  
  
Pursuant to the proviso to the Rule 6 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company 
is not required to consolidate its financial statements if the ultimate holding company 
consolidates the financial statements and files the same with the Registrar of Companies, 
however during the year under review, the Company has consolidated its financial 
statements on suo moto basis, and forms part of this Report. A statement containing the 
salient features of the financial statements of the Company’s Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures 
and Associates, in Form AOC-1 as required under Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 forms part of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, and provides 
details on the performance and financial position of each of the Subsidiaries, Associates and 
Joint Venture companies included in the Consolidated Financial Statements and therefore 
not repeated, to avoid duplication.  

  
20.  AUDITORS  

 
M/s. Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 
104607W/W100166) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 22nd 
Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) held on 2nd August, 2019 for a term of 5 consecutive years 
upto the 27th AGM to be held in 2024.  
  
The first proviso to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 which provided for the ratification 
of appointment of the Statutory Auditors by the Members at every AGM has been omitted by 
the Companies Amendment Act, 2017 w.e.f. 7th May 2018. Hence, the appointment of 
Statutory Auditors shall continue to be valid till the conclusion of the 5 consecutive AGMs 
and no ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditor is required at the ensuing AGM. Hence 
the Resolution to this item is not being included in the Notice to the AGM.  
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There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by M/s. 
Kalyaniwalla & Mistry, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 104607W/W100166), 
Mumbai, Statutory Auditors, in their Report for the Financial Year 2019-20.   
  

21.  SECRETARIAL STANDARDS  
 
The Board of Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the applicable 
Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ 
and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  

  
22.  FRAUD REPORTING  

 
There have been no instances of fraud reported by the Auditors under Section 143(12) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder either to the Company or to the 
Central Government.  

     
23.  PARTICULARS OF SPECIFIED EMPLOYEES  

 
Disclosures of details with respect to the remuneration of employees as required under Rule 
5 sub-rule (2) and (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, are separately enclosed with and form part of this Report as 
Annexure 3.  
  
The same is available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the 
Company during business hours on working days. If any Member is interested in obtaining a 
copy thereof, such Member may write to the Chief Executive Officer, whereupon a copy 
would be sent.  
  

24.  POLICY TO PREVENT SEXUAL HARRASSEMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE  
 
The Company is deeply committed to the creation and maintenance of an atmosphere where 
every employee is treated with dignity and respect and afforded equitable treatment. It strives 
to create conditions in which employees can work together without fear of sexual 
harassment, exploitation or intimidation. As per the requirements of the provisions of the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013 (“SHWW Act, 2013”), the Company has instituted a Policy on Prevention of Sexual 
Harassment at the Workplace (Policy) and under the purview of the same an Internal 
Complaints Committee (“the Committee”) has also been formed. Pursuant to the relevant 
provisions of the SHWW Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, as amended from time 
to time. The Committee has not received any complaint during the year. Accordingly, the 
Committee has filed a ‘Report’ on 15th July 2020, with the ‘Office of the Deputy Collector, 
Mumbai Suburban District’. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic lockdown, the Committee was 
unable to file this Report at an earlier date.  
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their unstinted commitment and continued contribution to the growth of the Company.  

  
  

  
For and on behalf of the Board of 
Directors   

  
  

        Sd/-       
K.A. PALIA   
Chairman  
DIN: 00281971          

Mumbai, 3rd August 2020  
Registered Office:  
Pirojshanagar, L.B.S. Marg, 
Vikhroli, Mumbai - 400 079. 
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ANNEXURE 1 
     

FORM NO AOC-2 
 

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014] 

 
Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company 
with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
including certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto: 

 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. 

 
SL. 

No. 

Particulars 
Details 

a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship 
Not Applicable 

 
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction 

Not Applicable 

c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions 
Not Applicable 

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 

transaction including the value, if any 
Not Applicable 

 
e) Justification for entering into such contracts or 

arrangements or transactions’ 
Not Applicable 

 
f) Date of approval by the Board 

Not Applicable 

g) Amount paid as advances, if any 
Not Applicable 

h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in 

General meeting as required under first proviso to 

section 188 

Not Applicable 

 

 
       2.    Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length 
basis. 
 

SL. 

No. 

Particulars 
Details 

a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. 

Ltd., Holding Company 

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Provision of Services 
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c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions 
1st April’19 to 31st 

March’20 

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 

transaction including the value, if any 
Provision of End to End 

IT Services 

e) Date of approval by the Board, if any 
Not Applicable 

 
f) Amount paid as advances, if any NIL 

 
 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  

 
 

        Sd/- 
             K.A. PALIA  
            Chairman 
                                       DIN: 00281971   
  
Mumbai, 3rd August 2020 
Registerd Office: 
Pirojshanagar, L.B.S. Marg, 
Vikhroli, Mumbai - 400 079. 
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ANNEXURE 2 

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities 

[as prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014] 

1. CSR Reporting Framework 

We, Godrej Infotech Ltd. (GITL), are happy to present to you our third CSR compliance 
report. The CSR project undertaken was in line with Godrej Group’s Good & Green goals 
and the areas of intervention specified in the Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. 

This annual report presents our approach towards our new initiative in the area of 
community development in line with our CSR philosophy, highlighting our commitment to 
our stakeholders. This report covers CSR committee, its role and responsibilities, 
taskforces and monitoring and review by them, project details including budgets and total 
spends. 

The project completed as below: 
 
1. Model School at the Zilla Parishad School at Shirwal & Khalapur was to improve the 

basic hygiene facilities and boost a learning environment through infrastructure and 
qualitative interventions. 
 

2. Certification course in Graphic Designing partnering with Don Bosco Technical 
Institute, Delhi for underprivileged youth who are unable to afford training in IT Skills. 
Providing them training in these skills would provide them opportunities for 
employment. 

 
2. Outline of CSR Policy 

a. Objective of CSR Reporting  

At GITL, our CSR policy applies to all activities that are undertaken as part of our Good & 
Green goals. In the year 2018, we have started community development initiatives around 
the area of operations in Maharashtra, as it is critical to build sustainable communities by 
addressing their needs in the area of livelihood, environment, health & sanitation and 
education that is aligned to Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. 

While this CSR policy is drafted as per the Godrej Groups’ Good and Green policy, it 
includes the CSR programs that meets the requirement of the CSR Rules as per Section 
135 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The GITL CSR Policy is available in the Company’s website:  
https://www.godrejinfotech.com/assets/pdf/corporatePolicies/CSR.pdf.  
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b. CSR Committee 

This Committee comprises of the following members:  
i. Mrs. Nyrika Holkar, Chairperson 
ii. Mr. P.E. Fouzdar 
iii. Mr. R.D. Contractor 
iv. Mr. K.K. Dastur 

 
The Chief Executive Officer of the Company serves as the Secretary of the 
Committee.  

 
c. Responsibilities  

i. Selecting the organization model for the CSR implementation: in-house versus 
outsourced and its legal entity (trust, society, Section 8 company etc) 

ii. Identifying the implementation model (grant making, direct project execution, 
etc) 

iii. Formalizing the job description, roles and responsibilities and reporting 
relationships for the Good & Green team, within itself and vis-à-vis the rest of 
the Company 

iv. Integrating budgeting, procurement, payments and reporting for CSR within the 
existing finance administration and IT systems 

v. Analyzing accounting systems and chart of accounts and making required 
changes to record all expenses appropriately 

vi. Establishing a method of allocation for the expenses (or assets created) that 
are partly for the CSR and partly for business or employee use 

vii. Ensuring quarterly progress reviews 
 

3. Task Forces 

Project specific task forces are constituted for implementation and monitoring of the CSR 
projects. The task forces would be responsible for carrying out day-to-day operations of 
CSR and will submit reports to the CSR Committee for the bi-annual review meetings.  

 
4. CSR Budget & Expenditures 

1. Average net profit of last 3 years: Rs. 13.79 crore  

2. Calculated 2% spend for the current financial year: Rs. 27.57 lakhs 

3. Amount spent during the current financial year: Rs. 27.65 lakhs  

4. Amount overspent of the recommended 2% budget, if any: Rs. 0.08 lakhs 
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5. Details of the expenditure incurred by GITL during FY 2019-20 

(Rs. in lakhs) 
Project Activity Sector in 

which the 
project is 
covered 

Local 
area  

Institut
e/ 
organiz
ation 
/person 
involve
d 

Amount 
outlay 
Project 
wise 

Amount 
spent 
on 
projects 

Total 
expenditur
e in the 
correspon
ding area 

Cumulati
ve 
expendit
ure upto 
the 
reporting 
period 

Amount 
spent 
directly 
or 
through 
the 
impleme
nting 
agency 

Audit 
proof 
available 

Support 
Education - 
Uplifting 
education,  
Sanitation & 
cleanliness in 
rural schools, 
career  
guidance, E- 
learning, 
Science lab, 
Activity based 
learning, Model 
school 
 

Promoting 
Education 

 

Shirwal 
(Satara) 
 

-- 10.00 9.83 9.83 9.83 9.83 Invoices 

Khalapur 
(Raigad) 
 

- 11.57 11.99 11.99 11.99 11.99 Invoices 

Enhancing 
Employability - 
Building 
employable 
skills to address 
talent needs of 
the industry and 
create earning 
opportunities for 
underprivileged 
youth Model 
school 

Promoting 
Education 

Delhi 
 

Don 
Bosco, 
Delhi 

 

6.00 5.83 5.83 5.83 5.83 Invoices  

Total    27.57 27.65 27.65 27.65 27.65  
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Schedule A: List of States & Cities 
 

 State presence 2 

 City presence 0 
 

Sr. 
No. 

State No of training 
centres 

Cities/town/district 

1 Maharashtra 2 Khalapur, Shirwal 

2 Delhi 1 Delhi  
Total 3   

 
Schedule B: Partners 

 
Sr. 
No. 

State No. of 
Partners 

Partners Name 

1 Maharashtra 0  

2 Delhi 1 Don Bosco Technical 
Institute, Delhi  

Total 1   
 

Responsibility Statement  

Through this report, Godrej Infotech Ltd. seeks to communicate its commitment towards CSR to 
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. The Board of the Company and the CSR Committee are 
responsible for the integrity and the objectivity of all the information provided in this report. In 
alignment with our Good & Green goals provided in our CSR Policy, all projects reported have 
been selected based on careful consideration of the extent to which they create sustainable 
outcomes in the communities around the area of operations. We have undertaken measures to 
ensure these projects are implemented in an effective and efficient manner so that they are able 
to deliver maximum impact. In line with the Companies Act, 2013, we have also instituted 
monitoring mechanisms to track the progress of projects and ensure their smooth implementation. 
The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in 
compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  
 

Godrej Infotech Limited 
 
 
 
Sd/-               Sd/-  
K.A. PALIA                                                   NYRIKA HOLKAR                                    
Chairman                                                     Chairperson of CSR Committee 

DIN: 00281971                                             DIN: 07040425 
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ANNEXURE 3 
 

Disclosures of details with respect to the remuneration of specified employees 

[Pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(2) and (3) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

Designation of the employee Chief Executive Officer 

Remuneration received 1,13,29,102 

Nature of employment, whether contractual or otherwise Permanent 

Qualifications and Experience of the employee BE-Mechanical 

32 years 

Date of commencement of employment 01-04-1999 

Age of such employee 54 years 

Last employment held by such employee before joining the 

company 

Godrej and Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 

(from 14-09-1988 to 31-03-

1999) 

Percentage of equity shares held by the employee in the 

company  

NIL 

Whether any such employee is a relative of any director or 

manager of the company and if so, name of such director or 

manager 

N.A. 
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5HSRUW�RQ�WKH�$XGLW�RI�WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG )LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV

2SLQLRQ

:H�KDYH�DXGLWHG�WKH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�&RQVROLGDWHG )LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�RI�*2'5(-�,1)27(&+�
/,0,7(' �³WKH�+ROGLQJ�&RPSDQ\´�� LWV�VXEVLGLDULHV �WKH�+ROGLQJ�&RPSDQ\�DQG�LWV�VXEVLGLDULHV�
FROOHFWLYHO\� UHIHUUHG� WR� DV� ³WKH�*URXS´� ZKLFK� FRPSULVH� WKH� &RQVROLGDWHG� %DODQFH� 6KHHW� DV� DW�
0DUFK ����������DQG�WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG�6WDWHPHQW�RI�3URILW�DQG�/RVV �LQFOXGLQJ�RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�
LQFRPH���WKH &RQVROLGDWHG�6WDWHPHQW�RI�&KDQJHV�LQ�(TXLW\ DQG�WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG�6WDWHPHQW�RI�&DVK�
)ORZV�IRU� WKH�\HDU� WKHQ�HQGHG��DQG�QRWHV� WR� WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�� LQFOXGLQJ�D�
VXPPDU\�RI�VLJQLILFDQW�DFFRXQWLQJ SROLFLHV�DQG�RWKHU�H[SODQDWRU\�LQIRUPDWLRQ �KHUHLQDIWHU�UHIHUUHG�
WR�DV�³&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV´��

,Q�RXU�RSLQLRQ�DQG�WR�WKH�EHVW�RI�RXU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�DFFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�H[SODQDWLRQV�JLYHQ�WR�XV DQG�
EDVHG�RQ�WKH�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�RI�UHSRUWV�RI�WKH�RWKHU�DXGLWRUV�RQ�WKH�VHSDUDWH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�
WKH�VXEVLGLDULHV�UHIHUUHG�WR�LQ�WKH�2WKHU�0DWWHUV�VHFWLRQ�EHORZ��WKH�DIRUHVDLG�&RQVROLGDWHG )LQDQFLDO�
6WDWHPHQWV�JLYH�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHTXLUHG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�$FW������³WKH�$FW´�� LQ�WKH�PDQQHU�VR�
UHTXLUHG� DQG� JLYH� D� WUXH� DQG� IDLU� YLHZ� LQ� FRQIRUPLW\�ZLWK� WKH� DFFRXQWLQJ� SULQFLSOHV JHQHUDOO\�
DFFHSWHG�LQ�,QGLD��RI�WKH FRQVROLGDWHG VWDWH�RI�DIIDLUV �ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ� RI�WKH�*URXS DV�DW�0DUFK�
����������RI FRQVROLGDWHG�SURILW���ILQDQFLDO�SHUIRUPDQFH�LQFOXGLQJ�RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH��
FRQVROLGDWHG FKDQJHV�LQ�HTXLW\� DQG�LWV�FRQVROLGDWHG�FDVK�IORZV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG RQ�WKDW�GDWH�

%DVLV�IRU�2SLQLRQ

:H� FRQGXFWHG� RXU� DXGLW� LQ� DFFRUGDQFH� ZLWK� WKH� 6WDQGDUGV� RQ� $XGLWLQJ� �6$V�� VSHFLILHG� XQGHU�
VHFWLRQ���������RI�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�$FW��������³WKH�$FW´���2XU�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�XQGHU�WKRVH�6WDQGDUGV�
DUH�IXUWKHU�GHVFULEHG�LQ�WKH�$XGLWRU¶V�5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV�IRU�WKH�$XGLW�RI�WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�
6WDWHPHQWV�VHFWLRQ�RI�RXU�UHSRUW��:H�DUH�LQGHSHQGHQW�RI�WKH�*URXS�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�HWKLFDO�
UHTXLUHPHQWV�WKDW�DUH�UHOHYDQW�WR�RXU�DXGLW�RI�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LQ�,QGLD�LQ�WHUPV�
RI�WKH�&RGH�RI�(WKLFV�LVVXHG�E\�,&$,�DQG�WKH�UHOHYDQW�SURYLVLRQV�RI�WKH�$FW��DQG�ZH�KDYH�IXOILOOHG�
RXU�RWKHU�HWKLFDO�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKHVH�UHTXLUHPHQWV��:H�EHOLHYH�WKDW�WKH�DXGLW�
HYLGHQFH�ZH�KDYH�REWDLQHG�LV�VXIILFLHQW�DQG�DSSURSULDWH�WR�SURYLGH�D�EDVLV�IRU�RXU�RSLQLRQ�

(PSKDVLV�RI�0DWWHU

:H�GUDZ�DWWHQWLRQ�WR�1RWH����%�WR�WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG )LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV��ZKHUHE\�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU��
WKH�+ROGLQJ�&RPSDQ\�KDV� UHFHLYHG�GHPDQG� OHWWHU� IURP� WKH�'HSDUWPHQW� RI�7HOHFRPPXQLFDWLRQ�
�'R7��DPRXQWLQJ�WR�5V�������� ODNKV�ZKHUHE\�'R7�KDV�FRQVLGHUHG�DV�³0LVFHOODQHRXV�LQFRPH´�WKH�
1RQ� ± 7HOHFRP�5HYHQXH� RI� WKH� +ROGLQJ� &RPSDQ\� L�H�� WKH� UHYHQXH� JHQHUDWHG� E\� WKH� +ROGLQJ�
&RPSDQ\�IURP�LWV�PDLQVWUHDP�EXVLQHVVHV�RI�LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ��FRQVXOWDQF\�DQG�VXSSRUW�VHUYLFHV�RI�
(53�VRIWZDUH�LQFOXGLQJ�WUDGLQJ�RI�VRIWZDUH�OLFHQVHV�DV�SDUW�RI�$GMXVWHG�*URVV�5HYHQXH��$*5����
7KH�+ROGLQJ�&RPSDQ\�KDV�FRQWHVWHG�WKH�GHPDQGV�EHIRUH�'R7�DQG�UHTXHVWHG�IRU�WKHLU�ZLWKGUDZDO��
DV� LQ� WKH� RSLQLRQ� RI� WKH� PDQDJHPHQW� WKH� VDPH� DUH� QRW� SD\DEOH� LQ� WHUPV� RI� LWV� ,63� /LFHQVH�
DJUHHPHQWV��

2XU�RSLQLRQ�LV�QRW�PRGLILHG�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�WKLV�PDWWHU�



2WKHU�,QIRUPDWLRQ�

7KH�+ROGLQJ�&RPSDQ\¶V�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV� LV� UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU� WKH�RWKHU� LQIRUPDWLRQ��7KH�RWKHU�
LQIRUPDWLRQ�FRPSULVHV�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�$QQXDO�5HSRUW��QDPHO\�'LUHFWRU¶V�5HSRUW�
LQFOXGLQJ�DQQH[XUHV�WR�'LUHFWRU¶V�5HSRUW��EXW�GRHV�QRW�LQFOXGH� WKH�)LQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�RXU�
DXGLWRU¶V�UHSRUW�WKHUHRQ��

2XU�RSLQLRQ�RQ�WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG )LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�GRHV�QRW�FRYHU�WKH�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�ZH�
GR QRW�H[SUHVV�DQ\�IRUP�RI�DVVXUDQFH�FRQFOXVLRQ�WKHUHRQ��

,Q�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�RXU�DXGLW�RI�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��RXU�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�LV�WR�UHDG�
WKH� RWKHU� LQIRUPDWLRQ� DQG�� LQ GRLQJ� VR�� FRQVLGHU� ZKHWKHU� WKH� RWKHU� LQIRUPDWLRQ� LV� PDWHULDOO\�
LQFRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RU�RXU�NQRZOHGJH�REWDLQHG�LQ�WKH�DXGLW��RU�
RWKHUZLVH� DSSHDUV� WR� EH� PDWHULDOO\� PLVVWDWHG�� ,I�� EDVHG� RQ� WKH� ZRUN� ZH� KDYH� SHUIRUPHG�� ZH�
FRQFOXGH�WKDW�WKHUH�LV�D�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW�RI�WKLV�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ��ZH�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�UHSRUW�
WKDW�IDFW� :H�KDYH�QRWKLQJ�WR�UHSRUW�LQ�WKLV�UHJDUG�

5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV�RI�0DQDJHPHQW DQG�7KRVH�&KDUJHG�ZLWK�*RYHUQDQFH IRU�WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG�
)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV

7KH�+ROGLQJ�&RPSDQ\¶V�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�WKH�PDWWHUV�VWDWHG�LQ�6HFWLRQ�������
RI�WKH�$FW�ZLWK�UHVSHFW�WR�SUHSDUDWLRQ�DQG�SUHVHQWDWLRQ�RI�WKHVH�&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�
LQ�WHUP�RI�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�$FW�WKDW�JLYH�D�WUXH�DQG�IDLU�YLHZ�RI�WKH FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�
SRVLWLRQ�� FRQVROLGDWHG� ILQDQFLDO� SHUIRUPDQFH� �LQFOXGLQJ� RWKHU� FRPSUHKHQVLYH� LQFRPH���
FRQVROLGDWHG� VWDWHPHQW� RI� FKDQJHV� LQ� HTXLW\� DQG� FRQVROLGDWHG� FDVK� IORZV� RI� WKH� *URXS LQ�
DFFRUGDQFH� ZLWK� WKH� DFFRXQWLQJ� SULQFLSOHV� JHQHUDOO\� DFFHSWHG� LQ� ,QGLD�� LQFOXGLQJ� WKH� ,QGLDQ�
$FFRXQWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV�VSHFLILHG�XQGHU�VHFWLRQ�����RI�WKH�$FW��7KH�UHVSHFWLYH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�RI�
WKH� FRPSDQLHV� LQFOXGHG� LQ� WKH� *URXS DUH� UHVSRQVLEOH� IRU�PDLQWHQDQFH� RI� DGHTXDWH� DFFRXQWLQJ�
UHFRUGV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�SURYLVLRQV�RI�WKH�$FW�IRU�VDIHJXDUGLQJ�WKH�DVVHWV�RI�WKH�*URXS�IRU�
SUHYHQWLQJ�DQG�GHWHFWLQJ�IUDXGV�DQG�RWKHU�LUUHJXODULWLHV��VHOHFWLRQ�DQG�DSSOLFDWLRQ�RI�DSSURSULDWH�
DFFRXQWLQJ� SROLFLHV��PDNLQJ� MXGJPHQWV� DQG� HVWLPDWHV� WKDW� DUH� UHDVRQDEOH� DQG� SUXGHQW�� DQG� WKH�
GHVLJQ�� LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ� DQG� PDLQWHQDQFH� RI� DGHTXDWH� LQWHUQDO� ILQDQFLDO� FRQWUROV�� WKDW� ZHUH�
RSHUDWLQJ�HIIHFWLYHO\�IRU�HQVXULQJ�DFFXUDF\�DQG�FRPSOHWHQHVV�RI�WKH�DFFRXQWLQJ�UHFRUGV��UHOHYDQW�
WR�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�DQG�SUHVHQWDWLRQ�RI�WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�WKDW�JLYH�D�WUXH�DQG�
IDLU�YLHZ�DQG�DUH�IUHH�IURP�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW��ZKHWKHU�GXH�WR�IUDXG�RU�HUURU��ZKLFK�KDYH�EHHQ�
XVHG�IRU�WKH�SXUSRVH�RI�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�E\�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�RI�
WKH�+ROGLQJ�&RPSDQ\��DV�DIRUHVDLG�

,Q� SUHSDULQJ� WKH� &RQVROLGDWHG� )LQDQFLDO� 6WDWHPHQWV�� WKH� UHVSHFWLYH� %RDUG� RI� 'LUHFWRUV� RI� WKH�
FRPSDQLHV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�*URXS DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�DVVHVVLQJ�WKH�DELOLW\�RI�WKH�*URXS�WR�FRQWLQXH�
DV�D�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ��GLVFORVLQJ��DV�DSSOLFDEOH��PDWWHUV�UHODWHG�WR�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�DQG�XVLQJ�WKH�JRLQJ�
FRQFHUQ�EDVLV�RI�DFFRXQWLQJ�XQOHVV�PDQDJHPHQW�HLWKHU�LQWHQGV�WR�OLTXLGDWH�WKH�*URXS�RU�WR�FHDVH�
RSHUDWLRQV��RU�KDV�QR�UHDOLVWLF�DOWHUQDWLYH�EXW�WR�GR�VR��

7KH� UHVSHFWLYH�%RDUG� RI�'LUHFWRUV� RI� WKH� FRPSDQLHV� LQFOXGHG� LQ� WKH�*URXS DUH� UHVSRQVLEOH� IRU�
RYHUVHHLQJ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�UHSRUWLQJ�SURFHVV�RI�WKH�*URXS�



$XGLWRU¶V�5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV�IRU�WKH�$XGLW�RI�WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV

2XU� REMHFWLYHV� DUH� WR� REWDLQ� UHDVRQDEOH� DVVXUDQFH� DERXW� ZKHWKHU� WKH &RQVROLGDWHG )LQDQFLDO�
6WDWHPHQWV�DV�D�ZKROH�DUH�IUHH�IURP�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW��ZKHWKHU�GXH�WR�IUDXG�RU�HUURU��DQG�WR�
LVVXH� DQ� DXGLWRU¶V� UHSRUW� WKDW� LQFOXGHV� RXU� RSLQLRQ�� 5HDVRQDEOH� DVVXUDQFH� LV� D� KLJK� OHYHO� RI�
DVVXUDQFH��EXW�LV�QRW�D�JXDUDQWHH�WKDW�DQ�DXGLW�FRQGXFWHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�6$V�ZLOO�DOZD\V�GHWHFW�
D� PDWHULDO� PLVVWDWHPHQW� ZKHQ� LW� H[LVWV�� 0LVVWDWHPHQWV� FDQ� DULVH� IURP� IUDXG� RU� HUURU� DQG� DUH�
FRQVLGHUHG�PDWHULDO� LI�� LQGLYLGXDOO\� RU� LQ� WKH� DJJUHJDWH�� WKH\� FRXOG� UHDVRQDEO\� EH� H[SHFWHG� WR�
LQIOXHQFH� WKH� HFRQRPLF� GHFLVLRQV� RI� XVHUV� WDNHQ� RQ� WKH� EDVLV� RI� WKHVH &RQVROLGDWHG )LQDQFLDO�
6WDWHPHQWV�

$V� SDUW� RI� DQ� DXGLW� LQ� DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK� 6$V�� ZH� H[HUFLVH� SURIHVVLRQDO� MXGJPHQW� DQG�PDLQWDLQ�
SURIHVVLRQDO�VNHSWLFLVP�WKURXJKRXW�WKH�DXGLW��:H�DOVR�

�D� ,GHQWLI\�DQG�DVVHVV�WKH�ULVNV�RI�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW�RI�WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG )LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV��
ZKHWKHU�GXH�WR�IUDXG�RU�HUURU��GHVLJQ�DQG�SHUIRUP�DXGLW�SURFHGXUHV�UHVSRQVLYH�WR�WKRVH�ULVNV��DQG�
REWDLQ�DXGLW�HYLGHQFH�WKDW�LV�VXIILFLHQW�DQG�DSSURSULDWH�WR�SURYLGH�D�EDVLV�IRU�RXU�RSLQLRQ��7KH�ULVN�
RI�QRW�GHWHFWLQJ�D�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW�UHVXOWLQJ�IURP�IUDXG�LV�KLJKHU�WKDQ�IRU�RQH�UHVXOWLQJ�IURP�
HUURU��DV� IUDXG�PD\� LQYROYH�FROOXVLRQ�� IRUJHU\�� LQWHQWLRQDO�RPLVVLRQV��PLVUHSUHVHQWDWLRQV��RU� WKH�
RYHUULGH�RI�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO��

�E� 2EWDLQ�DQ�XQGHUVWDQGLQJ�RI�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�UHOHYDQW�WR�WKH�DXGLW�LQ�RUGHU�WR�GHVLJQ�DXGLW�SURFHGXUHV�
WKDW� DUH� DSSURSULDWH� LQ� WKH� FLUFXPVWDQFHV�� 8QGHU� VHFWLRQ� �������L�� RI� WKH� $FW�� ZH� DUH� DOVR�
UHVSRQVLEOH� IRU� H[SUHVVLQJ� RXU� RSLQLRQ� RQ� ZKHWKHU� WKH +ROGLQJ� &RPSDQ\ DQG� LWV� VXEVLGLDU\�
FRPSDQ\�KDV�DGHTXDWH�LQWHUQDO�ILQDQFLDO�FRQWUROV�V\VWHP�LQ�SODFH�DQG�WKH�RSHUDWLQJ�HIIHFWLYHQHVV�
RI�VXFK�FRQWUROV�

�F� (YDOXDWH� WKH� DSSURSULDWHQHVV� RI� DFFRXQWLQJ� SROLFLHV� XVHG� DQG� WKH� UHDVRQDEOHQHVV� RI� DFFRXQWLQJ�
HVWLPDWHV�DQG�UHODWHG�GLVFORVXUHV�PDGH�E\�PDQDJHPHQW��

�G� &RQFOXGH�RQ�WKH�DSSURSULDWHQHVV�RI�PDQDJHPHQW¶V�XVH�RI�WKH�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�EDVLV�RI�DFFRXQWLQJ�
DQG��EDVHG�RQ�WKH�DXGLW�HYLGHQFH�REWDLQHG��ZKHWKHU�D�PDWHULDO�XQFHUWDLQW\�H[LVWV�UHODWHG�WR�HYHQWV�
RU�FRQGLWLRQV�WKDW�PD\�FDVW�VLJQLILFDQW�GRXEW�RQ�WKH DELOLW\�RI� WKH�*URXS WR�FRQWLQXH�DV�D�JRLQJ�
FRQFHUQ��,I�ZH�FRQFOXGH�WKDW�D�PDWHULDO�XQFHUWDLQW\�H[LVWV��ZH�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�GUDZ�DWWHQWLRQ�LQ�RXU�
DXGLWRU¶V� UHSRUW� WR� WKH� UHODWHG� GLVFORVXUHV� LQ� WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG )LQDQFLDO� 6WDWHPHQWV� RU�� LI� VXFK�
GLVFORVXUHV�DUH�LQDGHTXDWH��WR�PRGLI\�RXU�RSLQLRQ��2XU�FRQFOXVLRQV�DUH�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�DXGLW�HYLGHQFH�
REWDLQHG�XS�WR�WKH�GDWH�RI�RXU�DXGLWRU¶V�UHSRUW��+RZHYHU��IXWXUH�HYHQWV�RU�FRQGLWLRQV�PD\�FDXVH�WKH�
*URXS WR�FHDVH�WR�FRQWLQXH�DV�D�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ��

�H� (YDOXDWH�WKH�RYHUDOO�SUHVHQWDWLRQ��VWUXFWXUH�DQG�FRQWHQW�RI�WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG )LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV��
LQFOXGLQJ� WKH� GLVFORVXUHV�� DQG� ZKHWKHU� WKH� &RQVROLGDWHG )LQDQFLDO� 6WDWHPHQWV� UHSUHVHQW� WKH�
XQGHUO\LQJ�WUDQVDFWLRQV�DQG�HYHQWV�LQ�D�PDQQHU�WKDW�DFKLHYHV�IDLU�SUHVHQWDWLRQ�

�I� 2EWDLQ�VXIILFLHQW�DSSURSULDWH�DXGLW�HYLGHQFH�UHJDUGLQJ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�RI�WKH�HQWLWLHV�RU�
EXVLQHVV� DFWLYLWLHV� ZLWKLQ� WKH� *URXS WR� H[SUHVV� DQ� RSLQLRQ� RQ� WKH� &RQVROLGDWHG� )LQDQFLDO�
6WDWHPHQWV��:H�DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�WKH�GLUHFWLRQ��VXSHUYLVLRQ�DQG�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�WKH�DXGLW�RI�WKH�
ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�VXFK�HQWLWLHV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�RI�ZKLFK�
ZH� DUH� WKH� LQGHSHQGHQW� DXGLWRUV�� )RU� WKH� RWKHU� HQWLWLHV� LQFOXGHG� LQ� WKH� &RQVROLGDWHG� )LQDQFLDO�
6WDWHPHQWV��ZKLFK�KDYH�EHHQ�DXGLWHG�E\�RWKHU�DXGLWRUV��VXFK�RWKHU�DXGLWRUV�UHPDLQ�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�
WKH�GLUHFWLRQ��VXSHUYLVLRQ�DQG�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI� WKH�DXGLWV�FDUULHG�RXW�E\�WKHP��:H�UHPDLQ�VROHO\�
UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�RXU�DXGLW�RSLQLRQ��



0DWHULDOLW\� LV� WKH� PDJQLWXGH� RI� PLVVWDWHPHQWV� LQ� WKH� &RQVROLGDWHG )LQDQFLDO� 6WDWHPHQWV� WKDW��
LQGLYLGXDOO\�RU� LQ� DJJUHJDWH��PDNHV� LW� SUREDEOH� WKDW� WKH� HFRQRPLF�GHFLVLRQV�RI� WKH�XVHUV�RI� WKH�
)LQDQFLDO� 6WDWHPHQWV� PD\� EH� LQIOXHQFHG�� :H� FRQVLGHU� TXDQWLWDWLYH� PDWHULDOLW\� DQG� TXDOLWDWLYH�
IDFWRUV�LQ��L��SODQQLQJ�WKH�VFRSH�RI�RXU�DXGLW�ZRUN�DQG�LQ�HYDOXDWLQJ�WKH�UHVXOWV�RI�RXU�ZRUN��DQG�
�LL��WR�HYDOXDWH�WKH�HIIHFW�RI�DQ\�LGHQWLILHG�PLVVWDWHPHQWV�LQ�WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�

:H�FRPPXQLFDWH�ZLWK�WKRVH�FKDUJHG�ZLWK�JRYHUQDQFH�UHJDUGLQJ��DPRQJ�RWKHU�PDWWHUV��WKH�SODQQHG�
VFRSH�DQG�WLPLQJ�RI�WKH�DXGLW�DQG�VLJQLILFDQW�DXGLW�ILQGLQJV��LQFOXGLQJ�DQ\�VLJQLILFDQW�GHILFLHQFLHV�
LQ�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�WKDW�ZH�LGHQWLI\�GXULQJ�RXU�DXGLW�

:H� DOVR� SURYLGH� WKRVH� FKDUJHG�ZLWK� JRYHUQDQFH�ZLWK� D� VWDWHPHQW� WKDW�ZH� KDYH� FRPSOLHG�ZLWK�
UHOHYDQW� HWKLFDO� UHTXLUHPHQWV� UHJDUGLQJ� LQGHSHQGHQFH�� DQG� WR� FRPPXQLFDWH� ZLWK� WKHP� DOO�
UHODWLRQVKLSV�DQG�RWKHU�PDWWHUV�WKDW�PD\�UHDVRQDEO\�EH�WKRXJKW�WR�EHDU�RQ�RXU�LQGHSHQGHQFH��DQG�
ZKHUH�DSSOLFDEOH��UHODWHG�VDIHJXDUGV�

2WKHU�0DWWHUV�

�� :H�GLG�QRW�DXGLW�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV RI�WKUHH VXEVLGLDULHV�LQFRUSRUDWHG�RXWVLGH�,QGLD�LQFOXGHG�
LQ� WKH� FRQVROLGDWHG� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV�� ZKRVH� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� UHIOHFW� WRWDO� DVVHW� RI� 5V��
�������� ODNKV� DV� DW�0DUFK� ���� ������ WRWDO� UHYHQXH� RI� 5V� �������� ODNKV DQG� QHW� FDVK� IORZV�
DPRXQWLQJ�WR�5V� ������ ODNKV IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�RQ�WKDW�GDWH��7KHVH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG RWKHU�
ILQDQFLDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�KDYH�EHHQ�DXGLWHG�E\�RWKHU�DXGLWRUV�ZKRVH�UHSRUWV�KDYH�EHHQ�IXUQLVKHG�WR�XV�
E\�WKH�0DQDJHPHQW�DQG�RXU�RSLQLRQ�RQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��LQ�VR�IDU�DV�LW�UHODWHV�
WR�WKH�DPRXQWV�DQG�GLVFORVXUHV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�WKHVH�VXEVLGLDULHV�DQG�RXU�UHSRUW�LQ�WHUPV�RI�
VXE�VHFWLRQ�����RI�6HFWLRQ�����RI�WKH�$FW��LQ�VR�IDU�DV�LW�UHODWHV�WR�WKH�DIRUHVDLG�VXEVLGLDULHV LV�EDVHG�
VROHO\�RQ�WKH�UHSRUWV�RI�WKH�RWKHU�DXGLWRUV�

�� 7KHVH�VXEVLGLDULHV�DUH�ORFDWHG�RXWVLGH�,QGLD�ZKRVH�ILQDQFLDO�UHVXOWV�DQG�RWKHU�ILQDQFLDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�
KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�DFFRXQWLQJ�SULQFLSOHV�JHQHUDOO\�DFFHSWHG�LQ�WKHLU�UHVSHFWLYH�
FRXQWULHV� DQG� ZKLFK� KDYH� EHHQ� DXGLWHG� E\� RWKHU� DXGLWRUV� XQGHU� JHQHUDOO\� DFFHSWHG� DXGLWLQJ�
VWDQGDUGV� DSSOLFDEOH� LQ� WKHLU� UHVSHFWLYH� FRXQWULHV�� 7KH +ROGLQJ &RPSDQ\
V� PDQDJHPHQW� KDV�
FRQYHUWHG�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�UHVXOWV�RI�VXFK�VXEVLGLDULHV�ORFDWHG�RXWVLGH�,QGLD�IURP�DFFRXQWLQJ�SULQFLSOHV�
JHQHUDOO\�DFFHSWHG�LQ�WKHLU�UHVSHFWLYH�FRXQWULHV�WR�DFFRXQWLQJ�SULQFLSOHV�JHQHUDOO\�DFFHSWHG�LQ�,QGLD�
�,QGLDQ�$FFRXQWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV�
,QG�$6
���:H�KDYH�DXGLWHG�WKHVH�FRQYHUVLRQ�DGMXVWPHQWV�PDGH�E\�
WKH +ROGLQJ &RPSDQ\
V�PDQDJHPHQW��2XU�FRQFOXVLRQ� LQ�VR� IDU�DV� LW� UHODWHV� WR� WKH�EDODQFHV�DQG�
DIIDLUV�RI�VXFK�VXEVLGLDULHV�ORFDWHG�RXWVLGH�,QGLD�LV�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�UHSRUW�RI�WKH�RWKHU�DXGLWRUV�DQG�WKH�
FRQYHUVLRQ� DGMXVWPHQWV�PDGH�E\� WKH�+ROGLQJ &RPSDQ\¶V�PDQDJHPHQW DQG� DXGLWHG� E\� XV��2XU�
UHSRUW�RQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�LV�QRW�PRGLILHG�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�WKHVH�PDWWHUV�

2XU�RSLQLRQ�RQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��DQG�RXU�UHSRUW�RQ�2WKHU�/HJDO�DQG�5HJXODWRU\�
5HTXLUHPHQWV�EHORZ��LV�QRW�PRGLILHG�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�WKH�DERYH�PDWWHUV�ZLWK�UHVSHFW�WR�RXU�UHOLDQFH�
RQ�WKH�ZRUN�GRQH�DQG�WKH�UHSRUWV�RI�WKH�RWKHU�DXGLWRUV�

5HSRUW�RQ�2WKHU�/HJDO�DQG�5HJXODWRU\�5HTXLUHPHQWV

$V�UHTXLUHG�E\�6HFWLRQ��������RI�WKH�$FW��ZH�UHSRUW�WKDW��

�D� :H� KDYH� VRXJKW� DQG� REWDLQHG� DOO� WKH� LQIRUPDWLRQ� DQG� H[SODQDWLRQV� ZKLFK� WR� WKH� EHVW� RI� RXU�
NQRZOHGJH�DQG�EHOLHI�ZHUH�QHFHVVDU\�IRU�WKH�SXUSRVHV�RI�RXU�DXGLW RI�WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�
6WDWHPHQWV�



�E� ,Q�RXU�RSLQLRQ��SURSHU�ERRNV�RI�DFFRXQW�DV�UHTXLUHG�E\�ODZ�UHODWLQJ�WR�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�DIRUHVDLG�
&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�NHSW�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�VR�IDU�DV�LW�DSSHDUV�IURP�RXU�
H[DPLQDWLRQ�RI�WKRVH�ERRNV DQG�WKH�UHSRUWV�RI�WKH�RWKHU�DXGLWRUV�

�F� 7KH�&RQVROLGDWHG %DODQFH�6KHHW��WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG 6WDWHPHQW�RI�3URILW�DQG�/RVV��LQFOXGLQJ�2WKHU�
&RPSUHKHQVLYH�,QFRPH���WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG 6WDWHPHQW�RI�&KDQJHV�LQ�(TXLW\�DQG�WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG
6WDWHPHQW�RI�&DVK�)ORZV�GHDOW�ZLWK�E\�WKLV�5HSRUW�DUH�LQ�DJUHHPHQW�ZLWK�WKH� UHOHYDQW�ERRNV�RI�
DFFRXQW PDLQWDLQHG�IRU�WKH�SXUSRVH�RI�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�

�G� ,Q� RXU� RSLQLRQ�� WKH� DIRUHVDLG� FRQVROLGDWHG� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� FRPSO\� ZLWK� WKH� $FFRXQWLQJ�
6WDQGDUGV� VSHFLILHG� XQGHU� 6HFWLRQ� ���� RI� WKH� $FW� UHDG� ZLWK� UHDG� ZLWK UHOHYDQW� 5XOHV RI� WKH�
&RPSDQLHV��$FFRXQWV��5XOHV�������

�H� 2Q�WKH�EDVLV�RI�WKH�ZULWWHQ�UHSUHVHQWDWLRQV�UHFHLYHG�IURP�WKH�GLUHFWRUV�RI�WKH�+ROGLQJ�&RPSDQ\�DV�
RQ�0DUFK��������� WDNHQ�RQ�UHFRUG�E\�WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�RI�WKH�+ROGLQJ�&RPSDQ\�QRQH�RI�WKH�
GLUHFWRUV�RI�WKH�+ROGLQJ�FRPSDQ\ LQFRUSRUDWHG�LQ�,QGLD�LV�GLVTXDOLILHG�DV�RQ�0DUFK��������� IURP�
EHLQJ�DSSRLQWHG�DV�D�GLUHFWRU�LQ�WHUPV�RI�6HFWLRQ��������RI�WKH�$FW� �FHUWDLQ�SHQGLQJ�

�I� $V�WKHUH�DUH�QR�VXEVLGLDULHV�LQFRUSRUDWHG�LQ�,QGLD��WKLV�UHSRUW�GRHV�QRW�FRQWDLQ�D�VHSDUDWH�UHSRUW�RQ�
WKH�LQWHUQDO�ILQDQFLDO�FRQWUROV�ZLWK�UHIHUHQFH�WR�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RYHU�ILQDQFLDO�UHSRUWLQJ�RI�WKH�
*URXS�XQGHU�&ODXVH�L��RI�6XE�VHFWLRQ���RI�6HFWLRQ�����RI�WKH�$FW�

�J� $FFRUGLQJ�WR�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�H[SODQDWLRQ�JLYHQ�WR�XV�DQG�EDVHG�RQ�RXU�H[DPLQDWLRQ�RI�WKH�UHFRUGV�
RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�QRW�SDLG�SURYLGHG�IRU�PDQDJHULDO�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�DQG�KHQFH��WKH�
SURYLVLRQV�RI�6HFWLRQ���������RI WKH�$FW�LV�QRW DSSOLFDEOH��

�K� :LWK�UHVSHFW�WR�WKH�RWKHU�PDWWHUV�WR�EH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�$XGLWRU¶V�5HSRUW�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�5XOH�
��� RI� WKH�&RPSDQLHV� �$XGLW� DQG�$XGLWRUV��5XOHV�� ������ LQ� RXU� RSLQLRQ� DQG� WR� WKH� EHVW� RI� RXU�
LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�DFFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�H[SODQDWLRQV�JLYHQ�WR�XV�

L� 7KH�*URXS�GRHV� QRW� KDYH� DQ\�SHQGLQJ� OLWLJDWLRQV� WR� EH�GLVFORVHG� LQ� LWV�&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�
6WDWHPHQWV H[FHSW�DV�UHIHUUHG�LQ�1RWH����% WR�WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�

LL� 7KH�*URXS GLG�QRW�KDYH�DQ\�ORQJ�WHUP�FRQWUDFWV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�0DUFK�����������IRU�ZKLFK�
WKHUH�ZHUH�DQ\�PDWHULDO�IRUHVHHDEOH�ORVVHV��'HULYDWLYH�FRQWUDFWV�DUH�DSSURSULDWHO\�GHDOW�ZLWK�LQ�WKH�
ERRNV�RI�DFFRXQW�

LLL� 7KHUH� ZHUH� QR� DPRXQWV ZKLFK� ZHUH� UHTXLUHG� WR� EH� WUDQVIHUUHG� WR� WKH� ,QYHVWRU� (GXFDWLRQ� DQG�
3URWHFWLRQ�)XQG�E\�WKH�*URXS�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�0DUFK����������
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5HSRUW�RQ�WKH�$XGLW�RI�WKH�6WDQGDORQH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV

2SLQLRQ

:H�KDYH�DXGLWHG�WKH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�6WDQGDORQH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV RI*2'5(-�,1)27(&+�
/,0,7(' �³WKH�&RPSDQ\´���ZKLFK�FRPSULVHV WKH�%DODQFH�6KHHW DV�DW�0DUFK�����������DQG�WKH
6WDWHPHQW� RI� 3URILW� DQG� /RVV �LQFOXGLQJ� 2WKHU� &RPSUHKHQVLYH� ,QFRPH�� WKH� 6WDWHPHQW� RI�
&KDQJHV�LQ�(TXLW\�DQG�WKH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�&DVK�)ORZV DQG�IRU�WKH�\HDU WKHQ HQGHG� DQG�QRWHV�WR�
WKH� )LQDQFLDO� 6WDWHPHQWV�� LQFOXGLQJ D VXPPDU\� RI� VLJQLILFDQW� DFFRXQWLQJ� SROLFLHV� DQG� RWKHU�
H[SODQDWRU\�LQIRUPDWLRQ���KHUHLQDIWHU�UHIHUUHG�WR�DV�³6WDQGDORQH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV´��

,Q�RXU�RSLQLRQ�DQG�WR�WKH�EHVW�RI�RXU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�DFFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�H[SODQDWLRQV�JLYHQ�WR�XV��
WKH�DIRUHVDLG 6WDQGDORQH )LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�JLYH�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHTXLUHG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�
$FW��������³WKH�$FW´�� LQ�WKH�PDQQHU�VR�UHTXLUHG�DQG�JLYH�D�WUXH�DQG�IDLU�YLHZ�LQ�FRQIRUPLW\�
ZLWK�WKH�DFFRXQWLQJ�SULQFLSOHV�JHQHUDOO\�DFFHSWHG�LQ�,QGLD�RI�WKH�VWDWH�RI�DIIDLUV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�
DV�DW�0DUFK�����������DQG�LWV�SURILWV� 2WKHU�&RPSUHKHQVLYH�,QFRPH��FKDQJHV�LQ�HTXLW\�DQG�LWV�
FDVK�IORZV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�RQ�WKDW�GDWH�

%DVLV�RI�2SLQLRQ

:H�FRQGXFWHG�RXU�DXGLW�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�6WDQGDUGV�RQ�$XGLWLQJ��6$V��VSHFLILHG�XQGHU�
VHFWLRQ���������RI�WKH�$FW��2XU�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�XQGHU�WKRVH�6WDQGDUGV�DUH�IXUWKHU�GHVFULEHG�LQ�
WKH�$XGLWRU¶V�5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV�IRU�WKH�$XGLW�RI�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�VHFWLRQ�RI RXU�UHSRUW��
:H� DUH� LQGHSHQGHQW� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\� LQ� DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK� WKH� &RGH� RI� (WKLFV� LVVXHG� E\� WKH�
,QVWLWXWH� RI� &KDUWHUHG� $FFRXQWDQWV� RI� ,QGLD� WRJHWKHU� ZLWK� WKH� HWKLFDO� UHTXLUHPHQWV� WKDW� DUH�
UHOHYDQW�WR�RXU�DXGLW�RI�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�XQGHU�WKH�SURYLVLRQV�RI�WKH�$FW DQG�WKH�5XOHV�
WKHUHXQGHU�� DQG�ZH�KDYH� IXOILOOHG� RXU� RWKHU� HWKLFDO� UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV� LQ� DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK� WKHVH�
UHTXLUHPHQWV�DQG�WKH�&RGH�RI�(WKLFV��:H�EHOLHYH�WKDW�WKH�DXGLW�HYLGHQFH�ZH�KDYH�REWDLQHG�LV�
VXIILFLHQW�DQG�DSSURSULDWH�WR�SURYLGH�D EDVLV�IRU�RXU�RSLQLRQ�

(PSKDVLV�RI�0DWWHU

:H�GUDZ�DWWHQWLRQ�WR�1RWH����%�WR�WKH�6WDQGDORQH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV��ZKHUHE\�GXULQJ�WKH�
\HDU�� WKH�&RPSDQ\� KDV� UHFHLYHG� GHPDQG� OHWWHU� IURP� WKH�'HSDUWPHQW� RI�7HOHFRPPXQLFDWLRQ�
�'R7��DPRXQWLQJ�WR�5V�������� ODNKV�ZKHUHE\�'R7�KDV�FRQVLGHUHG DV�³0LVFHOODQHRXV�LQFRPH´�
WKH�1RQ�± 7HOHFRP�5HYHQXH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�L�H��WKH�UHYHQXH�JHQHUDWHG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�IURP�
LWV�PDLQVWUHDP�EXVLQHVVHV�RI�LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ��FRQVXOWDQF\�DQG�VXSSRUW�VHUYLFHV�RI�(53�VRIWZDUH
LQFOXGLQJ�WUDGLQJ�RI�VRIWZDUH�OLFHQVHV�DV�SDUW�RI�$GMXVWHG�*URVV�5HYHQXH��$*5����7KH�&RPSDQ\�
KDV�FRQWHVWHG�WKH�GHPDQGV�EHIRUH�'R7�DQG�UHTXHVWHG�IRU�WKHLU�ZLWKGUDZDO��DV�LQ�WKH�RSLQLRQ�RI
WKH�PDQDJHPHQW�WKH�VDPH�DUH�QRW�SD\DEOH�LQ�WHUPV�RI�LWV�,63�/LFHQVH�DJUHHPHQWV�

2XU�RSLQLRQ�LV�QRW�PRGLILHG�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�WKLV�PDWWHU�



2WKHU�,QIRUPDWLRQ

7KH� &RPSDQ\¶V� %RDUG� RI� 'LUHFWRUV� LV� UHVSRQVLEOH� IRU� WKH� RWKHU� LQIRUPDWLRQ�� 7KH� RWKHU�
LQIRUPDWLRQ�FRPSULVHV�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�$QQXDO�5HSRUW��QDPHO\�'LUHFWRUV¶�5HSRUW�
LQFOXGLQJ� DQQH[XUHV� WR� 'LUHFWRUV¶� 5HSRUW�� EXW� GRHV� QRW� LQFOXGH� WKH� 6WDQGDORQH )LQDQFLDO�
6WDWHPHQWV�DQG�RXU�DXGLWRU¶V�UHSRUW�WKHUHRQ��

2XU�RSLQLRQ�RQ�WKH�6WDQGDORQH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�GRHV�QRW�FRYHU�WKH�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�
ZH�GR�QRW�H[SUHVV�DQ\�IRUP�RI�DVVXUDQFH�FRQFOXVLRQ�WKHUHRQ�

,Q�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�RXU�DXGLW�RI�WKH�6WDQGDORQH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV��RXU�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�LV�WR�UHDG�
WKH�RWKHU� LQIRUPDWLRQ DQG�� LQ�GRLQJ� VR�� FRQVLGHU�ZKHWKHU� WKH�RWKHU� LQIRUPDWLRQ� LV�PDWHULDOO\�
LQFRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�6WDQGDORQH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�RU�RXU�NQRZOHGJH�REWDLQHG�LQ�WKH�DXGLW��
RU�RWKHUZLVH�DSSHDUV�WR�EH�PDWHULDOO\�PLVVWDWHG��,I��EDVHG�RQ�WKH�ZRUN ZH�KDYH�SHUIRUPHG��ZH�
FRQFOXGH�WKDW�WKHUH�LV�D�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW�RI�WKLV�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ��ZH�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�UHSRUW�
WKDW�IDFW��:H�KDYH�QRWKLQJ�WR�UHSRUW�LQ�WKLV�UHJDUG�

5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV�RI�0DQDJHPHQW�DQG�7KRVH�&KDUJHG�ZLWK�*RYHUQDQFH�IRU�WKH�6WDQGDORQH�
)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�

7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�WKH�PDWWHUV�VWDWHG�LQ�6HFWLRQ��������RI�WKH��
$FW�ZLWK�UHVSHFW�WR�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKHVH 6WDQGDORQH )LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�WKDW�JLYH�D�WUXH�DQG�
IDLU� YLHZ� RI� WKH� VWDWH� RI� WKH� ILQDQFLDO� SRVLWLRQ�� ILQDQFLDO� SHUIRUPDQFH� �LQFOXGLQJ� 2WKHU�
&RPSUHKHQVLYH�,QFRPH���FKDQJHV�LQ�HTXLW\�DQG�FDVK�IORZV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�
WKH� DFFRXQWLQJ� SULQFLSOHV� JHQHUDOO\� DFFHSWHG� LQ� ,QGLD�� LQFOXGLQJ� WKH� ,QGLDQ� $FFRXQWLQJ�
6WDQGDUGV��,QG�$6��SUHVFULEHG�XQGHU�6HFWLRQ�����RI�WKH�$FW��7KLV�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�DOVR�LQFOXGHV�
PDLQWHQDQFH�RI�DGHTXDWH�DFFRXQWLQJ�UHFRUGV� LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK� WKH�SURYLVLRQ�RI� WKH�$FW� IRU�
VDIHJXDUGLQJ� WKH� DVVHWV� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\� DQG� IRU� SUHYHQWLQJ� DQG� GHWHFWLQJ� IUDXGV� DQG� RWKHU�
LUUHJXODULWLHV��VHOHFWLRQ�DQG�DSSOLFDWLRQ�RI�DSSURSULDWH�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV��PDNLQJ�MXGJPHQWV�
DQG�HVWLPDWHV�WKDW�DUH�UHDVRQDEOH�DQG�SUXGHQW��DQG�GHVLJQ��LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ�DQG�PDLQWHQDQFH�RI�
DGHTXDWH LQWHUQDO�ILQDQFLDO�FRQWUROV��WKDW�ZHUH�RSHUDWLQJ�HIIHFWLYHO\�IRU�HQVXULQJ�WKH�DFFXUDF\�
DQG� FRPSOHWHQHVV� RI� WKH� DFFRXQWLQJ� UHFRUGV�� UHOHYDQW� WR� WKH� SUHSDUDWLRQ� DQG� SUHVHQWDWLRQ� RI�
6WDQGDORQH� )LQDQFLDO� 6WDWHPHQWV� WKDW� JLYH� D� WUXH� DQG� IDLU� YLHZ� DQG� DUH� IUHH� IURP� PDWHULDO�
PLVVWDWHPHQW��ZKHWKHU�GXH�WR�IUDXG�RU�HUURU�

,Q�SUHSDULQJ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��PDQDJHPHQW�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�DVVHVVLQJ�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�
DELOLW\�WR�FRQWLQXH�DV�D�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ��GLVFORVLQJ��DV�DSSOLFDEOH��PDWWHUV�UHODWHG�WR�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�
DQG XVLQJ�WKH�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�EDVLV�RI�DFFRXQWLQJ�XQOHVV�PDQDJHPHQW�HLWKHU�LQWHQGV�WR�OLTXLGDWH�
WKH�&RPSDQ\�RU�WR�FHDVH�RSHUDWLRQV��RU�KDV�QR�UHDOLVWLF�DOWHUQDWLYH�EXW�WR�GR�VR�

7KH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�DUH�DOVR�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�RYHUVHHLQJ�WKH�FRPSDQ\¶V�ILQDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ�
SURFHVV��

$XGLWRU¶V�5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV�IRU�WKH�$XGLW�RI�WKH 6WDQGDORQH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV

2XU�REMHFWLYHV�DUH�WR�REWDLQ�UHDVRQDEOH�DVVXUDQFH�DERXW�ZKHWKHU�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DV�D�
ZKROH� DUH� IUHH� IURP�PDWHULDO� PLVVWDWHPHQW�� ZKHWKHU� GXH� WR� IUDXG� RU� HUURU�� DQG� WR� LVVXH� DQ�
DXGLWRU¶V�UHSRUW�WKDW�LQFOXGHV�RXU�RSLQLRQ��5HDVRQDEOH�DVVXUDQFH�LV�D�KLJK�OHYHO�RI�DVVXUDQFH��EXW�
LV�QRW�D�JXDUDQWHH�WKDW�DQ�DXGLW�FRQGXFWHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�6$V�ZLOO�DOZD\V�GHWHFW�D�PDWHULDO�
PLVVWDWHPHQW�ZKHQ� LW�H[LVWV��0LVVWDWHPHQWV�FDQ�DULVH� IURP�IUDXG�RU�HUURU�DQG�DUH�FRQVLGHUHG�



PDWHULDO�LI��LQGLYLGXDOO\�RU�LQ�WKH�DJJUHJDWH��WKH\�FRXOG�UHDVRQDEO\�EH�H[SHFWHG�WR�LQIOXHQFH�WKH�
HFRQRPLF�GHFLVLRQV�RI�XVHUV�WDNHQ�RQ�WKH�EDVLV�RI�WKHVH�6WDQGDORQH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�

$V�SDUW�RI�DQ�DXGLW�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�6$V��ZH�H[HUFLVH�SURIHVVLRQDO�MXGJPHQW�DQG�PDLQWDLQ�
SURIHVVLRQDO�VNHSWLFLVP�WKURXJKRXW�WKH�DXGLW��:H�DOVR�

�D� ,GHQWLI\�DQG�DVVHVV�WKH�ULVNV�RI�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW�RI�WKH�6WDQGDORQH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV��
ZKHWKHU�GXH�WR�IUDXG�RU�HUURU��GHVLJQ�DQG�SHUIRUP�DXGLW�SURFHGXUHV�UHVSRQVLYH�WR�WKRVH�ULVNV��
DQG�REWDLQ�DXGLW�HYLGHQFH WKDW�LV�VXIILFLHQW�DQG�DSSURSULDWH�WR�SURYLGH�D�EDVLV�IRU�RXU�RSLQLRQ��
7KH�ULVN�RI�QRW�GHWHFWLQJ�D�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW�UHVXOWLQJ�IURP�IUDXG�LV�KLJKHU�WKDQ�IRU�RQH�
UHVXOWLQJ� IURP� HUURU�� DV� IUDXG� PD\� LQYROYH� FROOXVLRQ�� IRUJHU\�� LQWHQWLRQDO� RPLVVLRQV��
PLVUHSUHVHQWDWLRQV��RU�WKH�RYHUULGH�RI�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO��

�E� 2EWDLQ� DQ� XQGHUVWDQGLQJ� RI� LQWHUQDO� FRQWURO� UHOHYDQW� WR� WKH� DXGLW� LQ� RUGHU� WR GHVLJQ� DXGLW�
SURFHGXUHV�WKDW�DUH�DSSURSULDWH�LQ�WKH�FLUFXPVWDQFHV��8QGHU�VHFWLRQ��������L��RI�WKH�$FW��ZH�DUH�
DOVR� UHVSRQVLEOH� IRU� H[SUHVVLQJ� RXU� RSLQLRQ� RQ� ZKHWKHU� WKH� FRPSDQ\� KDV� DGHTXDWH� LQWHUQDO�
ILQDQFLDO�FRQWUROV�V\VWHP�ZLWK�UHIHUHQFH� WR�6WDQGDORQH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV� LQ�SODFH�DQG�WKH�
RSHUDWLQJ�HIIHFWLYHQHVV�RI�VXFK�FRQWUROV��

�F� (YDOXDWH�WKH�DSSURSULDWHQHVV�RI�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�XVHG�DQG�WKH�UHDVRQDEOHQHVV�RI�DFFRXQWLQJ�
HVWLPDWHV�DQG�UHODWHG�GLVFORVXUHV�PDGH�E\�PDQDJHPHQW��

�G� &RQFOXGH�RQ�WKH DSSURSULDWHQHVV�RI�PDQDJHPHQW¶V�XVH�RI�WKH�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�EDVLV�RI�DFFRXQWLQJ�
DQG��EDVHG�RQ�WKH�DXGLW�HYLGHQFH�REWDLQHG��ZKHWKHU�D�PDWHULDO�XQFHUWDLQW\�H[LVWV�UHODWHG�WR�HYHQWV�
RU�FRQGLWLRQV�WKDW�PD\�FDVW�VLJQLILFDQW�GRXEW�RQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�DELOLW\�WR�FRQWLQXH�DV�D�JRLQJ�
FRQFHUQ��,I�ZH�FRQFOXGH�WKDW�D�PDWHULDO�XQFHUWDLQW\�H[LVWV��ZH�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�GUDZ�DWWHQWLRQ�LQ�
RXU�DXGLWRU¶V�UHSRUW�WR�WKH�UHODWHG�GLVFORVXUHV�LQ�WKH�6WDQGDORQH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�RU��LI�VXFK�
GLVFORVXUHV� DUH� LQDGHTXDWH�� WR� PRGLI\� RXU� RSLQLRQ�� 2XU� FRQFOXVLRQV� DUH� EDVHG� RQ� WKH� DXGLW�
HYLGHQFH�REWDLQHG�XS�WR�WKH�GDWH�RI�RXU�DXGLWRU¶V�UHSRUW��+RZHYHU��IXWXUH�HYHQWV�RU�FRQGLWLRQV�
PD\�FDXVH�WKH�&RPSDQ\�WR�FHDVH�WR�FRQWLQXH�DV�D�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ��

�H� (YDOXDWH�WKH�RYHUDOO�SUHVHQWDWLRQ��VWUXFWXUH�DQG�FRQWHQW�RI�WKH�6WDQGDORQH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV��
LQFOXGLQJ� WKH� GLVFORVXUHV�� DQG� ZKHWKHU� WKH� 6WDQGDORQH� )LQDQFLDO� 6WDWHPHQWV� UHSUHVHQW� WKH�
XQGHUO\LQJ�WUDQVDFWLRQV�DQG�HYHQWV�LQ�D�PDQQHU�WKDW�DFKLHYHV�IDLU�SUHVHQWDWLRQ�

0DWHULDOLW\� LV� WKH� PDJQLWXGH� RI� PLVVWDWHPHQWV� LQ� WKH� VWDQGDORQH� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� WKDW��
LQGLYLGXDOO\�RU�LQ�DJJUHJDWH��PDNHV�LW�SUREDEOH�WKDW�WKH�HFRQRPLF�GHFLVLRQV�RI�WKH�UHDVRQDEO\�
NQRZOHGJHDEOH�XVHUV�RI�WKH�6WDQGDORQH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�PD\�EH�LQIOXHQFHG��:H�FRQVLGHU�
TXDQWLWDWLYH�PDWHULDOLW\�DQG�TXDOLWDWLYH�IDFWRUV�LQ��L��SODQQLQJ�WKH�VFRSH�RI�RXU�DXGLW�ZRUN�DQG�LQ�
HYDOXDWLQJ�WKH�UHVXOWV�RI�RXU�ZRUN��DQG��LL��WR�HYDOXDWH�WKH�HIIHFW�RI�DQ\�LGHQWLILHG�PLVVWDWHPHQWV�
LQ�WKH�6WDQGDORQH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�

:H� FRPPXQLFDWH� ZLWK� WKRVH� FKDUJHG� ZLWK� JRYHUQDQFH� UHJDUGLQJ�� DPRQJ� RWKHU�PDWWHUV�� WKH�
SODQQHG�VFRSH�DQG�WLPLQJ�RI�WKH�DXGLW�DQG�VLJQLILFDQW�DXGLW�ILQGLQJV��LQFOXGLQJ�DQ\�VLJQLILFDQW�
GHILFLHQFLHV�LQ�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�WKDW�ZH�LGHQWLI\�GXULQJ�RXU�DXGLW�

:H�DOVR�SURYLGH�WKRVH�FKDUJHG�ZLWK�JRYHUQDQFH�ZLWK�D�VWDWHPHQW�WKDW�ZH�KDYH�FRPSOLHG�ZLWK�
UHOHYDQW� HWKLFDO� UHTXLUHPHQWV� UHJDUGLQJ� LQGHSHQGHQFH�� DQG� WR� FRPPXQLFDWH� ZLWK� WKHP� DOO�
UHODWLRQVKLSV�DQG�RWKHU�PDWWHUV�WKDW�PD\�UHDVRQDEO\�EH�WKRXJKW�WR�EHDU�RQ�RXU�LQGHSHQGHQFH��DQG�
ZKHUH�DSSOLFDEOH��UHODWHG�VDIHJXDUGV�



5HSRUW�RQ�2WKHU�/HJDO�DQG�5HJXODWRU\�5HTXLUHPHQWV

$V� UHTXLUHG� E\� WKH� &RPSDQLHV� �$XGLWRU¶V� 5HSRUW�� 2UGHU�� ���� �³WKH�2UGHU´�� LVVXHG� E\� WKH�
&HQWUDO�*RYHUQPHQW�RI�,QGLD�LQ�WHUPV�RI�VXE�VHFWLRQ������RI�VHFWLRQ�����RI�WKH�$FW��ZH�JLYH�LQ�
WKH�³$QQH[XUH�$´� D�VWDWHPHQW�RQ�WKH�PDWWHUV�VSHFLILHG�LQ�WKH�SDUDJUDSK���DQG���RI�WKH�2UGHU��
WR�WKH�H[WHQW�DSSOLFDEOH�

$V�UHTXLUHG E\�6HFWLRQ���������RI�WKH�$FW��ZH�UHSRUW�WKDW�

D� :H�KDYH� VRXJKW� DQG�REWDLQHG�DOO� WKH� LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�H[SODQDWLRQV�ZKLFK� WR� WKH�EHVW� RI�RXU�
NQRZOHGJH�DQG�EHOLHI�ZHUH�QHFHVVDU\�IRU�WKH�SXUSRVHV�RI�RXU�DXGLW�

E� ,Q�RXU�RSLQLRQ��SURSHU�ERRNV�RI�DFFRXQW�DV�UHTXLUHG�E\�ODZ�KDYH�EHHQ�NHSW�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�VR�
IDU�DV�LW�DSSHDUV�IURP�RXU�H[DPLQDWLRQ�RI�WKRVH�ERRNV�

F� 7KH 6WDQGDORQH %DODQFH�6KHHW��WKH�6WDQGDORQH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�3URILW�DQG�/RVV �LQFOXGLQJ�2WKHU�
&RPSUHKHQVLYH� ,QFRPH��� WKH� 6WDQGDORQH 6WDWHPHQW� RI� &KDQJHV� LQ� (TXLW\� DQG� 6WDQGDORQH�
6WDWHPHQW�RI�&DVK�)ORZV�GHDOW�ZLWK�E\�WKLV�5HSRUW�DUH�LQ�DJUHHPHQW�ZLWK�WKH�ERRNV�RI�DFFRXQW�

G� ,Q� RXU� RSLQLRQ�� WKH� DIRUHVDLG� 6WDQGDORQH )LQDQFLDO� 6WDWHPHQWV� FRPSO\� ZLWK� WKH� ,QGLDQ�
$FFRXQWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV�VSHFLILHG�XQGHU�6HFWLRQ�����RI�WKH�$FW��UHDG�ZLWK�UHOHYDQW�UXOHV�LVVXHG�
WKHUHXQGHU�

H� 2Q�WKH�EDVLV�RI�WKH�ZULWWHQ�UHSUHVHQWDWLRQV�UHFHLYHG�IURP�WKH�GLUHFWRUV�DV�RQ�0DUFK ���������
DQG� WDNHQ� RQ� UHFRUG� E\� WKH� %RDUG� RI� 'LUHFWRUV�� QRQH� RI� WKH� GLUHFWRUV� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\� LV�
GLVTXDOLILHG�DV�RQ 0DUFK �������� IURP�EHLQJ�DSSRLQWHG�DV�D�GLUHFWRU�LQ�WHUPV�RI�6HFWLRQ�����
����RI�WKH�$FW�

I� :LWK� UHVSHFW� WR� WKH� DGHTXDF\� RI� WKH� LQWHUQDO� ILQDQFLDO� FRQWUROV� ZLWK� UHIHUHQFH� WR� ILQDQFLDO�
VWDWHPHQWV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�WKH�RSHUDWLQJ�HIIHFWLYHQHVV�RI�VXFK�FRQWUROV��UHIHU�WR�RXU�VHSDUDWH�
5HSRUW�LQ��$QQH[XUH�%���

J� $FFRUGLQJ� WR� LQIRUPDWLRQ� DQG� H[SODQDWLRQ�JLYHQ� WR� XV� DQG� EDVHG�RQ�RXU� H[DPLQDWLRQ�RI� WKH�
UHFRUGV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�QRW�SDLG�SURYLGHG�IRU PDQDJHULDO�UHPXQHUDWLRQ DQG�
KHQFH��WKH�SURYLVLRQV�RI�6HFWLRQ���������RI�WKH�$FW LV�QRW�DSSOLFDEOH��

K� :LWK�UHVSHFW�WR�WKH�RWKHU�PDWWHUV�WR�EH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�$XGLWRU¶V�5HSRUW�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�5XOH�
���RI�WKH�&RPSDQLHV��$XGLW�DQG�$XGLWRUV��5XOHV��������LQ�RXU�RSLQLRQ�DQG�WR�WKH�EHVW�RI�RXU�
LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�DFFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�H[SODQDWLRQV�JLYHQ�WR�XV�

L� 7KH�&RPSDQ\�GRHV�QRW�KDYH�DQ\ SHQGLQJ�OLWLJDWLRQV�WR�EH�GLVFORVHG�LQ�LWV�6WDQGDORQH�)LQDQFLDO�
6WDWHPHQWV H[FHSW�DV�UHIHUUHG�WR�1RWH����% RI�WKH�6WDQGDORQH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�

LL� 7KH�&RPSDQ\�GLG�QRW�KDYH�DQ\�ORQJ�WHUP�FRQWUDFWV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�0DUFK�����������IRU�
ZKLFK�WKHUH�ZHUH�DQ\�PDWHULDO�IRUHVHHDEOH�ORVVHV� 'HULYDWLYH�FRQWUDFWV�DUH�DSSURSULDWHO\�GHDOW�
ZLWK�LQ�WKH�ERRNV�RI�DFFRXQW�



LLL� 7KHUH�ZHUH�QR�DPRXQWV�ZKLFK�ZHUH�UHTXLUHG� WR�EH� WUDQVIHUUHG� WR� WKH�,QYHVWRU�(GXFDWLRQ�DQG�
3URWHFWLRQ�)XQG�E\�WKH�*URXS�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�0DUFK����������
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7KH�$QQH[XUH�UHIHUUHG�WR�LQ�SDUDJUDSK ��µ5HSRUW�RQ�2WKHU�/HJDO�DQG�5HJXODWRU\�5HTXLUHPHQWV¶�
LQ� RXU� ,QGHSHQGHQW� $XGLWRUV¶� 5HSRUW� WR� WKH� PHPEHUV� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\� RQ� WKH� 6WDQGDORQH�
)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�IRU WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�0DUFK�����������

6WDWHPHQW�RQ�0DWWHUV�VSHFLILHG�LQ�SDUDJUDSKV���	���RI�WKH�&RPSDQLHV��$XGLWRU¶V�5HSRUW��
2UGHU�������

L��D��7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�PDLQWDLQHG�SURSHU�UHFRUGV�VKRZLQJ�IXOO�SDUWLFXODUV��LQFOXGLQJ�
TXDQWLWDWLYH�GHWDLOV�DQG�VLWXDWLRQ�RI�IL[HG�DVVHWV�

�E� $V� H[SODLQHG� WR� XV�� WKH�&RPSDQ\� KDV� D� SURJUDP� IRU� SK\VLFDO� YHULILFDWLRQ� RI� IL[HG� DVVHWV� DW�
SHULRGLF�LQWHUYDOV��,Q�RXU�RSLQLRQ��WKH�SHULRG�RI�YHULILFDWLRQ�LV�UHDVRQDEOH�KDYLQJ�UHJDUGV�WR�VL]H�
RI�WKH�FRPSDQ\�DQG�WKH�QDWXUH�RI�LWV�DVVHWV� +RZHYHU��WKH�PDQDJHPHQW�ZDV�XQDEOH�WR�FRQGXFW�
WKH� SODQQHG�SK\VLFDO� YHULILFDWLRQ�RI� IL[HG� DVVHWV� GXULQJ� WKH�\HDU� DV� WKH� VDPH�ZDV� VFKHGXOHG�
GXULQJ� WKH� SHULRG� RI� QDWLRQZLGH� ORFNGRZQ�GHFODUHG� E\� WKH�*RYHUQPHQW� RI� ,QGLD� DQG� LW�ZDV�
LPSUDFWLFDEOH�WR�SHUIRUP�WKH�YHULILFDWLRQ�SURFHGXUHV�RQ�DFFRXQW�RI�FORVXUH�RI�DOO�RIILFHV��+HQFH��
RXU�FRPPHQW�RQ�WKH�GLVFUHSDQFLHV��LI�DQ\��QRWLFHG�GXULQJ�WKH�SK\VLFDO�YHULILFDWLRQ�RI�IL[HG�DVVHWV�
DQG�ZKHWKHU�WKH�VDPH�KDV�EHHQ�SURSHUO\�GHDOW�ZLWK�LQ�WKH�ERRNV�RI�DFFRXQW�GRHV�QRW�DULVH�

�F� 7KH�&RPSDQ\�GRHV�QRW�KDYH�LPPRYDEOH�SURSHUW\�DQG�KHQFH�WKH�SURYLVLRQV�RI�VXE�FODXVH��F��RI�
SDUDJUDSK���L��RI�WKH�2UGHU�DUH�QRW�DSSOLFDEOH�

LL� 7KH�&RPSDQ\�GRHV�QRW�KDYH�DQ\�LQYHQWRU\�DQG�DFFRUGLQJO\ WKH�SURYLVLRQV�RI�SDUDJUDSK���LL��RI�
WKH�2UGHU�DUH�QRW�DSSOLFDEOH��

LLL� 7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�QRW�JUDQWHG�DQ\�ORDQV��VHFXUHG�RU�XQVHFXUHG�� WR�FRPSDQLHV�� ILUPV�� OLPLWHG�
OLDELOLW\�SDUWQHUVKLSV�RU�RWKHU�SDUWLHV�FRYHUHG�LQ�WKH�UHJLVWHU�PDLQWDLQHG�XQGHU�6HFWLRQ�����RI�WKH�
$FW��7KHUHIRUH��WKH�SURYLVLRQV�RI�VXE�FODXVH��D����E��DQG��F��RI�SDUDJUDSK���LLL��RI�WKH�2UGHU�DUH�
QRW�DSSOLFDEOH�

LY� ,Q�RXU�RSLQLRQ�DQG�DFFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�H[SODQDWLRQV�JLYHQ�WR�XV�DQG�WKH�UHFRUGV�
H[DPLQHG�E\�XV��WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV QRW�DGYDQFHG DQ\�ORDQV�RU�PDGH�DQ\�LQYHVWPHQWV�RU�SURYLGHG�
DQ\� JXDUDQWHH� RU� VHFXULW\� WR� WKH� SDUWLHV� FRYHUHG� XQGHU� VHFWLRQ� ���� DQG� ����� 7KHUHIRUH�� WKH�
SURYLVLRQV�RI�FODXVH���LY��RI�WKH�2UGHU�DUH�QRW�DSSOLFDEOH�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\�

Y� ,Q�RXU�RSLQLRQ�DQG�DFFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�H[SODQDWLRQV�JLYHQ�WR�XV��WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�
QRW�DFFHSWHG�DQ\�'HSRVLWV�IURP�WKH�SXEOLF�DQG�KHQFH�WKH�GLUHFWLYHV�LVVXHG�E\�WKH�5HVHUYH�%DQN�
RI�,QGLD�DQG�WKH�SURYLVLRQV�RI�6HFWLRQV����WR����RU�DQ\�RWKHU�UHOHYDQW�SURYLVLRQV�RI�WKH�$FW�DQG�
WKH�5XOHV�IUDPHG�WKHUHXQGHU�DUH�QRW�DSSOLFDEOH�

YL� $FFRUGLQJ� WR� WKH� LQIRUPDWLRQ� DQG�H[SODQDWLRQV�JLYHQ� WR�XV�� WKH�PDLQWHQDQFH�RI� FRVW� UHFRUGV�
XQGHU� VXE� VHFWLRQ� ����RI� VHFWLRQ�����RI� WKH�$FW� LV� QRW� DSSOLFDEOH� WR� WKH�&RPSDQ\�XQGHU� WKH�
&RPSDQLHV��&RVW�5HFRUGV�DQG�$XGLW��5XOHV�������



YLL� �D��$FFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�H[SODQDWLRQV�JLYHQ�WR�XV�DQG�WKH�UHFRUGV�H[DPLQHG�E\�XV��
WKH�&RPSDQ\�LV�JHQHUDOO\�UHJXODU�LQ�GHSRVLWLQJ�XQGLVSXWHG�VWDWXWRU\�GXHV�LQFOXGLQJ�3URYLGHQW�
)XQG��(PSOR\HHV¶�6WDWH�,QVXUDQFH��,QFRPH�7D[��6DOHV�7D[��6HUYLFH�7D[��'XW\�RI�&XVWRPV��'XW\�
RI�([FLVH��9DOXH�$GGHG�7D[��&HVV�DQG�DQ\�RWKHU�PDWHULDO�VWDWXWRU\�GXHV�ZLWK�WKH�DSSURSULDWH�
DXWKRULWLHV��$FFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�H[SODQDWLRQV�JLYHQ�WR�XV��WKHUH�DUH�QR�DUUHDUV�RI�
RXWVWDQGLQJ�VWDWXWRU\�GXHV�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�DERYH�DV RQ�WKH�ODVW�GD\�RI�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU�IRU�D�SHULRG�
RI�PRUH�WKDQ�VL[�PRQWKV�IURP�WKH�GDWH�WKH\�EHFDPH�SD\DEOH�

�E��$FFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�H[SODQDWLRQ�JLYHQ�WR�XV�DQG�WKH�UHFRUGV�H[DPLQHG�E\�XV��WKHUH�
DUH�QR�PDWHULDO�GXHV�RI�,QFRPH 7D[��6DOHV�7D[��6HUYLFH�7D[��'XW\�RI�&XVWRPV��'XW\�RI�([FLVH�
DQG�9DOXH�DGGHG�WD[�RXWVWDQGLQJ�RQ�DFFRXQW�RI�DQ\�GLVSXWH�

YLLL� $FFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�H[SODQDWLRQV�JLYHQ�WR�XV�DQG�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�H[DPLQDWLRQ�RI�WKH�
UHFRUGV�WKH�&RPSDQ\�GRHV�QRW�KDYH�DQ\�ORDQV�RU�ERUURZLQJV�IURP ILQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV��EDQNV��
JRYHUQPHQW�RU�DQ\�GXHV�WR�GHEHQWXUH�KROGHUV��

L[� 7KH�&RPSDQ\�GLG�QRW� UDLVH�DQ\�PRQH\�E\�ZD\�RI� LQLWLDO�SXEOLF�RIIHU�RU� IXUWKHU�SXEOLF�RIIHU�
�LQFOXGLQJ�GHEW�LQVWUXPHQW���$FFRUGLQJO\��WKH�SURYLVLRQV�RI�SDUDJUDSK����L[��RI�WKH�2UGHU�DUH�QRW�
DSSOLFDEOH�

[� 'XULQJ�WKH�FRXUVH�RI�RXU�H[DPLQDWLRQ�RI�WKH�ERRNV�RI�DFFRXQW�DQG�UHFRUGV�RI WKH�&RPSDQ\��DQG�
DFFRUGLQJ� WR� WKH� LQIRUPDWLRQ� DQG� H[SODQDWLRQ� JLYHQ� WR� XV� DQG� UHSUHVHQWDWLRQV� PDGH� E\� WKH�
0DQDJHPHQW��QR�PDWHULDO�IUDXG�E\�RU�RQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\�E\�LWV�RIILFHUV�DQG�HPSOR\HHV��KDV�EHHQ�
QRWLFHG�RU�UHSRUWHG�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�

[L� $FFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�H[SODQDWLRQ�JLYHQ�WR�XV�DQG�EDVHG�RQ�RXU�H[DPLQDWLRQ�RI�WKH�
UHFRUGV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�QRW�SDLG�SURYLGHG�IRU�PDQDJHULDO�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�DQG�
KHQFH��WKH�SURYLVLRQV�RI�SDUDJUDSK���[L��RI�WKH�2UGHU�DUH�QRW�DSSOLFDEOH�

[LL� ,Q�RXU�RSLQLRQ�DQG DFFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�H[SODQDWLRQ�JLYHQ�WR�XV��WKH�&RPSDQ\�LV�
QRW�D�1LGKL�&RPSDQ\ DV�SUHVFULEHG�XQGHU�6HFWLRQ�����RI�WKH�$FW��$FFRUGLQJO\��SURYLVLRQV�RI�
SDUDJUDSK���[LL��RI�WKH�2UGHU�DUH�QRW�DSSOLFDEOH�

[LLL� $FFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�H[SODQDWLRQ�JLYHQ�WR�XV�DQG�EDVHG�RQ�RXU�H[DPLQDWLRQ�RI�WKH�
UHFRUGV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��WUDQVDFWLRQV�ZLWK�UHODWHG�SDUWLHV�DUH�LQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�6HFWLRQ�����
DQG�����RI�WKH�$FW��ZKHUH�DSSOLFDEOH��DQG�GHWDLOV�RI�VXFK�WUDQVDFWLRQV KDYH�EHHQ�GLVFORVHG�LQ�WKH
6WDQGDORQH )LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�DV�UHTXLUHG�E\�WKH�DSSOLFDEOH�,QGLDQ�$FFRXQWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV�

[LY� $FFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�H[SODQDWLRQ�JLYHQ�WR�XV�DQG�EDVHG�RQ�RXU�H[DPLQDWLRQ�RI�WKH�
UHFRUGV� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\�� WKH� &RPSDQ\� KDV� QRW� PDGH� DQ\� SUHIHUHQWLDO� DOORWPHQW� RU� SULYDWH�
SODFHPHQW� RI� VKDUHV� RU� IXOO\� RU� SDUWO\� FRQYHUWLEOH� GHEHQWXUHV� GXULQJ� WKH� \HDU� $FFRUGLQJO\��
SDUDJUDSK����[LY��RI�WKH�2UGHU�LV�QRW�DSSOLFDEOH�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\�

[Y� $FFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�H[SODQDWLRQ�JLYHQ�WR�XV�DQG�EDVHG�RQ�RXU�H[DPLQDWLRQ�RI�WKH�
UHFRUGV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�QRW�HQWHUHG�LQWR�DQ\�QRQ�FDVK�WUDQVDFWLRQV�ZLWK�WKH�
GLUHFWRUV�RU�SHUVRQV�FRQQHFWHG�ZLWK�KLP��+HQFH� WKH�SURYLVLRQV�RI�6HFWLRQ�����RI�WKH�$FW�DUH�
QRW�DSSOLFDEOH��



[YL� $FFRUGLQJ� WR� LQIRUPDWLRQ� DQG� H[SODQDWLRQV� JLYHQ� WR� XV�� WKH� &RPSDQ\� LV� QRW� UHTXLUHG� WR� EH�
UHJLVWHUHG�XQGHU�6HFWLRQ����,$�RI�WKH�5HVHUYH�%DQN�RI�,QGLD�$FW������� $FFRUGLQJO\��UHSRUWLQJ�
XQGHU��[YL��RI�WKH�2UGHU�LV�QRW�DSSOLFDEOH�
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$11(;85( % 72�7+(�,1'(3(1'(17�$8',725¶6�5(3257�

5HIHUUHG� WR� LQ 3DUD� ��I�� µ5HSRUW� RQ� 2WKHU� /HJDO� DQG� 5HJXODWRU\� 5HTXLUHPHQWV¶� LQ� RXU�
,QGHSHQGHQW�$XGLWRU¶V�5HSRUW� WR� WKH�PHPEHUV�RI� WKH�&RPSDQ\�RQ� WKH 6WDQGDORQH�)LQDQFLDO�
6WDWHPHQWV IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�0DUFK����������

5HSRUW�RQ�WKH�,QWHUQDO�)LQDQFLDO�&RQWUROV�ZLWK�UHIHUHQFH� WR� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV�XQGHU�
&ODXVH��L��RI�6XE�VHFWLRQ���RI�6HFWLRQ�����RI�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�$FW��������³WKH�$FW´�

:H� KDYH� DXGLWHG� WKH� ,QWHUQDO� )LQDQFLDO� &RQWUROV� ZLWK� UHIHUHQFH� WR� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� RI�
*2'5(-�,1)27(&+�/,0,7(' �³WKH�&RPSDQ\´��DV�RI�0DUFK��������� LQ�FRQMXQFWLRQ�ZLWK�
RXU�DXGLW�RI�WKH�6WDQGDORQH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�RQ�WKDW�GDWH�

0DQDJHPHQW¶V�5HVSRQVLELOLW\�IRU�,QWHUQDO�)LQDQFLDO�&RQWUROV

7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�PDQDJHPHQW�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�HVWDEOLVKLQJ�DQG�PDLQWDLQLQJ�LQWHUQDO�ILQDQFLDO�
FRQWUROV� EDVHG� RQ� WKH� LQWHUQDO� FRQWURO� RYHU� ILQDQFLDO� UHSRUWLQJ� FULWHULD� HVWDEOLVKHG� E\� WKH�
&RPSDQ\�FRQVLGHULQJ�WKH�HVVHQWLDO�FRPSRQHQWV�RI LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�VWDWHG�LQ�WKH�*XLGDQFH�1RWH�
RQ�$XGLW�RI�,QWHUQDO�)LQDQFLDO�&RQWUROV�RYHU�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ��WKH�³*XLGDQFH�1RWH´��LVVXHG�
E\� WKH� ,QVWLWXWH�RI�&KDUWHUHG�$FFRXQWDQWV�RI� ,QGLD� �,&$,���7KHVH� UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV� LQFOXGH� WKH�
GHVLJQ�� LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ DQG� PDLQWHQDQFH� RI� DGHTXDWH� LQWHUQDO� ILQDQFLDO� FRQWUROV� WKDW� ZHUH�
RSHUDWLQJ�HIIHFWLYHO\�IRU�HQVXULQJ�WKH�RUGHUO\�DQG�HIILFLHQW�FRQGXFW�RI� LWV�EXVLQHVV�� LQFOXGLQJ�
DGKHUHQFH�WR�WKH�FRPSDQ\¶V�SROLFLHV��WKH�VDIHJXDUGLQJ�RI�LWV�DVVHWV��WKH�SUHYHQWLRQ�DQG�GHWHFWLRQ�
RI�IUDXGV�DQG�HUURUV��WKH�DFFXUDF\�DQG�FRPSOHWHQHVV�RI�WKH�DFFRXQWLQJ�UHFRUGV��DQG�WKH�WLPHO\�
SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�UHOLDEOH�ILQDQFLDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ��DV�UHTXLUHG�XQGHU�WKH�$FW�

$XGLWRUV¶�5HVSRQVLELOLW\

2XU�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�LV�WR�H[SUHVV�DQ�RSLQLRQ�RQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\
V�LQWHUQDO�ILQDQFLDO�FRQWUROV�ZLWK�
UHIHUHQFH�WR�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�EDVHG�RQ�RXU�DXGLW��:H�FRQGXFWHG�RXU�DXGLW�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�
WKH�*XLGDQFH�1RWH�DQG�WKH�6WDQGDUGV�RQ�$XGLWLQJ��LVVXHG�E\�,&$,�DQG�GHHPHG�WR�EH�SUHVFULEHG�
XQGHU� 6HFWLRQ� �������� RI� WKH� $FW�� WR� WKH� H[WHQW� DSSOLFDEOH� WR� DQ� DXGLW� RI� LQWHUQDO� ILQDQFLDO�
FRQWUROV��ERWK�DSSOLFDEOH�WR�DQ�DXGLW�RI�LQWHUQDO�)LQDQFLDO�&RQWUROV�DQG��ERWK�LVVXHG�E\�WKH�,&$,��
7KRVH�6WDQGDUGV�DQG�WKH�*XLGDQFH�1RWH�UHTXLUH�WKDW�ZH�FRPSO\�ZLWK�HWKLFDO�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DQG�
SODQ� DQG� SHUIRUP� WKH� DXGLW� WR� REWDLQ� UHDVRQDEOH� DVVXUDQFH� DERXW� ZKHWKHU� DGHTXDWH� LQWHUQDO�
ILQDQFLDO�FRQWUROV�ZLWK�UHIHUHQFH�WR�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�ZDV�HVWDEOLVKHG�DQG�PDLQWDLQHG�DQG�LI�
VXFK�FRQWUROV�RSHUDWHG�HIIHFWLYHO\�LQ�DOO�PDWHULDO�UHVSHFWV�

2XU�DXGLW�LQYROYHV�SHUIRUPLQJ�SURFHGXUHV�WR�REWDLQ�DXGLW�HYLGHQFH�DERXW�WKH�DGHTXDF\�RI�WKH�
LQWHUQDO� ILQDQFLDO� FRQWUROV� V\VWHP�ZLWK� UHIHUHQFH� WR� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� DQG� WKHLU� RSHUDWLQJ�
HIIHFWLYHQHVV� 2XU� DXGLW� RI� LQWHUQDO� ILQDQFLDO� FRQWUROV�ZLWK� UHIHUHQFH� WR� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV�
LQFOXGHG�REWDLQLQJ�DQ�XQGHUVWDQGLQJ�RI� LQWHUQDO� ILQDQFLDO�FRQWUROV�ZLWK�UHIHUHQFH� WR�ILQDQFLDO�
VWDWHPHQWV��DVVHVVLQJ� WKH� ULVN� WKDW�D�PDWHULDO�ZHDNQHVV�H[LVWV��DQG� WHVWLQJ�DQG�HYDOXDWLQJ� WKH�
GHVLJQ�DQG�RSHUDWLQJ�HIIHFWLYHQHVV�RI�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�DVVHVVHG�ULVN��7KH�SURFHGXUHV�
VHOHFWHG�GHSHQG�RQ� WKH�DXGLWRU¶V� MXGJPHQW�� LQFOXGLQJ� WKH�DVVHVVPHQW�RI� WKH� ULVNV�RI�PDWHULDO�
PLVVWDWHPHQW�RI�WKH�6WDQGDORQH )LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV��ZKHWKHU�GXH�WR�IUDXG�RU�HUURU���

:H�EHOLHYH�WKDW�WKH�DXGLW�HYLGHQFH�ZH�KDYH�REWDLQHG�LV�VXIILFLHQW�DQG�DSSURSULDWH�WR�SURYLGH�D�
EDVLV�IRU�RXU�DXGLW�RSLQLRQ�RQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�LQWHUQDO�ILQDQFLDO�FRQWUROV�V\VWHP�ZLWK�UHIHUHQFH�
WR�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�



0HDQLQJ�RI�,QWHUQDO�)LQDQFLDO�&RQWUROV�ZLWK�UHIHUHQFH�WR�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV

$� &RPSDQ\
V� LQWHUQDO� ILQDQFLDO� FRQWURO� ZLWK� UHIHUHQFH� WR� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� LV� D� SURFHVV�
GHVLJQHG�WR�SURYLGH�UHDVRQDEOH�DVVXUDQFH�UHJDUGLQJ�WKH�UHOLDELOLW\�RI�ILQDQFLDO�UHSRUWLQJ DQG�WKH�
SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�H[WHUQDO�SXUSRVHV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�JHQHUDOO\�DFFHSWHG�
DFFRXQWLQJ� SULQFLSOHV�� $� FRPSDQ\
V� LQWHUQDO� ILQDQFLDO� FRQWURO� ZLWK� UHIHUHQFH� WR� ILQDQFLDO�
VWDWHPHQWV�LQFOXGHV�WKRVH�SROLFLHV�DQG�SURFHGXUHV�WKDW�����SHUWDLQ�WR�WKH�PDLQWHQDQFH�RI�UHFRUGV�
WKDW��LQ�UHDVRQDEOH�GHWDLO��DFFXUDWHO\�DQG�IDLUO\�UHIOHFW�WKH�WUDQVDFWLRQV�DQG�GLVSRVLWLRQV�RI�WKH�
DVVHWV� RI� WKH� FRPSDQ\�� ���� SURYLGH� UHDVRQDEOH� DVVXUDQFH� WKDW� WUDQVDFWLRQV� DUH� UHFRUGHG� DV�
QHFHVVDU\�WR�SHUPLW�SUHSDUDWLRQ RI�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�JHQHUDOO\�DFFHSWHG�
DFFRXQWLQJ�SULQFLSOHV��DQG�WKDW�UHFHLSWV�DQG�H[SHQGLWXUHV�RI�WKH�FRPSDQ\�DUH�EHLQJ�PDGH�RQO\�
LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�DXWKRULVDWLRQV�RI�PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�GLUHFWRUV�RI�WKH�FRPSDQ\��DQG�����SURYLGH�
UHDVRQDEOH�DVVXUDQFH�UHJDUGLQJ�SUHYHQWLRQ�RU�WLPHO\�GHWHFWLRQ�RI�XQDXWKRULVHG�DFTXLVLWLRQ��XVH��
RU� GLVSRVLWLRQ� RI� WKH� FRPSDQ\
V� DVVHWV� WKDW� FRXOG� KDYH� D� PDWHULDO� HIIHFW� RQ� WKH� 6WDQGDORQH�
)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�

,QKHUHQW�/LPLWDWLRQV�RI�,QWHUQDO�)LQDQFLDO�&RQWUROV�ZLWK�UHIHUHQFH�WR�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV

%HFDXVH� RI� WKH� LQKHUHQW� OLPLWDWLRQV� RI� LQWHUQDO� ILQDQFLDO� FRQWUROV�ZLWK� UHIHUHQFH� WR� ILQDQFLDO�
VWDWHPHQWV��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�SRVVLELOLW\�RI�FROOXVLRQ�RU�LPSURSHU�PDQDJHPHQW�RYHUULGH�RI�FRQWUROV��
PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQWV�GXH�WR�HUURU�RU�IUDXG�PD\�RFFXU�DQG�QRW�EH�GHWHFWHG��$OVR��SURMHFWLRQV�RI�
DQ\�HYDOXDWLRQ�RI�WKH�LQWHUQDO�ILQDQFLDO�FRQWUROV�ZLWK�UHIHUHQFH�WR�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�WR�IXWXUH�
SHULRGV�DUH�VXEMHFW�WR�WKH�ULVN�WKDW�WKH�,QWHUQDO�)LQDQFLDO�&RQWURO�2YHU�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ�PD\�
EHFRPH�LQDGHTXDWH�EHFDXVH�RI�FKDQJHV�LQ�FRQGLWLRQV��RU�WKDW�WKH�GHJUHH�RI�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�
SROLFLHV�RU�SURFHGXUHV�PD\�GHWHULRUDWH�

2SLQLRQ

,Q�RXU�RSLQLRQ��WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV��LQ�DOO�PDWHULDO�UHVSHFWV��DQ�DGHTXDWH�LQWHUQDO�ILQDQFLDO�FRQWUROV�
V\VWHP�ZLWK�UHIHUHQFH�WR�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�VXFK�LQWHUQDO�ILQDQFLDO�FRQWUROV�ZLWK�UHIHUHQFH�
WR�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�ZHUH�RSHUDWLQJ�HIIHFWLYHO\�DV�DW�0DUFK�����������EDVHG�RQ�WKH�LQWHUQDO�
FRQWURO RYHU�ILQDQFLDO�UHSRUWLQJ�FULWHULD�HVWDEOLVKHG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�FRQVLGHULQJ�WKH�HVVHQWLDO�
FRPSRQHQWV� RI� LQWHUQDO� FRQWURO� VWDWHG� LQ� WKH� ³*XLGDQFH�1RWH� RQ�$XGLW� RI� ,QWHUQDO� )LQDQFLDO�
&RQWUROV�2YHU�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ´ LVVXHG�E\�WKH�,QVWLWXWH�RI�&KDUWHUHG�$FFRXQWDQWV�RI�,QGLD�
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INR (In Lakhs)
Note As at As at 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
ASSETS

1. Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 89.08                               98.76                           
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 22.04                               -                              
(c) Goodwill 54.49                               54.49                           
(d) Financial Assets

(i) Trade Receivables 3 -                                  -                              
(ii) Loans 4 18.71                               8.83                             

(e) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 5 121.35                             153.58                         
(f) Income Tax Assets (Net) 6 525.53                             106.41                         
(g) Other Non - Current Assets 7 108.38                             108.58                         
Total Non-Current Assets 939.58                             530.65                         

2. Current Assets
(a) Inventories 8 -                                  1.45                             
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 9 2,321.30                          1,325.86                      
(ii) Trade Receivables 10 2,583.80                          3,280.00                      

(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 2,613.26                          1,690.61                      
(iv) Loans 12 17.63                               7.18                             
(v) Others 13 198.91                             435.96                         

(c) Other Current Assets 14 242.71                             360.82                         
Total Current Assets 7,977.61                          7,101.88                      

TOTAL ASSETS 8,917.19                          7,632.53                      

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 15 9.70                                 9.70                             
(b) Other Equity 16 4,998.37                          4,199.09                      
(c) Non-Controlling Interest 17 40.53                               20.28                           

TOTAL EQUITY 5,048.60                          4,229.08                      

LIABILITIES
1. Non Current Liabilities

(a) Provisions 18 232.21                             167.55                         
Total Non Current Liabilities 232.21                             167.55                         

2. Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Trade Payables 19
12.89                               -                              

240.36                             594.48                         
(ii) Others 20 2,255.85                          1,846.24                      

(b) Other current liabilities 21 1,083.32                          737.15                         
(c) Provisions 22 43.96                               38.78                           
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 23 -                                  19.26                           
Total Current Liabilities 3,636.38                          3,235.90                      

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 8,917.19                          7,632.53                      

Significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our Report of even date
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
CHARTERED ACOUNTANTS
Firm Registration Number 104607W/W100166

K.A. PALIA M.M. PARPIA AJAY PIMPARKAR
PARTNER Chairman Director Chief Executive Officer
Membership Number 127355 (DIN: 00281971) (DIN: 00118333)
Place: Mumbai
Dated:  

(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020



INR (In Lakhs)
Note For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

I INCOME
1. Revenue from Operations 24 13,453.93                     13,453.90                      
2. Other Income 25 225.26                          168.94                           

TOTAL INCOME 13,679.19                     13,622.84                      

II EXPENSES
1. Cost of Sales/ Services 26 1,307.69                       1,269.79                        
2. Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-trade 9 1.45                              (1.45)                             
3. Employee Benefits Expense 27 8,538.73                       7,892.23                        
4. Finance Cost 28 0.97                              -                                
5. Depreciation and Amortization Expense 2 23.91                            20.29                             
6. Other Expenses 29 2,174.01                       2,242.34                        

TOTAL EXPENSES 12,046.77                     11,423.20                      

III PROFIT BEFORE TAX 1,632.42                       2,199.65                        

IV TAX EXPENSE
Current Tax 5(b) 450.40                          566.10                           
Deferred Tax 5(b) (4.86)                            66.47                             
TOTAL TAX EXPENSE 445.54                          632.57                           

V PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,186.88                       1,567.08                        

VI OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss

1. Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans (245.34)                         (150.23)                         
2. Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss (43.75)                           43.75                             

Total (A) (289.09)                         (106.48)                         
Items that will be subsequently reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss

1. Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of foreign operations 29.94                            10.96                             
2. Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss 8.73                              (2.15)                             

Total (B) 38.67                            8.81                              

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (A+B) (250.42)                         (97.67)                           

936.46                          1,469.40                        

Profit for the Year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 1,169.51                       1,554.32                        
Non-Controlling Interests 17.36                            12.76                             
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the Year attributable to:
Owners of the Company (253.30)                         (97.85)                           
Non-Controlling Interests 2.88                              0.18                              
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 916.21                          1,456.46                        
Non-Controlling Interests 20.25                            12.94                             

VII EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE (Rs.)
Basic & Diluted 30 12,235.85                     16,155.42                      

Significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our Report of even date
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
CHARTERED ACOUNTANTS
Firm Registration Number 104607W/W100166

FARHAD M. BHESANIA K.A. PALIA M.M. PARPIA AJAY PIMPARKAR
PARTNER Chairman Director Chief Executive Officer
Membership Number 127355 (DIN: 00281971) (DIN: 00118333)
Place: Mumbai
Dated:  

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020



INR (In Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit Before Tax 1,632.42                         2,199.65                       
Adjustments for :
   Depreciation and amortisation expense 23.91                              20.29                            
   Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment (1.14)                               (0.38)                             
   Bad Debts Written Off -                                  91.01                            
   Provision for Doubtful Debts 19.18                              (126.30)                         
   Fair Valuation of Security Deposits 0.11                                0.06                              
   Dividend Earned on Investments (39.99)                             (77.19)                           
   Gain on Sale of Investments in Mutual Funds (2.18)                               -                                
   Net gain on fair value changes on financial instruments classified as FVTPL (58.36)                             -                                
   Interest on Income Tax Refund (28.81)                             -                                
   Foreign Exchange Difference loss/(gain) (41.87)                             25.86                            
   Foreign Currency Translation Effect 29.94                              10.96                            
   Actuarial Gains and Losses (245.34)                           (150.23)                         
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 1,287.87                         1,993.73                       
Adjustments for :
   Trade Receivables 718.90                            (1,368.55)                      
   Other Assets/ Receivables 336.37                            (312.14)                         
  Trade payable and Other liabilities 465.14                            444.38                          
  Cash Generated from Operations 2,808.27                         757.41                          
  Direct Taxes Paid (Incl. Tax Deducted at Source) Net of Refund (838.67)                           (448.64)                         
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities 1,969.60                         308.77                          

B.  Cash Flow From Investing Activities
  Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (36.24)                             (46.23)                           
  Sales of Property, Plant and Equipment 1.14                                0.51                              
  Dividend received 39.99                              77.19                            
  Gain on Sale of Investments in Mutual Funds 2.18                                -                                
  Net gain on fair value changes on financial instruments classified as FVTPL 58.36                              -                                

   Investment in Mutual Fund (Net) (995.44)                           136.26                          
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Investing Activities (930.02)                           167.73                          

C.  Cash Flow From Financing Activities
  Dividend Paid (99.82)                             -                                
  Dividend Distribution Tax (17.12)                             -                                
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing Activities (116.94)                           -                                

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalent 922.65                            476.51                          

Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalent 1,690.61                         1,214.10                       
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalent 2,613.26                         1,690.61                       

9,22,64,937                    4,76,50,691                  
Notes: 

The accompanying notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our Report of even date
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACOUNTANTS
Firm Registration Number 104607W/W100166

FARHAD M. BHESANIA K.A. PALIA M.M. PARPIA AJAY PIMPARKAR
PARTNER Chairman Director Chief Executive Officer
Membership Number 127355 (DIN: 00281971) (DIN: 00118333)
Place: Mumbai
Dated:  

The above Statement of Cash Flow includes INR 27.65 lakhs (Previous Year 2019: INR 18.94 lakhs) towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities 
(Refer Note 29(o) ).

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020



A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars

No. of Shares Amount (Rs.) No. of Shares Amount (Rs.)
Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 9,700                    9.70                        9,700                        9.70                      
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year -                        -                          -                            -                        
Balance at the end of the reporting year 9,700                    9.70                        9,700                        9.70                      

B. Other Equity
INR (In Lakhs)

 Securities 
Premium 

 General Reserve  Retained Earnings 

Balance as at April 01, 2018 190.00                  2.22                        2,538.18                    12.22                    2,742.63               7.34                2,749.97               
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year -                       -                  -                       

Profit for the Year -                        -                          1,554.32                    -                        1,554.32               12.76              1,567.08               
Remeasurement of Defined Employee Benefit Plan -                        -                          (106.48)                     -                        (106.48)                 -                  (106.48)                 
Exchange differences in translating the financial 
statements of foreign operations -                        -                          -                            8.63                      8.63                      0.18                8.81                      

Balance as at March 31, 2019 190.00                  2.22                        3,986.01                    20.86                    4,199.09               20.28              4,219.38               
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Profit for the Year -                        -                          1,169.51                    -                        1,169.51               17.36              1,186.88               
Remeasurement of Defined Employee Benefit Plan -                        -                          (289.09)                     -                        (289.09)                 -                  (289.09)                 
Exchange differences in translating the financial 
statements of foreign operations -                        -                          -                            35.79                    35.79                    2.88                38.67                    

Total 190.00                  2.22                        4,866.44                    56.64                    5,115.31               40.53              5,155.84               
Contributions and Distributions

Equity Dividend -                        (99.82)                       (99.82)                  (99.82)                  
Tax on Distributed Profits -                        (17.12)                       (17.12)                  (17.12)                  

Total (116.94)                     (116.94)                 (116.94)                 
Balance as at March 31, 2020 190.00                  2.22                        4,749.50                    56.64                    4,998.37               40.53              5,038.90               

The accompanying notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our Report of even date
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACOUNTANTS
Firm Registration Number 104607W/W100166

FARHAD M. BHESANIA K.A. PALIA M.M. PARPIA AJAY PIMPARKAR
PARTNER Chairman Director Chief Executive Officer
Membership Number 127355 (DIN: 00281971) (DIN: 00118333)
Place: Mumbai
Dated:  

Total Other  
Equity

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Reserves & Surplus

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Particulars

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

 Attributable to 
Owners of the 

Parent 

 Non-
Controlling 

Interest 

 Foreign Currency 
Translation 

Reserve (FCTR) 



A. Group overview

B. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

a

b  Use of Estimates, Judgements & Assumptions

(i)
(ii)

(iii)
(iv)
(v)

(vi)
(vii)

c Measurement of fair values

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is
categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Applicable discount rate.

The Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the financial instruments to be measured at fair values.

The Group has an established control framework with respect to measurement of fair values. The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs. The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information such as broker
quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the
conclusions that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be
classified.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial assumptions.
Fair valuation of employee share options, key assumptions made with respect to expected volatility and dividend yield.
Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies, key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.
Recognition of deferred tax assets.
Fair value of financial instruments.

Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee, which is the functional currency of the Holding Company. All financial information has been
rounded to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of Measurement
The Ind AS Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention and on accrual method of accounting, except

for certain financial assets and liabilities, including financial instruments which have been measured at fair value as described below and defined benefit

plans which have been measured on the basis of actuarial valuation as required by relevant Ind ASs.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions in the application of accounting policies that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The Management believes that the
estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised prospectively. Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and assumptions that have the most
significant effect to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, are included in the following notes: 

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

1   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Godrej Infotech Limited ('the Holding Company') including its subsidiaries collectively referred to as ("the Group") is a leading provider in consulting,
technology, outsourcing and next-generation services. Along with its subsidiaries, the Company provides Business IT services; Consulting and systems
integration & implementation, and support services; Products, business platforms and solutions to accelerate intellectual property-led innovation; and
offerings in the areas of Analytics, Cloud, and Digital Transformation.
The Holding Company is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at Pirojshanagar, Vikhroli (West),
Mumbai - 400 079. 

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 to be read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. The Group’s Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 comprises of the
Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Changes in Equity and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The
Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2020 are approved by the Board of Directors on _______ .

Current versus non-current classification:
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III
to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time taken between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
and cash equivalent, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of the classification of assets and liabilities into current
and non-current.

Determination of the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020



C Recent Accounting Developments

D Critical Accounting Estimates
a.  Revenue recognition

b.  Income taxes

c.  Property, plant and equipment

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the expected
contract estimates at the reporting date.

The Group's major tax jurisdictions are in India. Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including amount
expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Holding Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is
derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual
values of company's assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end.
The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in
technology.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification which would have been
applicable from April 1, 2020.



E. Significant Accounting Policies

a. Business Combination

b. Subsidiaries

c. Transactions eliminated on consolidation

d. Acquisition of non-controlling interests

e. Basis of Consolidation
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

The Group accounts for each business combination (other than common control transactions) by applying the acquisition method. The acquisition date is the
date on which control is transferred to the acquirer. Judgment is applied in determining the acquisition date and determining whether control is transferred
from one party to another.

The Group measures goodwill as of the applicable acquisition date at excess of the fair value of the consideration transferred, including the recognised
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, less the net recognised amount (measured at fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities (including contingent liabilities in case such a liability represents a present obligation and arises from a past event, and its fair value can be
measured reliably) assumed. When the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the consideration transferred, a
bargain purchase gain is recognised as capital reserve on consolidation.

Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisitions of non-controlling interests are accounted for as transactions with equity holders in their capacity as equity holders. The difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.

Subsidiaries are all entities that are controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Group is exposed to, or has the ability to affect those returns
through power over the entity. In assessing control, potential voting rights are considered only if the rights are substantive. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in these consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. For the purpose
of preparing these consolidated financial statements, the accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to align them with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Upon loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other components of equity
related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in the consolidated statement of Profit & Loss. If the Group
retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost and the differential is recognised in
Statement of profit or loss. Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity accounted investee depending on the level of influence retained.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in full while preparing
these consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains or losses arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the
investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee.

Acquisition of some or all of the non-controlling interest (“NCI”) is accounted for as a transaction with equity holders in their capacity as equity holders.
Consequently, the difference arising between the fair value of the purchase consideration paid and the carrying value of the NCI is recognized as goodwill.
The associated cash flows are classified as financing activities.

The consolidated financial statements relate to Godrej Infotech Limited and its subsidiaries.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control over a subsidiary.

The financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiary Companies have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by adding together like items of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Intragroup balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions,
are fully eliminated while preparing these consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements of the subsidiary companies used in the consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as that of the Company except for

LBD Godrej Infotech NV whose reporting period is calendar year.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared by adopting uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020



f. Property, Plant & Equipment
(i)

-
-

(ii) Depreciation

(iii)

g.

h.

i. Financial Instruments

Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method over the estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment prescribed under Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013 on pro rata basis. In cases, where the useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule II, they are based on internal technical
evaluation. 

Leasehold land is amortised equally over the period of lease. 

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Disposal or Retirement
Property, plant and equipment are derecognised either on disposal or when no economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss
arising from disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year of occurrence.

Impairment of non-financial assets

its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates.
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components)

of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably.

When significant parts of Property, Plant and Equipment are required to be replaced, the Group derecognises the replaced part and recognises the new part
with its own associated useful life and it is depreciated accordingly.

Depreciable amount for property, plant and equipment is the cost of property, plant and equipment less its estimated residual value. 

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that the assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of impairment loss (if any). 

If the recoverable amount of asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of an asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investment in Subsidiaries
Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries are recorded at cost less accumulated impairment, if any, and reviewed for impairment at each reporting date.
Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On
disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to financial asset of one entity and financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost net of tax credit availed less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Recognition and Measurement



I. Financial Assets

(i)

(ii)

-
-
-

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii) Derecognition

-
-

(viii) Impairment of financial assets

-
- Trade receivables

The Group applies ‘Simplified Approach’ for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit exposure:
Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at amortised cost e.g. loans, deposits and bank balance

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime expected credit loss at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

Financial assets as Equity Investments
All equity instruments other than investment in subsidiaries and associate are initially measured at fair value; the Group may, on initial recognition, 
irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCI or FVTPL.

The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. A fair value change on an equity instrument is recognised as other income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Group has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes excluding dividends, on an equity

instrument measured at FVOCI are recognised in OCI. Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised (i.e. removed from the
Group’s balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Financial asset at Fair Value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved

by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are
recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial asset at Fair Value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
A financial asset which are not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all
changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets   

Financial assets at amortised cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows and the contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment,
if any. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair
value on initial recognition. 

Subsequent measurement and classification
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the financial assets are classified into three categories: 
Financial assets at amortised cost

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
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II. Financial Liabilities

(i) Classification

(ii)

(iii) Loans and borrowings

(iv) Derecognition

III.

e. Cash and cash equivalent

f.
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

g. Revenue recognition 

(i) Sale of software products / licenses

(ii) Sale of service – implementation (Fixed Price contracts)

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made.

Contingent Assets
Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial statements. Contingent Assets if any, are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

The Group derives revenues mainly from software development and related services and from trading of third party licenses. 

Revenue from the sale of third party software products / licenses which do not require any significant modification is recognised upon delivery i.e. “point in
time”, which is when the absolute right to use passes to the customer and the Group does not have any material remaining service obligations.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities

Revenue from third party software implementation contracts which does not requires any significant customisation, which are generally time bound fixed
price contracts, is recognised over the life of the contract using the percentage-of-completion method, with the contract milestone determining the degree of
completion. 

Revenue in excess of billings i.e. the Group’s right to consideration in exchange of products or services that the Group has transferred to a customer is
recognised as contract asset in the balance sheet;

To the extent billings are in excess of revenue recognised i.e. there is obligation on the Group to transfer products or services to a customer, the excess is
reported as unearned i.e. contract liability in the balance sheet.

When there is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. Efforts or cost
expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity.

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The Group classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED
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After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and transactions costs. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset

the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.



(iii) Sale of service – consultancy (Time & Material)

(iv) After sale service – consultancy (Time & Material)
Revenue from maintenance contracts is recognised on a pro-rata basis over the period of the contract.

(v) Commission

(vi) Other income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

h.  Employee Benefits
i.

ii. Post-employment benefits:
 Defined contribution plans

Defined benefit plans

iii. Other long-term employee benefits

i. Borrowing Cost

j. Foreign currency transactions / translations

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Gains or losses, resulting from the settlement
(actual realization /payment) of such transactions and from the translation of monetary current assets and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies into rupees at the year-end exchange rates, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary items like fixed assets, inventories
and investments in equity shares, which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction. The Group’s forward exchange contracts are not held for trading or speculation; the discount or premium arising from the difference
between the forward rate and the spot rate at the inception of such a contract is amortized as income or expense over the period of the contract. Any profit or
loss arising from such contracts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on
curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the
settlement occurs.
However, the Rules of the Holding Company's Provident Fund (PF) administered by an approved Trust, require that if the Board of Trustees is unable to
pay interest at the rate declared for the Employees’ Provident Fund by the Government under para 60 of the Employees’ Provident Fund Scheme, 1952, for
the reason that the return  on investment is less or for any other reason, then the deficiency shall be made good by the Group.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in
the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Other employee benefits include leave encashment/long-term compensated absences schemes.

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and is measured with reference to the effective
interest rate applicable to the respective borrowing.

Borrowing costs, allocated to qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating to construction / development of the

qualifying asset are capitalized upto the time all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready to its intended use or sale.

Short term employee benefits (payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service)
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided. The Group’s contributions paid/payable to
Managerial Superannuation Fund, Employees’ State Insurance Scheme, Employees’ Pension Schemes, 1995 and other funds, are determined under the
relevant approved schemes and/or statutes, and are recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee
renders the related service. There are no further obligations other than the  contributions payable to the approved trusts/appropriate authorities.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.
The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. 
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of
the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in OCI. Net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) is
computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability (asset), to the net defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial year
after taking into account any changes as a result of contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When (or as) the Group as an agent satisfies a performance obligation, the Group recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to which it
expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or services to be provided by the other party.

Revenue from contracts priced on a time and material basis is recognised as services are rendered and as related costs are incurred.
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k. Leases  

(i)
(ii)

l

i.

(i) 
(ii) 

ii.

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii)

a.
b.

 
m. Earnings Per Share

n. Segment Reporting

Deferred tax asset / liabilities in respect of on temporary differences which originate and reverse during the tax holiday period are not recognised. Deferred
tax assets / liabilities in respect of temporary differences that originate during the tax holiday period but reverse after the tax holiday period are recognised.
Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed tax losses and tax depreciation are recognised only to the extent that there is virtual certainty supported by convincing
evidence of their realisation and on other items when there is reasonable certainty of realisation. The tax effect is calculated on the accumulated timing
differences at the year-end based on the tax rates and laws enacted or substantially enacted on the balance sheet date.
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) Credit Entitlement is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Group will
pay normal income tax during the specified period in which such credit can be carried forward for set-off. The carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement
is reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit after taxes attributable to equity shareholders for the year, with the weighted
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) which is a
single business segment in IT products and services. The CODM, being the Chief Executive Officer assesses the financial performance and position of the
Company and makes strategic decisions.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits

will be available against which they can be used.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:
the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and
the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:
temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss;
temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and associates to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and
taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or
items recognised directly in equity or in OCI.
Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable
in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising
from dividends.
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Group:
 has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains a lease at the inception of the contract. Leases of assets (other than short term leases or leases for which the

underlying asset is of low value) are recognised if the lease contract conveys the right to the Group to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration. A contract conveys the right to control the used of an identified asset for a period of time, if throughout the period of

lease, the Group has both of the following:

At the date of commencement of lease, the Group recognises a Right-Of-Use (“ROU”) asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in
which it is a lessee except for leases for a term of twelve months or less (short term leases) and low value leases. For short term leases and low value leases,
the Group recognises the lease payments as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend
or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that they
will be exercised.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or

before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from
the commencement date to the end of the lease term. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date discounted using the the incremental borrowing rate. 
The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments or if
Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero

Income Tax
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The right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset. 
The right to direct the use of the identified asset. 



2. Property, Plant and Equipment

Particulars
 Furniture and 

Fixtures 
Office Equipment Computer Vehicle Total

As at March 31, 2020
As at April 01, 2019 100.31                          29.12                              21.56                          -                              150.99                            
Additions 1.74                              3.01                                9.35                            0.09                            14.19                              
Disposals -                               2.37                                -                              -                              2.37                                
Foreign Exchange Translation Difference -                               -                                  0.11                            -                              0.11                                
As at March 31, 2020 102.05                          29.77                              31.02                          0.09                            162.93                            
Accumulated Depreciation
Upto April 01, 2019 27.04                            14.22                              10.98                          -                              52.23                              
For the year 11.30                            5.10                                7.52                            0.00                            23.91                              
Disposals -                               2.37                                -                              -                              2.37                                
Foreign Exchange Translation Difference -                               -                                  0.08                            -                              0.08                                
Upto March 31, 2020 38.33                            16.94                              18.57                          0.00                            73.85                              

Net Block as at March 31, 2020 63.72                            12.82                              12.45                          0.08                            89.08                              

 Capital Work-in-Progress as at March 
31, 2020 

-                               -                                  -                              -                              22.04                              

As at March 31, 2019
Upto April 01, 2018 72.23                            19.61                              35.41                          -                              127.25                            
Additions 33.30                            10.21                              2.72                            -                              46.23                              
Disposals 5.23                              0.70                                16.71                          -                              22.64                              
Foreign Exchange Translation Difference 0.01                              -                                  0.14                            -                              0.15                                
As at March 31, 2019 100.31                          29.12                              21.56                          -                              150.99                            
Accumulated Depreciation
Upto April 01, 2018 23.06                            10.63                              20.68                          -                              54.37                              
For the year 9.07                              4.28                                6.94                            -                              20.29                              
Disposals 5.10                              0.70                                16.71                          -                              22.51                              
Foreign Exchange Translation Difference -                               -                                  0.07                            -                              0.07                                
Upto March 31, 2019 27.04                            14.22                              10.98                          -                              52.23                              

Net Block as at March 31, 2019 73.28                            14.91                              10.58                          -                              98.76                              

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020



As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

3 Trade Receivables
Unsecured and Considered Doubtful 188.22                  168.21                  
Less: Allowances for Doubtful Receivables (188.22)                 (168.21)                 

-                        -                        
3.1

3.2

3.3
Balance as at Beginning of the Year 168.21                  294.34                  
Add: Created during the Year 79.33                    58.06                    
Less: Amount Realised during the Year 59.32                    106.09                  
Less: Written Off during the Year -                        78.11                    
Balance as at end of the Year 188.22                  168.21                  

4 Loans
Unsecured and considered good - Non Current Deposits 18.71                    8.83                      

18.71                    8.83                      

5 Deferred Tax Asset and Tax Expense
(a) Movement in Deferred Tax Balances

(i) Particulars
 As at                  

March 31, 2020 
 Recognised in 
Profit or Loss 

 Recognised
in OCI Net

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) 
Property, Plant and Equipment 9.50                     (5.83)                    -                        3.66                      
Employee Benefits 103.83                 10.81                   (43.75)                   70.90                    
Other Items 40.25                   (2.19)                    8.73                      46.79                    
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 153.58                 2.79                     (35.02)                   121.35                  

(ii) Particulars
 As at                 

March 31, 2019 
 Recognised in 
Profit or Loss 

 Recognised
in OCI  Net 

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) 
Property, Plant and Equipment 10.17                   (0.68)                    -                        9.50                      
Employee Benefits 72.94                   (12.85)                  43.75                    103.83                  
Other Items 95.34                   (52.94)                  (2.15)                     40.25                    
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 178.44                 (66.47)                  41.60                    153.58                  

(b) Tax expense recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Current Tax
In respect of Current Year 384.58                  566.10                  
Prior period tax adjustments 65.83                    -                        

450.40                  566.10                  
Deferred Tax
Origination and reversal of Tax on Temporary differences (4.86)                     66.47                    

(4.86)                     66.47                    
Tax Expense for the year 445.54                  632.57                  

(c) Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Particulars

 Before Tax 
 Tax (Expense) 

Benefit  Net of Tax  Before Tax 
 Tax (Expense) 

Benefit  Net of Tax 
Remeasurements of Defined Benefit 
Liability/ (Asset) (245.34)                (43.75)               (289.09)                (150.23)                43.75                    (106.48)                 Exchange differences in translating the 
financial statements of foreign 
operations 29.94                   8.73                  38.67                   10.96                   (2.15)                     8.81                      
Total (215.40)                (35.02)               (250.42)                (139.27)                41.60                    (97.67)                   
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INR (In Lakhs)

 Net Balance                  
as at              

March 31, 2019 

 Net Balance                
as at                   

April 01, 2018 

 For the year ended March 31, 2020  For the year ended March 31, 2019 

No trade or other receivables are due from Directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other
receivables are due from firms or private companies respectively, in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

The Company has used practical expedient by computing expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables by taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience and adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss is based on ageing of the days the receivables are due and the expected credit
loss rate. The Company is still pursuing the recovery of the receivables for which allowance is made for doubtful debts.

The movement in allowance for doubtful receivables is as follows:

Movement during the year

Movement during the year



(d) Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Profit Before Tax 1,632.42               2,199.65               
Tax rate 25.17% 29.12%
Expected Income Tax Expense 410.85                  640.54                  
Tax effect of:
Prior period tax adjustments 68.35                    -                        
Effect of tax provision at subsidiaries (72.71)                   (58.03)                   
Capital Gains 15.01                    -                        
Property, Plant and Equipment 5.83                      0.68                      
Employee Benefits (10.81)                   12.85                    
Income Exempt from tax (10.06)                   (22.48)                   
Non-Deductible expenses (44.73)                   (8.64)                     
Impact of Consolidation Adjustments 78.02                    17.70                    
Other Items (Provision for Doubtful Debts) 3.03                      52.94                    
Impact of Fair Value Adjustments 2.77                      (2.99)                     
Tax expense recognised 445.54                  632.57                  

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

6 Income Tax Assets (Net)
Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source (Net) 525.53                  106.41                  

525.53                  106.41                  

7 Other non - current assets
Prepaid Expenses - Non Current Asset 1.01                      1.20                      
Refund from Government Authorities 107.37                  107.37                  

108.38                  108.58                  

8 Inventories
Stock-in-trade -                        1.45                      

-                        1.45                      

9 Investments
Unquoted, carried at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Investments in Mutual funds
(a) 30,757.363 units of Aditya Birla Overnight fund - Regular Plan - Growth 331.63                  -                        
(b) 31,065.540 units of DSP Overnight Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 331.59                  -                        
(c) 3,08,118.462 units of ICICI Prudential Overnight Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 331.54                  -                        
(d) 31,114.862 units of Kotak Overnight Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 331.44                  -                        
(e) 3,10,219.316 units of Nippon India Overnight Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 332.09                  -                        
(f) 10,284.944 units of SBI overnight Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 331.64                  -                        
(g) 12,216.758 units of UTI overnight Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 331.38                  -                        
(h) 21,633.031 units of Reliance Liquid Fund - Daily Dividend -                        330.84                  
(i) 98,67,437.509 units of Kotak Saving Fund - Daily Dividend -                        995.01                  

2,321.30               1,325.86               

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments and Market Value thereof 2,321.30               1,325.86               
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of Investments -                        -                        

10 Trade Receivables
Unsecured, Considered Good 2,583.80               3,280.00               

2,583.80               3,280.00               

11 Cash and Cash Equivalents
a)  Balances with Banks on Current Accounts 2,613.21               1,690.44               
b)  Cash on Hand 0.05                      0.16                      

2,613.26               1,690.61               

12 Loans
Unsecured and considered good - Current Deposits 17.63                    7.18                      

17.63                    7.18                      

13 Other Current Financial Assets
Contract Asset
(a) Unbilled Revenue 198.91                  430.97                  
(b) Derivative Asset -                        4.99                      

198.91                  435.96                  

14 Other Current Assets
(a) Prepaid Expenses - Current Asset 83.46                    39.33                    
(b) Advance Payment to Suppliers & Others 83.88                    219.70                  
(c) Others 75.36                    101.78                  

242.71                  360.82                  

INR (In Lakhs)

INR (In Lakhs)
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As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

15 Equity Share Capital
(a) Authorised:

1,000.00                   1,000.00                 

(b)  Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up :

9.70                          9.70                        
9.70                          9.70                        

(c) Reconciliation of number of Shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Year

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Equity Shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the Year 9,700                 9.70                     9,700                        9.70                        
Add: Addition during the year -                     -                        -                           -                          
Outstanding at the end of the Year 9,700                 9.70                     9,700                        9.70                        

(d) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares

(e) Shareholding Information

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. (Holding Company) 5,050                        5,050                      

(f) Details of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares in the Company are given below :

No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares % holding
Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 5,050                 52.06% 5,050                        52.06%
RKN Enterprises 930                    9.59% 930                           9.59%

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

16 Other Equity
(a) Securities Premium

As per previous Balance Sheet 190.00                      190.00                    
190.00                      190.00                    

(b) General Reserve
Securities Premium - Opening Balance 2.22                          2.22                        

2.22                          2.22                        

(d) Retained Earnings
Opening Balance 3,986.01                   2,538.18                 
Profit for the year 1,169.51                   1,554.32                 
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Liability/ (Assets) (289.09)                    (106.48)                   
Dividend including Dividend Distribution Tax (116.94)                    -                          
Closing Balance 4,749.50                   3,986.01                 

(c) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Opening Balance 20.86                        12.22                      
Additions during the year 35.79                        8.63                        

56.64                        20.86                      

4,998.37                   4,199.09                 
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INR (In Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2020

INR (In Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2019
Name of the Shareholder

10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each (Previous year 10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 
100/- each) 

 9,700 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each, fully paid up (Previous year  9,700 Equity Shares of 
Rs. 100/- each, fully paid up)

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

The Holding Company has only one class of shares having par value of INR 100 per share. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one
vote per share. The Holding Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend if proposed by the Board of Directors
is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the
holders of Equity Shares are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Holding Company after distribution of all preferential
amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. 

Equity Shares held by

(No. of Shares)



16.1 Nature and Purpose of Reserves
(a) Securities Premium

(b) Retained Earnings
Retained Earnings are the profit earned till date and distribution of dividend and provision for tax thereon.

17 Non-Controlling Interests
17.1 The details of Non-Controlling Interests in Subsidiaries are provided below:

As at              
March 31, 2020

As at            
March 31, 2019

As at              March 
31, 2020

As at            March 
31, 2019

LVD Godrej Infotech NV 17.36                 12.76                   40.53                        20.28                      
(Country of Incorporation - Belgium)
(Share of Non- Controlling Interests - 10%)

17.36                 12.76                   40.53                        20.28                      

17.2 Movement of Non-Controlling Interests

As at              March 
31, 2020

As at            March 
31, 2019

Balance at the beginning of the year 20.28                        7.34                        
Share of Profit / (Loss) for the year 17.36                        12.76                      
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences during the year 2.88                          0.18                        
Balance at the end of the year 40.53                        20.28                      

17.3 The summarised financial information of subsidiary with non-controlling interest are as follows:
The summarised financial information of subsidiary - LVD Godrej Infotech NV below represents amounts before intra group eliminations.

As at              March 
31, 2020

As at            March 
31, 2019

Non-current assets -                           -                          
Current assets 797.84                      592.61                    
Non-current liabilities -                           -                          
Current liabilities 392.51                      379.39                    
Equity attributable to the owners 364.80                      192.94                    
Non-controlling interests 40.53                        20.28                      
Total income 1,808.95                   1,719.87                 

1,559.90                   1,553.60                 
Profit / (loss) for the year 173.64                      127.59                    
Profit / (loss) attributable to owners of the Company 156.28                      114.83                    
Profit / (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests 17.36                        12.76                      

The securities premium account has been created to record the premium on issue of equity shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Total expenses

Particulars

INR (In Lakhs)

INR (In Lakhs)

INR (In Lakhs)

Particulars

Profit / (Loss) allocated to Non-
Controlling Interests

Accumulated Non-Controlling Interests

Name



As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

18 Non Current Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits

Provision for Unavailed Leave - Non Current 232.21                          167.55                   
232.21                          167.55                   

19 Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables
Payables for Goods & Services

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; 12.89                            -                        
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 240.36                          594.48                   

253.25                          594.48                   

20 Other Current Financial Liabilities
(a) Employee Benefit Payable 1,566.43                       1,456.27                
(b) Derivative Liability 9.36                              -                        
(c) Other Financial Liabilities 680.06                          389.97                   

(Other Financial liabilities include other payables and accrued expenses)
2,255.85                       1,846.24                

21 Other Current Liabilities
(a) Advance from customers 192.46                          211.30                   
(b) Income Received in Advance 544.80                          239.71                   
(c) Statutory Liabilities 346.05                          286.14                   

1,083.32                       737.15                   

22 Short Term Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits

Provision for Unavailed Leave - Current 43.96                            38.78                     
43.96                            38.78                     

23 Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
Provision for Tax

Provision for Tax (Net) -                               19.26                     
-                               19.26                     
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INR (In Lakhs)



For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

24 Revenue from Operations
(a) Sale of Products 1,109.61                  1,466.19                  
(b) Sale of Services 12,218.42                11,866.11                
(c) Other Operating Revenues:

(i) Commission 125.89                     121.60                     
Total Revenue from Operations 13,453.93                13,453.90                

25 Other Income
(a) Interest on Income Tax Refund 28.81                       -                           
(b) Dividend earned on Investments in Mutual Funds 39.99                       77.19                       
(c) Gain on Sale of Investments in Mutual Funds 2.18                         -                           
(d) Net gain on fair value changes on financial instruments classified as FVTPL 58.36                       -                           
(e) Other Non Operating Income

(i) Miscellaneous Income 23.81                       81.16                       
(ii) Profit on sale of assets 1.14                         0.38                         

(iii) Gain on Foreign Currency Transactions 83.68                       -                           
(iv) Fair Value Gain on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 1.65                         0.20                         
(v) Derivatives (Loss)/Gain on Fair value changes at fair value through profit or loss (14.35)                      10.01                       

Total Other Income 225.26                     168.94                     

26 Cost of Sales/ Service
(a) Purchase of Product & Licenses 1,107.86                  1,048.06                  
(b) Purchase of Services 199.83                     221.73                     

Total Cost of Sales/ Service 1,307.69                  1,269.79                  

27 Employee Benefits Expense
(a) Salaries and Allowances 7,946.48                  7,373.25                  
(b) Contribution to Provident and other  Funds 373.93                     329.02                     
(c) Contribution to Gratuity 108.43                     99.58                       
(d) Staff Welfare Expenses 109.90                     90.38                       

Total Employee Benefits Expense 8,538.73                  7,892.23                  

27.1 Details of Employee Benefit Plan
(a) Defined Contribution Plan:

Amount contributed by the Holding Company to the Employees' Provident Fund
recognised as an expense and included under Employee Benefit Expense 281.59                     244.05                     
Employers' Contribution to ESIC -                           0.03                         

(b) Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity:
Contribution to Gratuity Fund

(i) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation:
Liability at the beginning of the year 942.45                     720.88                     
Interest Cost 65.59                       56.73                       
Current Service Cost 91.18                       87.88                       
Benefit Paid from the Fund (58.57)                      (77.54)                      
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic Assumptions (34.61)                      
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial Assumptions 218.21                     159.98                     
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience 50.70                       29.12                       
Liability at the end of the year 1,309.56                  942.45                     

(ii) Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet:
Liability at the end of the year (1,309.56)                 (942.45)                    
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 955.79                     694.67                     
Difference (353.77)                    (247.78)                    
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet (353.77)                    (247.78)                    

(iii) Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
Current Service cost 91.18                       87.88                       
Interest cost 65.59                       56.73                       
Expected return on plan assets (48.35)                      (47.07)                      
Total Expense recognised in the  Statement of Profit and Loss 108.43                     97.54                       

(iv) Expenses recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period 268.91                     154.49                     
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (23.57)                      (4.26)                        
Change in Asset Ceiling -                           -                           
Net (Income)/Expense For the Period recognised in OCI 245.34                     150.23                     
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INR (In Lakhs)

Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees on death or on separation/ termination in terms of the provisions of the 
Payment of Gratuity Act or as per the Group’s policy whichever is beneficial to the employees.
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.



(v)

Particulars
Discount Rate       
Salary escalation rate                                  
Attrition Rate                                              

Mortality Rate During Employment

(vi) Sensitivity analysis

Particulars
 Increase  Decrease   Increase  Decrease  

Discount Rate (1% movement)                   (61.98)                 68.83                       (38.27)                         41.95 
Salary escalation rate (1% movement)                     62.45                (57.71)                         39.60                       (36.93)
Attrition Rate (1% movement)                   (28.10)                 31.09                       (11.01)                         11.95 

(vii)

Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation: From the Fund
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years from the Reporting Date
1st Following Year
2nd Following Year
3rd Following Year
4th Following Year
5th Following Year
Sum of Years 6 to 10

(c) Other Long Term Employment Benefits

(i) Provisions in Balance Sheet:
Particulars
Short term 43,96,560.00           38,78,302.00           
Long Term 2,32,20,591.00        1,67,54,731.00        
Total Provisions in Balance Sheet 2,76,17,151.00        2,06,33,033.00        

(ii) Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss:
Expenses 90,13,111.75           61,64,018.77           
Total Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 90,13,111.75           61,64,018.77           

The leave encashment benefit is payable to all the eligible employees of the Group at the rate of daily salary as per current accumulation of leave days.

The Privilege leave encashment liability and amount charged to Statement of Profit and Loss determined on actuarial valuation using basis projected unit credit 
method are as under:.

                                                          157.76 
                                                          152.10 
                                                          180.34 
                                                          199.16 
                                                          481.60 

Sensitivity analysis is an analysis which will give the movement in liability if the assumptions were not proved to be true on different count. This only signifies the 
change in the liability if the difference between assumed and the actual is not following the parameters of the sensitivity analysis. 

The expected future cash flows in respect of gratuity as at March 31, 2020 were as follows:

 Amount 

                                                          160.26 

 Indian Assured Lives Mortality 
(2006-08) 

 Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) 

A quantitative sensitivity analysis on Defined Benefit Obligation for significant assumption as at March 31, 2020  is shown below:
 March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019 

5.76% 6.96%
15.00% 12.00%
18.00% 18.00%

The Principal assumptions used in determining the present value of defined benefit obligation for the Group's plan are given below:

 March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019 
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INR (In Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
28 Finance Costs

Interest on Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 0.97                            -                              
Total Finance Costs 0.97                            -                              

29 Other Expenses
(a) Establishment Expenses and Other Expenses 260.31                        280.33                        
(b) Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 705.08                        736.68                        
(c) Rent 320.74                        246.61                        
(d) Legal & Professional Expenses 484.43                        600.84                        
(e) Business Promotion Expenses -                              0.85                            
(f) Software Expenses 2.30                            0.28                            
(g) Communication Expenses 35.91                          42.23                          
(h) Auditor's Remuneration 21.77                          18.98                          
(i) Provision for doubtful debts/ Provision written back 19.18                          (126.30)                       
(j) Repairs & Maintenance - Others 22.84                          37.99                          
(k) Commission Expenses 233.01                        249.83                        
(l) Bank Charges 19.57                          18.89                          

(m) Insurance 6.65                            5.69                            
(n) Director's Sitting Fees 10.59                          1.35                            
(o) Corporate Social Responsibility 27.65                          18.94                          
(p) Loss on Foreign Currency Transactions -                              12.66                          
(q) General Expenses 3.98                            5.48                            
(r) Bad Debts Written Off -                              91.01                          

Total Other Expenses 2,174.01                     2,242.34                     

29.1   Rent

30 Earnings Per Share
(a) Profit after Taxes attributable to Equity Shareholders 1,186.88                     1,567.08                     
(b) Number of Equity Shares, Face Value of Rs. 100 each Issued and Outstanding:
   (i) At the end of the Year 9,700                          9,700                          
  (ii) Weighted Average number of Shares Outstanding during the Year 9,700                          9,700                          
(c) Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (a/b) (Rs.) 12,235.85                   16,155.42                   

INR (In Lakhs)

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Expense relating to short-term leases amounts to Rs. 169.59 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 137.48 lakhs) and leases of low value assets
amounts to 151.15 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 109.13 lakhs). Commitment in relation to these contracts amounts to Rs. 181.49 lakhs
(Previous year Rs. 129.40 lakhs)



31 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

(a) Accounting classification and fair values

INR (In Lakhs)

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets 

Non-current
Deposits -                      -                       18.71                   18.71                 -                  -                  -          -                    

Current
Investments (Mutual Fund) 2,321.30             -                       -                       2,321.30            2,321.30         -                  -          2,321.30           
Trade receivables -                      -                       2,583.80              2,583.80            -                  -                  -          -                    
Cash and cash equivalents -                      -                       2,613.26              2,613.26            -                  -                  -          -                    
Others -                      -                       216.55                 216.55               -                  -                  -          -                    

2,321.30             -                       5,433.31              7,753.61            2,321.30         -                  -          2,321.30           
Financial liabilities 

Current
Trade Payables 253.25                 253.25               
Others -                      -                       2,255.85              2,255.85            -                  -                  -          -                    

-                      -                       2,509.09              2,509.09            -                  -                  -          -                    

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets 

Non-current
Deposits -                      -                       8.83                     8.83                   -                  -                  -          -                    

Current
Investments (Mutual Fund) 1,325.86             -                       -                       1,325.86            1,325.86         -                  -          1,325.86           
Trade receivables -                      -                       3,280.00              3,280.00            -                  -                  -          -                    
Cash and cash equivalents -                      -                       1,690.61              1,690.61            -                  -                  -          -                    
Others -                      -                       443.14                 443.14               -                  -                  -          -                    

1,325.86             -                       5,422.59              6,748.44            1,325.86         -                  -          1,325.86           
Financial liabilities 

Current
Trade Payables 594.48                 594.48               
Others -                      -                       1,846.24              1,846.24            -                  -                  -          -                    

-                      -                       2,440.72              2,440.72            -                  -                  -          -                    
 FVTPL - Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
 FVOCI - Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income

(b) Fair value hierarchy    

The categories used are as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets and liabilities in an active markets. 

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

(c) Measurement of Fair Value

   (i) 

  (ii) 

  (iii) 

(d) Risk Management Framework

   (i) Credit Risk

Exposure to credit risk:

Debtor's Ageing
Particulars
more than 6 months
others

168.21                                        
                                             2,583.80 

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values are consistent in all the years. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

The fair values of investments in mutual fund units is based on the net asset value (‘NAV’) as stated by the issuers of mutual funds. Net asset value represents the price at which the issuer
will issue further units in the mutual fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors. 

The Management assesses that fair values of Trade Receivables, Cash and Cash equivalents, Loans, Trade Payables, Other current liabilities and Other financial liabilities (current),
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values since the Group does
not anticipate that the carrying amount would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled.

The Group's business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely credit risk, liquidity risk and market risks. Market risks comprise of currency risk and interest rate risk. The
Group's Senior Management and Key Managerial Personnel have the ultimate responsibility for managing these risks. The Group has a process to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Group, to set appropriate risk limits and to control and to monitor risks and adherence to these limits. Risk Management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and Group's activities. Further, Audit Committee undertakes regular reviews of Risk Management Controls and Procedures.

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

The Carrying amount of financial assets represents maximum exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk was Rs. 6,802.61 lakhs and Rs. 5,941.06 lakhs as at March 2020
and March 2019 respectively, being the total of the carrying amount of balances with banks, security deposits,trade receivables and other financial assets.

Trade receivables are tested for impairment on a specific basis after considering the sanctioned credit limits, security like letters of credit, security deposit collected etc. and expectations
about future cash flows. The provision matrix at the end of the reporting period is as follows.

188.22                                               
                                      3,280.00 
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The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value
information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

As at March 31, 2020
Carrying amount Fair value

As at March 31, 2019
Carrying amount Fair value

Credit risk is the risk of loss that counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. The Group's exposure to credit risk arises primarily from security deposit and other
receivables which the Group minimises such risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.

Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk principally consists of trade receivables, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and other financial
assets.

The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note (a) above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy gives 
the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).



  (ii) Liquidity Risk

INR (In Lakhs)
Particulars Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years 5 years and 

above
Total Carrying 

amount
As at March 31, 2020
Non interest bearing (Trade payable, deposits 
Trade Payables 253.25                -                       -                       253.25               253.25            
Others 2,255.85             -                       -                       2,255.85            2,255.85         
As at March 31, 2019
Non interest bearing (Trade payable, deposits 
Trade Payables 594.48                -                       -                       594.48               594.48            
Others 1,846.24             -                       -                       1,846.24            1,846.24         

  (iii) Market Risk

  (iv) 

Exposure to currency risk
The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March, 2020 and 31 March, 2019 are as below:

Currency 

Financial assets
As at March 31, 

2020
As at March 31, 

2019
As at March 31, 

2020
As at March 

31, 2019
Trade and other receivables USD 10.68                   11.24                                   806.40              778.18 

EURO 4.71                     3.82                                     391.37              297.18 
AED 0.54                     0.21                                       11.16                  3.88 
GBP -                       0.01                                             -                    0.85 
SGD 0.32                                           0.21                   16.79                10.92 

                    16.25                     15.49              1,225.72           1,091.00 
Less: Hedged Exposures USD                       2.33                       7.63                 175.78              528.16 

EURO                       0.42                       0.98                   35.23                76.58 
                      2.75                       8.61                 211.01              604.74 
                    13.50                       6.87              1,014.71              486.26 

Currency 

Financial liabilities 
As at March 31, 

2020
As at March 31, 

2019
As at March 31, 

2020
As at March 

31, 2019
Trade and other payables USD                       3.63 4.61                     273.74               319.09            
(includes foreign currency AED                       0.11 0.28                     2.29                   5.35                

SAR                       2.46 -                       -                     -                  
NZD                          -   0.02                     49.35                 0.90                

                      6.20                       4.91                 325.38              325.34 
Less: Hedged Exposures USD                          -                            -                           -                        -   

                      6.20                       4.91                 325.38              325.34 

The following significant exchange rates have been applied during the year.

(Rupees) 31-03-2020 31-03-2019
USD 1 75.50                      69.23                      

EUR1 83.17                      77.83                      

GBP1 93.29                      90.43                      

AED1 20.57                      18.83                      

SAR1 20.05                      19.23                      

SGD1 52.40                      51.13                      

Sensitivity analysis

Effect in Rs. Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
USD - 3% movement                  (10.71)                     10.71                       2.07                   (2.07)
EUR - 3% movement                  (10.68)                     10.68                     (6.62)                     6.62 
GBP - 3% movement                         -                            -                       (0.03)                     0.03 

(e) Capital Management

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against US dollars at 31st March would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in US
dollars and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact
of forecast sales and purchases.

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Profit or loss Profit or loss

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rate and interest rates will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. The company is not exposed to interest rate
risk as there are no borrowings.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group has foreign currency trade
receivables and is therefore exposed to foreign exchanged risk. The company mitigates the foreign exchange risk by setting appropriate exposure limits, periodic monitoring of the exposure
and hedging exposure using derivatives financial instruments like foreign exchange forward contracts. The exchanged rates have been volatile in the recent years and may continue to be
volatile in the future. Hence, the operating results and financials of the company may be impacted due to volatility of the rupee against foreign currencies.

Amount in Foreign Currency Equivalent amount (Rupees)

Year-end spot rate

Amount in Foreign Currency Equivalent amount (Rupees)

Liquidity and interest risk tables:

The following table detail the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. The contractual
maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Group may be required to pay.

The Group monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade and other receivables together with expected cash outflows on trade and other payables.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have
sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses.

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to maintain an efficient capital structure and to maximise shareholder’s value. The Group has no borrowings during the year.

Currency Risk
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32 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

A. Financial Guarantees

B. Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debt

33  Related party disclosures as required by Ind AS - 24, "Related Party Disclosures", are given below:
A. Names of Related Parties and Nature of Relationships:

(a) Holding Company:
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. (holds 52.06% of the equity share capital of the company)

(b) Fellow Subsidiaries:
(i) Sheetak Inc.

(ii) Godrej (Singapore) Pte Ltd.
(iii) JT Dragon Pte. Ltd. (a wholly owned subsidiary of (ii) above)
(iv) Godrej (Vietnam) Co. Ltd. (a wholly owned subsidiary of (iii) above)
(v) Veromatic International BV

(vi) Godrej Americas Inc

(c) Post-Employment Benefit Trusts where the holding company exercises significant influence
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Employee's Gratuity Fund

 (ii) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Managerial Superannuation Fund
(iii) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Employee's Provident Fund

(d) Key Managerial Personnel Remuneration: 
(i) Mr. Ajay. R. Pimparkar (CEO).

(e) Non-Executive Directors entitled for sitting fees
(i) Dr. K. A. Palia

 (ii) Manu Parpia
(iii) K.K. Dastur

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

The Holding Company was issued Internet Service Provider (ISP) license on 17th April 2001, which was further amended to ISP-Internet
Telephony licence on 11th October 2002. The intent of obtaining the license was to provide Internet services to customers – though the primary
business was to provide services related to Information Technology. The said license was with Holding Company till 7th September 2015 when it
was submitted for cancellation.

During the financial year 2019-20, the Holding Company has received demand letters from Department of Telecommunication (DoT) amounting to
Rs. 121 cr (including interest and penalty up to the date of respective letters) for year 2006-07 to 2013-14 (except 2007-08) by adding non-telecom
revenue i.e., revenue related to Sale of ERP and its Implementation and Support charges as “Miscellaneous income” in Adjusted Gross Revenue
(AGR). The Holding Company has contested the demands before DoT and requested for their withdrawal, as the same are not payable in terms of
ISP license agreements and accordingly not considered in accounts.

In the light of recent judgment, dated 24.10.2019 of Hon’ble Supreme Court on the dispute between DoT and Telecom Service Operators (TSPs)
regarding interpretation of AGR, DoT vide communication dated 05.12.2019 requested submission of a comprehensive representation since all the
earlier demands are being re-examined in the light of  the Hon’ble Supreme Court’s Judgement. 

In the opinion of the management and based upon legal opinion received, the said judgement dated 24.10.2019 of Hon’ble Supreme Court is not
applicable to the Holding Company as the nature of license in case of telecom service providers is different and distinct from the licenses given to
the Holding Company.

Guarantees given by the Holding Company’s Bankers against counter-guarantees given by the Holding Company and guarantees given by Parent of
the Holding Company Rs. 22 lakhs (as at 31 March, 2019. Rs. 22 lakhs).



B. The details of transactions with related parties during the year are given below:
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(a) Common Expenses Shared (Gross)

(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd 426.36                          390.12                        

(b) Purchase of Materials
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 38.50                            25.06                          

(c) Purchase of Fixed Assets
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 29.75                            48.08                          

(d) Services Taken
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 70.92                            59.85                          

(e) Sales & Services Rendered
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 5,115.74                       4,453.54                     

(f) Dividend Paid
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 60.88                            -                              

(g) Key Managerial Personnel Remuneration: 
Mr. Ajay. R. Pimparkar (CEO). 113.29                          102.51                        

(h) Sitting Fees to Non-Executive Directors
(i) Dr. K. A. Palia 2.50                              0.25                            

 (ii) Manu Parpia 2.75                              0.25                            
(iii) K.K. Dastur 2.50                              0.50                            

C. The details of outstanding with related parties as at year end are given below:
As at As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(a) Guarantees Taken

(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 22.00                            22.00                          

(b) Trade and other Receivables
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 1,210.31                       1,683.00                     

D. Contribution to Post Employment Benefit Trusts, where the holding company exercises significant influence
(a) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Employee's Gratuity Fund

Contribution during the year 353.77                          247.78                        
(b) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Managerial Superannuation Fund

Contribution during the year 80.81                            66.62                          
(c) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Employee's Provident Fund

Contribution during the year 281.59                          244.05                        

34 Segment Reporting
(a)

(b) Information about products and services

(c) Information about geographical areas
 

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

The geographic information analyses the Group’s revenue and non-current assets by the Group’s country of domicile and other countries. In
presenting the geographical information, revenue in the disclosure below is based on the location of the product and service. Assets in the
disclosure are based on the geographic location of the respective non current assets.

INR (In Lakhs)

The revenue from India is Rs. 12,290.03 Lakhs (2018-19: Rs. 12,204.84 Lakhs) and from outside India is Rs. 1,163.90 Lakhs (2018-19: Rs.
1,249.06 Lakhs). Non-current assets other than financial instruments and deferred tax assets from India are Rs. 733.45 Lakhs (March 31, 2019: Rs.
304.98 Lakhs) and from outside India are Rs. 66.07 Lakhs (March 31, 2019: Rs. 63.26 Lakhs).

The Group is managed as a single operating unit that provides IT Products and Services, mainly ERP Consultancy and Software Services &
Solutions  and therefore, has only one reportable business segment.

General Information

 Factors used to identify the entity’s reportable segments, including the basis of organisation

The Group has revenues from external customers to the extent of Rs. 13,453.93 Lakhs (2018-19: Rs. 13,453.90 Lakhs)



35 Revenue from contracts with customers 

Revenue from Operations
(a) Sale of Products 1,109.61                    
(b) Sale of Services 12,218.42                  
(c) Other Operating Revenues 125.89                       

13,453.93                   

A. Contracts with customers

(a) revenue recognised from contracts with customers 13,453.93                  

188.22                       

B. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

Particulars
Revenue by operation At a point in time Over time Total
Product
Licenses 252.87                            -                           252.87                        
BREP 856.74                            -                           856.74                        

1,109.61                         -                           1,109.61                     

Services
Consultancy & Implementation Services -                                  10,188.34                 10,188.34                   
Cloud Services 996.61                            -                           996.61                        
AMC Services -                                  1,033.46                   1,033.46                     

996.61                            11,221.81                 12,218.42                   

Commission 125.89                            -                           125.89                        

125.89                            -                           125.89                        

Particulars
Revenue by geographical market At a point in time Over time Total

Domestic
Product 302.64                            302.64                        
Services 7,011.92                   7,011.92                     
Commission 78.76                              78.76                          
Cloud 395.77                            395.77                        
Total 777.17                            7,011.92                   7,789.09                     

Export
Product 806.98                            806.98                        
Services 4,209.89                   4,209.89                     
Commission 47.13                              47.13                          
Cloud 600.84                            600.84                        
Total 1,454.95                         4,209.89                   5,664.84                     

Total (A+B) 2,232.12                         11,221.81                 13,453.93                   

(b) any impairment losses recognised (in accordance with Ind AS 109) on any receivables or contract assets arising from 
an entity’s contracts with customers

Contract Type

Contract Type

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended March 31, 2019 based on the operation, 
geographical market and contract-type. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depict shows the nature, amount, timing and 
uncertainty of our revenues and cash flows that are affected by industry, market and  other economic factors.

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

INR (In Lakhs)

Disclosure of amount recognised as revenue from contracts with customers and impairment loss recognised in accordance with Ind AS 
109 is as under:

INR (In Lakhs)

The Group has identified a single reportable segment namely "IT Product and Services" as disclosed in Note 1.(E) (n)- "Segment Reporting" to
the Financial Statements. There is a further disclosure of revenue generated by geographical market which is provided only as per the specific
requirement of Ind AS 108 for a single reportable segment. 

INR (In Lakhs)



C. Information about major customers

D. Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations

Changes in contract asset are as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year 430.97                       
Revenue recognised during the year of the opening balance 272.92                       
Revenue reversed during the year of the opening balance 158.06                       
Revenue recognised during the year 0.13                           
Invoices raised during the year post Deferred Revenue 198.78                       
Balance at the end of the year 198.91                       

Changes in deferred revenue are as follows :
Balance at the beginning of the year 239.71                       
Revenue recognised that was included in the unearned and deferred revenue at the beginning of the year (239.71)                      
Increase due to invoicing during the year, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the year 544.80                       

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition

36 Group Information

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

(a) Direct Subsidiaries
(i) Godrej Infotech (Singapore) Pte Ltd. Singapore 100% 100%

 (ii) LVD Godrej Infotech NV. Belgium 90% 90%
(iii) Godrej Infotech Americas, Inc. United States of America 100% 100%

The following entities have been consolidated in the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements.

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

INR (In Lakhs)

The Group does not have revenue from transactions with a single external customer of 10 per cent or more of an entity’s revenues for the year
ended March 31, 2020.

Sr. 
No.

% of ownership interest either directly or 
indirectly through SubsidiariesCountry of 

Incorporation
Name of the Entity

The Group uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for each performance obligation. The Group allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation on the basis of standalone selling price of each product or service as mentioned in the contract.
Where standalone selling price is not available, the Group uses the expected cost plus margin approach to allocate the transaction price to each
distinct performance obligation.

The revenue for fixed-price contract is recognised using Percentage-Of-Completion Method (POCM). The Group uses judgement to estimate the
future cost to complete the contracts which is used to determine the percentage of completion of the performance obligation.

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as at the end of the
reporting period and an explanation as to when the Group expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as
given in Ind AS 115, the Group has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts where the revenue
recognized corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date, typically those contracts where
invoicing is on time and material basis. Remaining performance obligation estimates are subject to change and are affected by several factors,
including adjustments for currency.

The Group’s contracts with customers includes promise to transfer products / services to the customer. The Group assesses the products /
services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation
involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such deliverables.

Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price is the fixed amount charged to the customer.
Any consideration payable to the Group is adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the
customer. 



37

As % of 
Consolidated 

Net Assets
INR (In Lakhs)

As % of 
Consolidated 

Profit and Loss
INR (In Lakhs)

As % of 
Consolidated 

Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

INR (In Lakhs)

As % of 
Consolidated 

Total 
Comprehensive 

Income

INR (In Lakhs)

Holding Company
Godrej Infotech Ltd. 84.34             4,258.10             219.19              2,601.47              115.44                 (289.09)               246.93                2,312.38              

Foreign Subsidiaries
(i) Godrej Infotech (Singapore) Pte Ltd. 8.98               453.21                0.05                  0.59                     (7.41)                    18.55                   2.04                    19.14                   

 (ii) LVD Godrej Infotech NV. 8.03               405.33                13.17                156.28                 (6.88)                    17.22                   18.53                  173.49                 

(iii) Godrej Infotech Americas, Inc. 0.08               4.02                    0.28                  3.31                     (0.01)                    0.02                     0.35                    3.32                     

Total 101.43           5,120.66             232.68              2,761.64              101.15                 (253.30)             267.85                2,508.33              

(a) Consolidation eliminations/ 
adjustments (2.23)              (112.59)              (134.14)             (1,592.12)            -                       -                    (170.02)               (1,592)                 

(b) Non-Controlling Interests
Foreign Subsidiaries
LVD Godrej Infotech NV. 0.80               40.53                 1.46                  17.36                   (1.15)                    2.88                  2.16                    20.25                   

Total Non-Controlling Interest 0.80               40.53                 1.46                  17.36                   (1.15)                    2.88                  2.16                    20.25                   

Total Consolidated 100.00           5,048.60            100.00              1,186.88              100.00                 (250.42)             100.00                936.46                 

38 Previous years' figures have been regrouped / restated wherever necessary to conform to current year’s classification.

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Net Assets Share in Profit and Loss
Share in Other Comprehensive 

Income
Share in Total Comprehensive 

Income

Name of Entity in the Group
Sr. 
No.

Additional Information as required under Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, of Enterprises Consolidated as Subsidiary



(Amount in Lakhs)
Note As at As at 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
ASSETS

1. Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 86.03                              97.25                            
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 22.04                              -                               
(c) Financial Assets

(i) Investments in Subsidiaries 3 167.08                            167.08                          
(ii) Trade Receivables 4 -                                  -                               

(iii) Loans 5 18.71                              8.83                              
(d) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 6 120.51                            162.31                          
(e) Income Tax Assets (Net) 7 517.00                            99.15                            
(f) Other Non - Current Assets 8 108.38                            108.58                          
Total Non-Current Assets 1,039.75                         643.20                          

2. Current Assets
(a) Inventories 9 -                                  1.45                              
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 10 2,321.30                         1,325.86                       
(ii) Trade Receivables 11 2,648.23                         3,227.92                       

(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 1,473.75                         846.38                          
(iv) Loans 13 3.85                                -                               
(v) Others 14 169.69                            364.99                          

(c) Other Current Assets 15 197.71                            324.82                          
Total Current Assets 6,814.53                         6,091.42                       

TOTAL ASSETS 7,854.28                         6,734.62                       

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 16 9.70                                9.70                              
(b) Other Equity 17 4,248.40                         3,645.08                       

TOTAL EQUITY 4,258.10                         3,654.78                       

LIABILITIES
1. Non Current Liabilities

(a) Provisions 18 232.21                            167.55                          
Total Non Current Liabilities 232.21                            167.55                          

2. Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Trade Payables 19
12.85                              -                               

359.53                            428.24                          
(ii) Others 20 2,032.10                         1,787.93                       

(b) Other current liabilities 21 915.53                            657.34                          
(c) Provisions 22 43.96                              38.78                            
Total Current Liabilities 3,363.97                         2,912.29                       

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 7,854.28                         6,734.62                       

Significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our Report of even date
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACOUNTANTS
Firm Registration Number 104607W/W100166

FARHAD M. BHESANIA K.A. PALIA M.M. PARPIA AJAY PIMPARKAR
PARTNER Chairman Director Chief Executive Officer
Membership Number 127355 (DIN: 00281971) (DIN: 00118333)
Place: Mumbai
Dated:  

(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020



(Amount in Lakhs)
Note For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

I INCOME
1. Revenue from Operations 23 12,290.02                          12,204.84                           
2. Other Income 24 183.69                               153.62                                

TOTAL INCOME 12,473.71                          12,358.46                           

II EXPENSES
1. Cost of Sales/ Services 25 1,082.17                            1,084.42                             
2. Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-trade 9 1.45                                  (1.45)                                  
3. Employee Benefits Expense 26 8,199.26                            7,596.63                             
4. Finance Cost 27 0.97                                  -                                     
5. Depreciation and Amortization Expense 2 22.40                                19.33                                  
6. Other Expenses 28 1,782.76                            1,797.67                             

TOTAL EXPENSES 11,089.01                          10,496.60                           

III PROFIT BEFORE TAX 1,384.70                            1,861.86                             

IV TAX EXPENSE
Current Tax 6(b) 377.31                               508.07                                
Deferred Tax 6(b) (1.95)                                 66.46                                  
TOTAL TAX EXPENSE 375.36                               574.53                                

V PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,009.34                            1,287.33                             

VI OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss

1. Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans (245.34)                             (150.23)                              
2. Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss (43.75)                               43.75                                  

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (289.09)                             (106.48)                              

720.25                               1,180.85                             

VII EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE (Rs.)
Basic & Diluted 29 10,406                              13,271                               

Significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our Report of even date
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACOUNTANTS
Firm Registration Number 104607W/W100166

FARHAD M. BHESANIA K.A. PALIA M.M. PARPIA AJAY PIMPARKAR
PARTNER Chairman Director Chief Executive Officer
Membership Number 127355 (DIN: 00281971) (DIN: 00118333)
Place: Mumbai
Dated:  

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020



(Amount in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit Before Tax 1,384.70                         1,861.86                       
Adjustments for :
   Depreciation and amortisation expense 22.40                              19.33                            
   Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment (1.14)                               (0.38)                             
   Bad Debts Written Off -                                  78.11                            
   Provision for Doubtful Debts 13.56                              (126.30)                         
   Fair Valuation of Security Deposits 0.11                                0.06                              
   Dividend Earned on Investments (39.99)                             (77.19)                           
   Gain on Sale of Investments in Mutual Funds (2.18)                               -                                
   Net gain on fair value changes on financial instruments classified as FVTPL (58.36)                             -                                
   Interest on Income Tax Refund (28.81)                             -                                
   Foreign Exchange Difference loss/(gain) (41.66)                             25.11                            
   Actuarial Gains and Losses (245.34)                           (150.23)                         
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 1,003.30                         1,630.37                       
Adjustments for :
   Trade Receivables 607.79                            (1,296.42)                      
   Other Assets/ Receivables 310.21                            (213.16)                         
  Trade payable and Other liabilities 516.35                            305.36                          
  Cash Generated from Operations/ (used in operations) 2,437.65                         426.15                          
  Direct Taxes Paid (Incl. Tax Deducted at Source) Net of Refund (766.34)                           (394.50)                         
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities 1,671.31                         31.65                            

B.  Cash Flow From Investing Activities
  Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (33.22)                             (46.23)                           
  Sales of Property, Plant and Equipment 1.14                                0.51                              
  Dividend received 39.99                              77.19                            
  Gain on Sale of Investments in Mutual Funds 2.18                                -                                
  Net gain on fair value changes on financial instruments classified as FVTPL 58.36                              -                                
  Investment in Subsidiaries -                                  (6.90)                             

   Investment in Mutual Fund (Net) (995.44)                           136.26                          
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Investing Activities (927.00)                           160.83                          

C.  Cash Flow From Financing Activities
  Dividend Paid (99.82)                             -                                
  Dividend Distribution Tax (17.12)                             -                                
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing Activities (116.94)                           -                                

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalent 627.37                            192.48                          

Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalent 846.38                            653.90                          
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalent 1,473.75                         846.38                          

6,27,36,844                    1,92,47,315                  
Notes: 

The accompanying notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our Report of even date
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACOUNTANTS
Firm Registration Number 104607W/W100166

FARHAD M. BHESANIA K.A. PALIA M.M. PARPIA AJAY PIMPARKAR
PARTNER Chairman Director Chief Executive Officer
Membership Number 127355 (DIN: 00281971) (DIN: 00118333)
Place: Mumbai
Dated:  

The above Statement of Cash Flow includes INR 27.65 lakhs (Previous Year 2019: INR 18.94 lakhs) towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities 
(Refer Note 28.3).

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020



A.  Company overview

B. Basis of preparation of financial statements

a.

b.  Use of Estimates, Judgements & Assumptions

(i)
(ii)

(iii)
(iv)
(v)

(vi)
(vii)

c. Measurement of fair values

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

1. Significant Accounting Policies

Godrej Infotech Limited ('the Company') is a leading Company provider in consulting, technology, outsourcing and next-generation services. Along with its
subsidiaries, the Company provides Business IT services; Consulting and systems integration & implementation, and support services; Products, business
platforms and solutions to accelerate intellectual property-led innovation; and offerings in the areas of Analytics, Cloud, and Digital Transformation.

The Company is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at Pirojshanagar, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai -
400079. 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 to be read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. The Company’s Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 comprises of
the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Changes in Equity and Notes to Financial Statements. The Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020 are approved by the Board of Directors on August 03, 2020.

Current versus non-current classification:
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule
III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time taken between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
and cash equivalent, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of the classification of assets and liabilities into current
and non-current.

Determination of the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial assumptions.
Fair valuation of employee share options, key assumptions made with respect to expected volatility and dividend yield.
Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies, key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.
Recognition of deferred tax assets.
Fair value of financial instruments.

Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee, which is the functional currency of the Company. All financial information has been rounded to the
nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of Measurement
The Ind AS Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention and on accrual method of accounting, except
for certain financial assets and liabilities, including financial instruments which have been measured at fair value as described below and defined benefit plans

which have been measured on the basis of actuarial valuation as required by relevant Ind AS.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions in the application of accounting policies that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The Management believes that the
estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised prospectively. Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and assumptions that have the most
significant effect to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, are included in the following notes: 

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is
categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Applicable discount rate.

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the financial instruments to be measured at fair values.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to measurement of fair values. The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate

in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use

of unobservable inputs. The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information such as broker

quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusions

that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).



C. Critical Accounting Estimates
a.  Revenue recognition

b.  Income taxes

c.  Property, plant and equipment

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the expected
contract estimates at the reporting date.

The Company's major tax jurisdictions are in India. Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including amount
expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived
after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of
company's assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are
based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology.



D. Significant Accounting Policies
a. Property, Plant & Equipment

(i)

-
-

(ii) Depreciation

(iii)

b.

c.

its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates.
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably.

When significant parts of Property, Plant and Equipment are required to be replaced, the Company derecognises the replaced part and recognises the new part
with its own associated useful life and it is depreciated accordingly.

Depreciable amount for property, plant and equipment is the cost of property, plant and equipment less its estimated residual value. 

Recognition and Measurement
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost net of tax credit availed less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that the assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of impairment loss (if any). 

If the recoverable amount of asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of an asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investment in Subsidiaries
Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries are recorded at cost less accumulated impairment, if any, and reviewed for impairment at each reporting date.
Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On
disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method over the estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment prescribed under Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013 on pro rata basis. In cases, where the useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule II, they are based on internal technical
evaluation. 

Leasehold land is amortised equally over the period of lease. 

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Disposal or Retirement
Property, plant and equipment are derecognised either on disposal or when no economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising 
from disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and 
equipment and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year of occurrence.

Impairment of non-financial assets



d. Financial Instruments

(i) Financial Assets

I

II

-
-
-

III

IV

V

VI

VII Derecognition

-
-

VIII Impairment of financial assets

-
- Trade receivables

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to financial asset of one entity and financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets   

Financial assets at amortised cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows and the contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment, if
any. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial
recognition. 

Subsequent measurement and classification
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the financial assets are classified into three categories: 
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets as Equity Investments
All equity instruments other than investment in subsidiaries and associate are initially measured at fair value; the Company may, on initial recognition, 
irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCI or FVTPL.

The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. A fair value change on an equity instrument is recognised as other income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes excluding dividends, on an equity
instrument measured at FVOCI are recognised in OCI. Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised (i.e. removed from the
Company’s balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards

of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Financial asset at Fair Value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by

both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are 
recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial asset at Fair Value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
A financial asset which are not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all
changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The Company applies ‘Simplified Approach’ for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit exposure:
Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at amortised cost e.g. loans, deposits and bank balance

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime expected credit loss at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 



(ii) Financial Liabilities

I Classification

II

III Loans and borrowings

IV Derecognition

(iii)

e. Cash and cash equivalent

f.
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

g. Revenue recognition 

(i) Sale of software products / licenses

(ii) Sale of service – implementation (Fixed Price contracts)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and transactions costs. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
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Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past

events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent Assets
Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial statements. Contingent Assets if any, are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

The Company derives revenues mainly from software development and related services and from trading of third party licenses. 

Revenue from the sale of third party software products / licenses which do not require any significant modification is recognised upon delivery i.e. “point in
time”, which is when the absolute right to use passes to the customer and the Company does not have any material remaining service obligations.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities

Revenue from third party software implementation contracts which does not require any significant customisation, which are generally time bound fixed price
contracts, is recognised over the life of the contract using the percentage-of-completion method, with the contract milestone determining the degree of
completion. 

Revenue in excess of billings i.e. the Company’s right to consideration in exchange of products or services that the Company has transferred to a customer is
recognised as contract asset in the balance sheet;

To the extent billings are in excess of revenue recognised i.e. there is obligation on the Company to transfer products or services to a customer, the excess is
reported as unearned i.e. contract liability in the balance sheet.

When there is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. Efforts or cost
expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity.



(iii) Sale of service – consultancy (Time & Material)
Revenue from contracts priced on a time and material basis is recognised as services are rendered and as related costs are incurred.

(iv) After sale service – consultancy (Time & Material)
Revenue from maintenance contracts is recognised on a pro-rata basis over the period of the contract.

(v) Commission

(vi) Other income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

h.  Employee Benefits
(i)

(ii) Post-employment benefits:
 Defined contribution plans

Defined benefit plans

(iii) Other long-term employee benefits

i. Borrowing Cost

j. Foreign currency transactions / translations

Short term employee benefits (payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service)
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a

present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided. The Company’s contributions paid/payable to
Managerial Superannuation Fund, Employees’ State Insurance Scheme, Employees’ Pension Schemes, 1995 and other funds, are determined under the
relevant approved schemes and/or statutes, and are recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders
the related service. There are no further obligations other than the  contributions payable to the approved trusts/appropriate authorities.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.
The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. 
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of
the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in OCI. Net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) is computed
by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability (asset), to the net defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial year after taking
into account any changes as a result of contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit
plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When (or as) the Company as an agent satisfies a performance obligation, the Company recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to which it
expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or services to be provided by the other party.
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When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment

is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

However, the Rules of the Company's Provident Fund (PF) administered by an approved Trust, require that if the Board of Trustees is unable to pay interest
at the rate declared for the Employees’ Provident Fund by the Government under para 60 of the Employees’ Provident Fund Scheme, 1952, for the reason that
the return  on investment is less or for any other reason, then the deficiency shall be made good by the Company.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service
in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Other employee benefits include leave encashment/long-term compensated absences schemes.

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and is measured with reference to the effective
interest rate applicable to the respective borrowing.

Borrowing costs, allocated to qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating to construction / development of the
qualifying asset are capitalized upto the time all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready to its intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currency transactions are accounted at exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Gains or losses, resulting from the settlement (actual
realization /payment) of such transactions and from the translation of monetary current assets and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currencies into
rupees at the year-end exchange rates, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary items like fixed assets, inventories and investments in

equity shares, which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the

transaction. The Company’s forward exchange contracts are not held for trading or speculation; the discount or premium arising from the difference between

the forward rate and the spot rate at the inception of such a contract is amortized as income or expense over the period of the contract. Any profit or loss

arising from such contracts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.



k. Leases  

(i) The right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset. 
(ii)

l.

(i)

I
II

(ii)

I

II

III

(a)
(b)

 
m. Earnings Per Share

n. Dividend

o. Segment Reporting

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease at the inception of the contract. Leases of assets (other than short term leases or leases for which
the underlying asset is of low value) are recognised if the lease contract conveys the right to the Company to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. A contract conveys the right to control the used of an identified asset for a period of time, if throughout the period of
lease, the Company has both of the following:

The right to direct the use of the identified asset. 

Income Tax
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At the date of commencement of lease, the Company recognises a Right-Of-Use (“ROU”) asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements 
in which it is a lessee except for leases for a term of twelve months  or less (short term leases) and low value leases. For short term leases and low value 
leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Certain lease arrangements includes the options 
to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that 
they will be exercised.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before

the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the

commencement date discounted using the incremental borrowing rate. 

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments or if

Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured, a

corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use

asset has been reduced to zero

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) Credit Entitlement is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will
pay normal income tax during the specified period in which such credit can be carried forward for set-off. The carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement is
reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit after taxes attributable to equity shareholders for the year, with the weighted
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) which is a single
business segment in IT products and services. The CODM, being the Chief Executive Officer assesses the financial performance and position of the Company
and makes strategic decisions.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:
the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

The Company recognises a liability for any dividend declared but not distributed at the end of the reporting period, when the distribution is authorised and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company on or before the end of the reporting period. As per Corporate laws in India, a distribution is
authorized when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity.

Deferred tax asset / liabilities in respect of on temporary differences which originate and reverse during the tax holiday period are not recognised. Deferred tax
assets / liabilities in respect of temporary differences that originate during the tax holiday period but reverse after the tax holiday period are recognised.
Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed tax losses and tax depreciation are recognised only to the extent that there is virtual certainty supported by convincing
evidence of their realisation and on other items when there is reasonable certainty of realisation. The tax effect is calculated on the accumulated timing
differences at the year-end based on the tax rates and laws enacted or substantially enacted on the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:
temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss;
temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and associates to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and
taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in OCI.
Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable profit for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect
of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising from
dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:
 has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.



2. Property, Plant and Equipment
(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars
 Furniture and 

Fixtures 
Office Equipment Computer Vehicle Total

Gross Block
As at April 01, 2019 100.12                         29.12                             16.90                          -                             146.14                            
Additions 1.59                             3.01                               6.48                            0.09                            11.17                              
Disposals -                               2.37                               -                             -                             2.37                                
As at March 31, 2020 101.71                          29.76                              23.38                          0.09                            154.94                            
Accumulated Depreciation
Upto April 01, 2019 27.00                           14.22                             7.67                            -                             48.89                              
For the year 11.27                           5.10                               6.01                            0.01                            22.39                              
Disposals -                               2.37                               -                             -                             2.37                                
Upto March 31, 2020 38.27                            16.95                              13.68                          0.01                            68.91                              

Net Block as at March 31, 2020 63.44                            12.81                              9.70                            0.08                            86.03                              

 Capital Work-in-Progress as at 
March 31, 2020 

-                               -                                  -                              -                              22.04                              

Gross Block
Upto April 01, 2018 72.05                           19.61                             30.89                          -                             122.55                            
Additions 33.30                           10.21                             2.72                            -                             46.23                              
Disposals 5.23                             0.70                               16.71                          -                             22.64                              
As at March 31, 2019 100.12                          29.12                              16.90                          -                              146.14                            
Accumulated Depreciation
Upto April 01, 2018 23.05                           10.62                             18.40                          -                             52.07                              
For the year 9.05                             4.28                               6.00                            -                             19.33                              
Disposals 5.10                             0.70                               16.71                          -                             22.51                              
Upto March 31, 2019 27.00                            14.20                              7.69                            -                              48.89                              

Net Block as at March 31, 2019 73.12                            14.92                              9.21                            -                              97.25                              
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As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

3 Investments in Subsidiaries
Investment in Equity Shares (Unquoted, At Cost)

(a)
110.73                          110.73                          

(b)

49.45                             49.45                             
(c)

6.90                               6.90                               
167.08                          167.08                          

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 167.08                          167.08                          
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments -                                -                                

4 Trade Receivables
Unsecured and Considered Doubtful 182.60                          168.21                          
Less: Allowances for Doubtful Receivables (182.60)                         (168.21)                         

-                                -                                
4.1

4.2

4.3
Balance as at Beginning of the Year 168.21                          294.34                          
Add: Created during the Year 73.71                             58.06                             
Less: Amount Realised during the Year 59.32                             106.08                          
Less: Written Off during the Year 78.11                             
Balance as at end of the Year 182.60                          168.21                          

5 Loans
Unsecured and considered good - Non Current Deposits 18.71                             8.83                               

18.71                             8.83                               

6 Deferred Tax Asset and Tax Expense
(a) Movement in Deferred Tax Balances

(i) Particulars  As at March 31, 2020 
 Recognised in 
Profit or Loss 

 Recognised
in OCI Net

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) 
Property, Plant and Equipment 9.49                    (5.83)                   -                                3.66                               
Employee Benefits 103.84                10.81                  (43.75)                           70.90                             
Other Items (Provision for Trade Receivebles) 48.98                  (3.03)                   -                                45.95                             
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 162.31                1.95                    (43.75)                           120.51                          

(ii) Particulars As at March 31, 2019
 Recognised in 
Profit or Loss 

 Recognised
in OCI  Net 

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) 
Property, Plant and Equipment 10.17                  (0.68)                   -                                9.49                               
Employee Benefits 72.94                  (12.85)                 43.75                             103.84                          
Other Items (Provision for Trade Receivebles) 101.92                (52.94)                 -                                48.98                             
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 185.03                (66.47)                 43.75                             162.31                          

(b) Tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Current Tax
In respect of Current Year 311.48                          508.07                          
In respect of Prior Year 65.83                             -                                

377.31                           508.07                           
Deferred Tax
Origination and reversal of Tax on Temporary differences (1.95)                             66.47                             

(1.95)                             66.47                             
Tax Expense for the year 375.36                           574.54                           

Movement during the year

Movement during the year

1,00,000 Fully Paid Equity Shares of SGD 1 each in Godrej Infotech (Singapore) Pte Ltd. (P.Y.: 1,00,000 Fully Paid 
Equity Shares of SGD 1 each)
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(Amount in Lakhs)

 Net Balance as 
at April 01, 2019 

 Net Balance as 
at April 01, 2018 

No trade or other receivables are due from Directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivables
are due from firms or private companies, in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

The Company has used practical expedient by computing expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables by taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience and adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss is based on ageing of the days the receivables are due and the expected credit loss rate.
The Company is still pursuing the recovery of the receivables for which allowance is made for doubtful debts.

The movement in allowance for doubtful receivables is as follows:

55,350 Fully Paid Equity Shares of EURO 1 each in LVD Godrej Infotech NV (P.Y.: 55,350 Fully Paid Equity Shares 
of EURO 1 each)

10,00,000 Fully Paid Equity Shares of USD 0.01 each in Godrej Infotech Americas Inc. (P.Y.: 10,00,000 Fully Paid 
Equity Shares of USD 0.01 each)



(c) Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Particulars

 Before Tax 
 Tax (Expense) 

Benefit  Net of Tax  Before Tax  Tax (Expense) Benefit  Net of Tax 
Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Liability/ 
(Asset) (245.34)           (43.75)                (289.09)               (150.23)               43.75                             (106.48)                         
Total (245.34)           (43.75)                (289.09)               (150.23)               43.75                             (106.48)                         

(d) Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Profit Before Tax 1,384.70                       1,861.86                       
Tax rate 25.17% 29.12%
Expected Income Tax Expense 348.50                          542.17                          
Tax effect of:
Prior period tax adjustments 65.83                             -                                
Capital Gains 15.01                             -                                
Property, Plant and Equipment 5.83                               0.68                               
Employee Benefits (10.81)                           12.85                             
Income Exempt from tax (10.06)                           (22.48)                           
Non-Deductible expenses (44.73)                           (8.64)                             
Other Items (Provision for Doubtful Debts) 3.02                               52.94                             
Impact of Fair Value Adjustments 2.77                               (2.99)                             
Tax expense recognised 375.36                          574.53                          

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

7 Income Tax Assets (Net)
Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source (Net) 517.00                          99.15                             

517.00                          99.15                             

8 Other non - current assets
Prepaid Expenses - Non Current Asset 1.01                               1.20                               
Refund from Government Authorities 107.37                          107.37                          

108.38                          108.58                          

9 Inventories
Stock-in-trade -                                1.45                               

-                                1.45                               

10 Investments
Unquoted, carried at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Investments in Mutual funds
(a) 30,757.363 units of Aditya Birla Overnight fund - Regular Plan - Growth 331.63                          -                                
(b) 31,065.540 units of DSP Overnight Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 331.58                          -                                
(c) 3,08,118.462 units of ICICI Prudential Overnight Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 331.54                          -                                
(d) 31,114.862 units of Kotak Overnight Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 331.44                          -                                
(e) 3,10,219.316 units of Nippon India Overnight Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 332.09                          -                                
(f) 10,284.944 units of SBI overnight Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 331.64                          -                                
(g) 12,216.758 units of UTI overnight Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 331.38                          -                                
(h) 21,633.031 units of Reliance Liquid Fund - Daily Dividend -                                330.85                          
(i) 98,67,437.509 units of Kotak Saving Fund - Daily Dividend -                                995.01                          

2,321.30                       1,325.86                       

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments and Market Value thereof 2,321.30                       1,325.86                       
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of Investments -                                -                                

11 Trade Receivables
Unsecured, Considered Good 2,648.23                       3,227.92                       

2,648.23                       3,227.92                       

12 Cash and Cash Equivalents
a)  Balances with Banks on Current Accounts 1,473.70                       846.22                          
b)  Cash on Hand 0.05                               0.16                               

1,473.75                       846.38                          

13 Loans
Unsecured and considered good - Current Deposits 3.85                               -                                

3.85                               -                                

14 Other Current Financial Assets
Contract Asset
(a) Unbilled Revenue 169.69                          360.00                          
(b) Derivative Asset -                                4.99                               

169.69                          364.99                          

15 Other Current Assets
(a) Prepaid Expenses - Current Asset 54.00                             34.94                             
(b) Advance Payment to Suppliers & Others 78.31                             216.85                          
(c) Others 65.40                             73.03                             

197.71                          324.82                          

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(Amount in Lakhs)

 For the year ended March 31, 2020  For the year ended March 31, 2019 

(Amount in Lakhs)

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED



A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars

No. of Shares Amount (Lakhs) No. of Shares Amount (Lakhs)
Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 9,700                     9.70                     9,700                 9.70                           
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year -                         -                      -                    -                             
Balance at the end of the reporting year 9,700                     9.70                     9,700                 9.70                            

B. Other Equity
(Amount in Lakhs)

 Securities 
Premium 

 General Reserve  Retained 
Earnings 

Balance as at April 01, 2018 190.00                   -                      2,274.23            2,464.23                    
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 

Profit for the Year -                         -                      1,287.33            1,287.33                    
Remeasurement of Defined Employee Benefit Plan -                         -                      (106.48)             (106.48)                      

Balance as at March 31, 2019 190.00                   -                      3,455.08            3,645.08                    
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Profit for the Year -                         -                      1,009.34            1,009.34                    
Remeasurement of Defined Employee Benefit Plan -                         -                      (289.09)             (289.09)                      

Total 190.00                   -                      4,175.33            4,365.33                    
Equity Dividend -                         -                      (99.82)               (99.82)                        
Tax on Distributed Profits -                         -                      (17.11)               (17.11)                        

Balance as at March 31, 2020 190.00                   -                      4,058.40            4,248.40                    

The accompanying notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our Report of even date
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACOUNTANTS
Firm Registration Number 104607W/W100166

FARHAD M. BHESANIA K.A. PALIA M.M. PARPIA AJAY PIMPARKAR
PARTNER Chairman Director Chief Executive Officer
Membership Number 127355 (DIN: 00281971) (DIN: 00118333)
Place: Mumbai
Dated:  

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Particulars
Reserves & Surplus

Total Equity

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019



As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

16 Equity Share Capital
(a) Authorised:

1,000.00                  1,000.00                    

(b)  Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up :

9.70                          9.70                           
9.70                          9.70                           

(c) Reconciliation of number of Shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Year

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Equity Shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the Year 9,700                 9.70                     9,700                        9.70                           
Add: Addition during the year -                     -                       -                           -                             
Outstanding at the end of the Year 9,700                 9.70                     9,700                        9.70                           

(d) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares

(e) Shareholding Information

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. (Holding Company) 5,050                        5,050                         

(f) Details of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares in the Company are given below :

No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares % holding
Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 5,050                 52.06% 5,050                        52.06%
RKN Enterprises 930                    9.59% 930                           9.59%

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

17 Other Equity
(a) Securities Premium

As per previous Balance Sheet 190.00                      190.00                        
190.00                      190.00                        

(b) Retained Earnings
Opening Balance 3,455.08                  2,274.23                    
Profit for the year 1,009.34                  1,287.33                    
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Liability/ (Assets) (289.09)                    (106.48)                     
Dividend including Dividend Distribution Tax (116.93)                    -                             
Closing Balance 4,058.40                  3,455.08                    

4,248.40                  3,645.08                    

17.1 Nature and Purpose of Reserves
(a) Securities Premium

(b) Retained Earnings
Retained Earnings are the profit earned till date and distribution of dividend and provision for tax thereon.

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

The securities premium account has been created to record the premium on issue of equity shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2020

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2019
Name of the Shareholder

10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each (Previous year 10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 
100/- each) 

 9,700 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each, fully paid up (Previous year  9,700 Equity Shares of 
Rs. 100/- each, fully paid up)

Particulars
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

The Company has only one class of shares having par value of INR 100 per share. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per
share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend if proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity
Shares are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their
shareholding. 

Equity Shares held by

(No. of Shares)



As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

18 Non Current Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits

Provision for Unavailed Leave - Non Current 232.21                         167.55                  
232.21                         167.55                  

19 Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables
Payables for Goods & Services

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; 12.85                           -                        
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 359.53                         428.24                  

372.38                         428.24                  

19.1  For amounts due to the related parties - Refer Note No. 32.
19.2  

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

(a) Dues remaining unpaid 12.85                            -                        
Principal 11.88                            -                        
Interest 0.97                              -                        

(b) Interest paid in terms of Section 16 of MSMED Act -                                -                        
(c) Amount of payments made to supplier beyond the appointed day -                                -                        

(d) -                                -                        
(e) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid 0.97                              -                        

(f) -                                -                        
(g) Balance as at the year end 12.85                            -                        

19.3

20 Other Current Financial Liabilities
(a) Employee Benefit Payable 1,562.79                      1,443.90               
(b) Derivative Liability 9.36                             -                        
(c) Other Financial Liabilities 459.95                         344.03                  

(Other Financial liabilities include other payables and accrued expenses)
2,032.10                      1,787.93               

21 Other Current Liabilities
(a) Advance from customers 192.47                         199.70                  
(b) Income Received in Advance 426.94                         178.65                  
(c) Statutory Liabilities 296.12                         278.99                  

915.53                         657.34                  

22 Short Term Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits

Provision for Unavailed Leave - Current 43.96                           38.78                    
43.96                           38.78                    

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding years for the purpose 
of disallowance under section 23 of the Act.

There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investors Education and Protection Fund in accordance with Section 125 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 as at the year end

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
(Amount in Lakhs)

Micro enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) have been
identified by the Company on the basis of the information available with the Company and the auditors have relied on the same. Sundry
creditors include total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises amounting to Rs. 12.85 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs.
Nil). The disclosures pursuant to MSMED Act based on the books of account are as under:

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay on payments made beyond the 
appointed day during the year without adding interest specified under MSMED Act.



For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

23 Revenue from Operations
(a) Sale of Products 1,043.64                     1,388.66                 
(b) Sale of Services 11,139.21                   10,711.64               
(c) Other Operating Revenues:

(i) Commission 107.17                        104.54                    
Total Revenue from Operations 12,290.02                   12,204.84               

24 Other Income
(a) Interest on Income Tax Refund 28.81                           -                          
(b) Dividend earned on Investments in Mutual Funds 39.99                           77.19                      
(c) Gain on Sale of Investments in Mutual Funds 2.18                             -                          
(d) Net gain on fair value changes on financial instruments classified as FVTPL 58.36                           -                          
(e) Other Non Operating Income

(i) Miscellaneous Income 2.92                             65.84                      
(ii) Profit on sale of assets 1.14                             0.38                        

(iii) Gain on Foreign Currency Transactions 62.99                           -                          
(iv) Fair Value Gain on financial assets measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 1.65                             0.20                        
(v) Derivatives (Loss)/Gain on Fair value changes at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (14.35)                         10.01                      

Total Other Income 183.69                         153.62                    

25 Cost of Sales/ Service
(a) Purchase of Product & Licenses 810.43                         977.51                    
(b) Purchase of Services 271.74                         106.91                    

Total Cost of Sales/ Service 1,082.17                      1,084.42                 

26 Employee Benefits Expense
(a) Salaries and Allowances 7,628.32                      7,094.54                 
(b) Contribution to Provident and other  Funds 362.77                         317.61                    
(c) Contribution to Gratuity 108.43                         99.58                      
(d) Staff Welfare Expenses 99.74                           84.90                      

Total Employee Benefits Expense 8,199.26                      7,596.63                 

26.1 Details of Employee Benefit Plan
(a) Defined Contribution Plan:

Amount contributed by the Company to the Employees' Provident Fund
recognised as an expense and included under Employee Benefit Expense 281.59                         244.05                    
Employers' Contribution to ESIC -                              0.03                        

(b) Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity:
Contribution to Gratuity Fund

(i) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation:
Liability at the beginning of the year 942.45                         720.88                    
Interest Cost 65.59                           56.73                      
Current Service Cost 91.18                           87.88                      
Benefit Paid from the Fund (58.57)                         (77.54)                    
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic Assumptions -                              (34.61)                    
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial Assumptions 218.21                         159.98                    
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience 50.70                           29.13                      
Liability at the end of the year 1,309.56                      942.45                    

(ii) Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet:
Liability at the end of the year (1,309.56)                    (942.45)                  
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 955.79                        694.67                    
Difference (353.77)                       (247.78)                  
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet (353.77)                       (247.78)                  

(iii) Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
Current Service cost 91.18                          87.88                      
Interest cost 65.60                          56.73                      
Expected return on plan assets (48.35)                         (47.07)                    
Total Expense recognised in the  Statement of Profit and Loss 108.43                         97.54                      

(iv) Expenses recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period 268.91                        154.49                    
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (23.57)                         (4.26)                      
Change in Asset Ceiling -                              -                          
Net (Income)/Expense For the Period recognised in OCI 245.34                         150.23                    

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
(Amount in Lakhs)

Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees on death or on separation/ termination in terms of the provisions of the 
Payment of Gratuity Act or as per the Company’s policy whichever is beneficial to the employees.
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.



(v)

Particulars
Discount Rate       
Salary escalation rate                                  
Attrition Rate                                              

Mortality Rate During Employment

(vi) Sensitivity analysis

Particulars
 Increase  Decrease   Increase  Decrease  

Discount Rate (1% movement)                   (61.98)                68.83                          (38.27)                       41.95 
Salary escalation rate (1% movement)                     62.45               (57.71)                            39.60                      (36.93)
Attrition Rate (1% movement)                   (28.10)                31.09                          (11.01)                       11.95 

(vii)

Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation: From the Fund
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years from the Reporting Date
1st Following Year
2nd Following Year
3rd Following Year
4th Following Year
5th Following Year
Sum of Years 6 to 10

(c) Other Long Term Employment Benefits

(i) Provisions in Balance Sheet:
Particulars
Short term 43.96                          38.78                      
Long Term 232.21                        167.55                    
Total Provisions in Balance Sheet 276.17                        206.33                    

(ii) Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss:
Expenses 90.13                          61.64                      
Total Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 90.13                          61.64                      

The Principal assumptions used in determining the present value of defined benefit obligation for the Company's plan are given below:

 March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019 

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

5.76% 6.96%
15.00% 12.00%
18.00% 18.00%

 Indian Assured Lives Mortality 
(2006-08) 

 Indian Assured Lives Mortality                          
(2006-08) 

A quantitative sensitivity analysis on Defined Benefit Obligation for significant assumption as at March 31, 2020  is shown below:
 March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019 

Sensitivity analysis is an analysis which will give the movement in liability if the assumptions were not proved to be true on different count. This only signifies the 
change in the liability if the difference between assumed and the actual is not following the parameters of the sensitivity analysis. 

 Amount 

                                                           160.26 

The expected future cash flows in respect of gratuity as at March 31, 2020 were as follows:

The leave encashment benefit is payable to all the eligible employees of the Company at the rate of daily salary as per current accumulation of leave days.

The Privilege leave encashment liability and amount charged to Statement of Profit and Loss determined on actuarial valuation using basis projected unit credit 
method are as under:.

                                                           157.76 
                                                           152.10 
                                                           180.34 
                                                           199.16 
                                                           481.60 



(Amount in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
27 Finance Costs

Interest on Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 0.97                            -                              
Total Finance Costs 0.97                            -                              

28 Other Expenses
(a) Establishment Expenses and Other Expenses (Refer Note 27.1) 248.76                        268.25                        
(b) Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 516.64                        543.56                        
(c) Legal & Professional Expenses 400.89                        463.55                        
(d) Business Promotion Expenses -                              0.08                            
(e) Software Expenses 2.18                            0.15                            
(f) Communication Expenses 32.77                          39.14                          
(g) Auditor's Remuneration (Refer Note 27.2) 18.23                          18.98                          
(h) Provision for doubtful debts/ Provision written back 13.56                          (126.30)                       
(i) Repairs & Maintenance - Others 22.84                          37.79                          
(j) Commission Expenses 233.02                        249.83                        
(k) Bank Charges 16.35                          14.79                          
(l) Insurance 3.82                            3.52                            

(m) Director's Sitting Fees 7.75                            1.00                            
(n) Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note 27.3) 27.65                          18.94                          
(o) Rent (Refer Note 27.4) 238.11                        165.32                        
(p) Loss on Foreign Currency Transactions -                              20.33                          
(q) General Expenses 0.19                            0.63                            
(r) Bad Debts Written Off -                              78.11                          

Total Other Expenses 1,782.76                     1,797.67                     

28.1

83.47                          117.93                        

28.2 Auditor's Remuneration
(a) Audit Fees 9.50                            9.50                            
(b) Tax Audit Fees 2.00                            2.00                            
(c) Certification 4.17                            7.08                            
(d) Reimbursement of Expenses 0.11                            0.40                            
(e) Taxation Matters 2.45                            -                              

Total Auditor's Remuneration 18.23                          18.98                          

28.3 Corporate Social Responsibility

(a)

(b) Amount spent during the year on:
(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars
Amount spent in cash Total Amount

Year ending March 31, 2020
(i) Construction / Acquisition of any asset 12.84                          12.84                          

(ii) On purpose other than (i) above 14.81                          14.81                          
Year ending March 31, 2019

(i) Construction / Acquisition of any asset 13.39                          13.39                          
(ii) On purpose other than (i) above 5.55                            5.55                            

28.4 Rent

29 Earnings Per Share
(a) Profit after Taxes attributable to Equity Shareholders 1,009.35                     1,287.33                     
(b) Number of Equity Shares, Face Value of Rs. 100 each Issued and Outstanding:
   (i) At the end of the Year 9,700.00                     9,700.00                     
  (ii) Weighted Average number of Shares Outstanding during the Year 9,700.00                     9,700.00                     
(c) Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (a/b) (Rs.) 10,406                        13,271                        

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(Amount in Lakhs)

Expense relating to short-term leases amounts to Rs. 86.96 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 57.40 lakhs) and leases of low value assets amounts to 
149.23 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 101.32 lakhs). Commitment in relation to these contracts amounts to Rs. 181.49 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 
129.40 lakhs)

Establishment Expenses include the Company’s share of various expenses, incurred by the 
Holding Company, Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd., for use of common facilities, as reduced 
by the recoveries from the employees. 

The Company has spent INR 27.65 lakhs during the financial year (Previous Year March 31, 2019: INR 18.94 lakhs) as per the provisions of 
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII thereof, towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities.

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year - INR 27.57 lakhs (Previous Year March 31, 2019: INR 18.37 
lakhs)



30 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

(a) Accounting classification and fair values

(Amount in Lakhs)

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets 

Non-current
Deposits -                      -                       18.71                               18.71                 -                                   -                  -          -                    

Current
Investments (Mutual Fund) 2,321.30             -                       -                                   2,321.30            2,321.30                          -                  -          2,321.30           
Trade receivables -                      -                       2,648.23                          2,648.23            -                                   -                  -          -                    
Cash and cash equivalents -                      -                       1,473.75                          1,473.75            -                                   -                  -          -                    
Others -                      -                       173.54                             173.54               -                                   -                  -          -                    

2,321.30             -                       4,314.23                          6,635.53            2,321.30                          -                  -          2,321.30           
Financial liabilities 

Current
Trade Payables 372.38                              372.38               
Others -                      -                       2,032.10                          2,032.10            -                                   -                  -          -                    

-                      -                       2,404.48                          2,404.48            -                                   -                  -          -                    

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets 

Non-current
Deposits -                      -                       8.83                                 8.83                   -                                   -                  -          -                    

Current
Investments (Mutual Fund) 1,325.86             -                       -                                   1,325.86            1,325.86                          -                  -          1,325.86           
Trade receivables -                      -                       3,227.92                          3,227.92            -                                   -                  -          -                    
Cash and cash equivalents -                      -                       846.38                             846.38               -                                   -                  -          -                    
Others -                      -                       364.99                             364.99               -                                   -                  -          -                    

1,325.86             -                       4,448.12                          5,773.98            1,325.86                          -                  -          1,325.86           
Financial liabilities 

Current
Trade Payables                               428.24                 428.24 
Others -                      -                       1,787.93                          1,787.93            -                                   -                  -          -                    

-                      -                       2,216.17                          2,216.17            -                                   -                  -          -                    
 FVTPL - Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
 FVOCI - Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income

(b) Fair value hierarchy    

The categories used are as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets and liabilities in an active markets. 

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

(c) Measurement of Fair Value

   (i) 

  (ii) 

  (iii) 

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial
assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

As at March 31, 2020
Carrying amount Fair value

As at March 31, 2019
Carrying amount Fair value

The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note (a) above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority 
to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values are consistent in all the years. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of investments in mutual fund units is based on the net asset value (‘NAV’) as stated by the issuers of mutual funds. Net asset value represents the price at which the issuer will issue further
units in the mutual fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors. 

The Management assesses that fair values of Trade Receivables, Cash and Cash equivalents, Loans, Trade Payables, Other current liabilities and Other financial liabilities (current), approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values since the Company does not anticipate
that the carrying amount would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled.



(d) Risk Management Framework

   (i) Credit Risk

Exposure to credit risk:

Debtor's Ageing
Particulars
more than 6 months
others

  (ii) Liquidity Risk

(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years 5 years and above Total Carrying amount

As at March 31, 2020
Non interest bearing (Trade payable, deposits 
etc.)
Trade Payables 372.38                -                       -                                   372.38               372.38                             
Others 2,032.10             -                       -                                   2,032.10            2,032.10                          
As at March 31, 2019
Non interest bearing (Trade payable, deposits 
etc.)
Trade Payables 428.24                -                       -                                   428.24               428.24                             
Others 1,787.93             -                       -                                   1,787.93            1,787.93                          

  (iii) Market Risk

  (iv) 

3227.92

Credit risk is the risk of loss that counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. The Company's exposure to credit risk arises primarily from security deposit and other receivables which the
Company minimises such risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.

Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk principally consists of trade receivables, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and other financial assets.

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

The Company's business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely credit risk, liquidity risk and market risks. Market risks comprise of currency risk and interest rate risk. The Company's Senior
Management and Key Managerial Personnel have the ultimate responsibility for managing these risks. The Company has a process to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate
risk limits and to control and to monitor risks and adherence to these limits. Risk Management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and Company's activities.
Further, Audit Committee undertakes regular reviews of Risk Management Controls and Procedures.

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

The Carrying amount of financial assets represents maximum exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk was Rs. 6,802.61 lakhs and Rs. 5,941.06 lakhs as at March 2020 and March 2019
respectively, being the total of the carrying amount of balances with banks, security deposits, trade receivables and other financial assets.

Trade receivables are tested for impairment on a specific basis after considering the sanctioned credit limits, security like letters of credit, security deposit collected etc. and expectations about future cash
flows. The provision matrix at the end of the reporting period is as follows.

Currency Risk

182.59 168.21
2648.23

Liquidity and interest risk tables:
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds
to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses.

The following table detail the company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest
date on which the Company may be required to pay.
The Company monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade and other receivables together with expected cash outflows on trade and other payables.

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rate and interest rates will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. The company is not exposed to interest rate risk as there are no borrowings.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The company has foreign currency trade receivables and
is therefore exposed to foreign exchanged risk. The company mitigates the foreign exchange risk by setting appropriate exposure limits, periodic monitoring of the exposure and hedging exposure using
derivatives financial instruments like foreign exchange forward contracts. The exchanged rates have been volatile in the recent years and may continue to be volatile in the future. Hence, the operating results
and financials of the company may be impacted due to volatility of the rupee against foreign currencies.



Exposure to currency risk
The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March, 2020 and 31 March, 2019 are as below:

Currency 

Financial assets
As at March 31, 

2020 As at March 31, 2019
As at March 31, 

2020 As at March 31, 2019
Trade and other receivables USD 10.68                    11.24                                                806.40                               778.18 

EURO 4.71                      3.82                                                  391.37                               297.18 
AED 0.54                      0.21                                                    11.16                                   3.88 
GBP -                       0.01                                                          -                                     0.85 
SGD 0.32                      0.21                                                    16.79                                 10.92 

                    16.25                                 15.49              1,225.72                            1,091.01 
Less: Hedged Exposures USD                       2.33                                   7.63                 175.78                               528.16 

EURO                       0.42                                   0.98                   35.23                                 76.58 
                      2.75                                   8.61                 211.01                               604.74 
                    13.50                                   6.88              1,014.71                               486.27 

Currency 

Financial liabilities 
As at March 31, 

2020 As at March 31, 2019
As at March 31, 

2020 As at March 31, 2019
Trade and other payables USD                       3.63                                   4.61 273.74                319.09                              
(includes foreign currency AED                       0.11                                   0.28 2.29                    5.35                                  

SAR                       2.46                                      -   -                      -                                    
NZD                          -                                     0.02 49.35                  0.90                                  

                      6.20                                   4.91                 325.38                               325.34 
Less: Hedged Exposures USD                          -                                        -                           -                                         -   

                      6.20                                   4.91                 325.38                               325.34 

The following significant exchange rates have been applied during the year.

(Rupees) 31-03-2020 31-03-2019
USD 1 75.50                         69.23                                    

EUR1 83.17                         77.83                                    

GBP1 93.29                         90.43                                    

AED1 20.57                         18.83                                    

SAR1 20.05                         19.23                                    

SGD1 52.40                         51.13                                    

Sensitivity analysis

Effect in Rs. Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
USD - 3% movement                  (10.71)                     10.71                                   2.07                   (2.07)
EUR - 3% movement                  (10.68)                     10.68                                 (6.62)                     6.62 
GBP - 3% movement                         -                            -                                   (0.03)                     0.03 

(e) Capital Management
The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maintain an efficient capital structure and to maximise shareholder’s value. The company has no borrowings during the year.

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED
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Equivalent amount (Rupees in Lakhs)

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against US dollars at 31st March would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in US dollars and affected
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Equivalent amount (Rupees in Lakhs)

Profit or loss Profit or loss

Year-end spot rate

Amount in Foreign Currency (in Lakhs)



31 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

A. Financial Guarantees

B. Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debt

32  Related party disclosures as required by Ind AS - 24, "Related Party Disclosures", are given below:
A. Names of Related Parties and Nature of Relationships:

(a) Holding Company:
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. (holds 52.06% of the equity share capital of the company)

(b) Subsidiaries:
(i) Godrej Infotech (Singapore) Pte Ltd.

(ii) LVD Godrej Infotech NV.
(iii) Godrej Infotech Americas, Inc.

(c) Fellow Subsidiaries:
(i) Sheetak Inc.

(ii) Godrej (Singapore) Pte Ltd.
(iii) JT Dragon Pte. Ltd. (a wholly owned subsidiary of (ii) above)
(iv) Godrej (Vietnam) Co. Ltd. (a wholly owned subsidiary of (iii) above)
(v) Veromatic International BV

(vi) Godrej Americas Inc

(d) Post-Employment Benefit Trusts where the holding company exercises significant influence
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Employee's Gratuity Fund

 (ii) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Managerial Superannuation Fund
(iii) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Employee's Provident Fund

(e) Key Managerial Personnel Remuneration: 
(i) Mr. Ajay. R. Pimparkar (CEO).

(f) Non-Executive Directors entitled for sitting fees
(i) Dr. K. A. Palia

 (ii) Manu Parpia
(iii) K.K. Dastur

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Guarantees given by the Company’s Bankers against counter-guarantees given by the Company and guarantees given by the Holding
Company Rs. 22 lakhs (as at 31 March, 2019. Rs. 22 lakhs).

The Company was issued Internet Service Provider (ISP) license on 17th April 2001, which was further amended to ISP-Internet
Telephony licence on 11th October 2002. The intent of obtaining the license was to provide Internet services to customers – though
the primary business was to provide services related to Information Technology. The said license was with Godrej Infotech till 7th
September 2015 when it was submitted for cancellation.

During the financial year 2019-20, the Company has received demand letters from Department of Telecommunication (DoT)
amounting to Rs. 12,115.36 lakhs (including interest and penalty up to the date of respective letters) for year 2006-07 to 2013-14
(except 2007-08) by adding non-telecom revenue i.e., revenue related to Sale of ERP and its Implementation and Support charges as
“Miscellaneous income” in Adjusted Gross Revenue (AGR). The Company has contested the demands before DoT and requested for
their withdrawal, as the same are not payable in terms of ISP license agreements and accordingly not considered in accounts.

In the light of recent judgment, dated 24.10.2019 of Hon’ble Supreme Court on the dispute between DoT and Telecom Service
Operators (TSPs) regarding interpretation of AGR, DoT vide communication dated 05.12.2019 requested submission of a
comprehensive representation since all the earlier demands are being re-examined in the light of the Hon’ble Supreme Court’s
Judgement. 

In the opinion of the management and based upon legal opinion received, the said judgement dated 24.10.2019 of Hon’ble Supreme
Court is not applicable to the Company as the nature of license in case of telecom service providers is different and distinct from the
licenses given to the Company.



B. The details of transactions with related parties during the year are given below: (Amount in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(a) Common Expenses Shared (Gross)

(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 426.36                         390.12                    

(b) Purchase of Materials
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 38.50                           25.06                      

(c) Purchase of Fixed Assets
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 29.75                           48.08                      

(d) Services Taken
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 70.92                           59.85                      

(e) Sales & Services Rendered
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 5,115.74                      4,453.54                 

(ii) LVD Godrej Infotech NV 1,204.46                      1,233.10                 
(iii) Godrej Infotech (Singapore) Pte. Ltd 339.76                         403.52                    
(iv) Godrej Infotech Americas, Inc. 128.02                         152.46                    

(f) Dividend Paid
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 60.88                           -                          

(g) Key Managerial Personnel Remuneration: 
Mr. Ajay. R. Pimparkar (CEO). 113.29                         102.51                    

(h) Sitting Fees to Non-Executive Directors
(i) Dr. K. A. Palia 2.50                             0.25                        

 (ii) Manu Parpia 2.75                             0.25                        
(iii) K.K. Dastur 2.50                             0.50                        

C. The details of outstanding with related parties as at year end are given below: INR (in Lakhs)
As at As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(a) Guarantees Taken

(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 22.00                           22.00                      

(b) Trade and other Receivables
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 1,210.31                      1,683.00                 

 (ii) LVD Godrej Infotech NV 349.36                         276.43                    
(iii) Godrej Infotech (Singapore) Pte. Ltd 120.57                         128.93                    
(iv) Godrej Infotech Americas, Inc. 123.90                         157.32                    

D. Contribution to Post Employment Benefit Trusts, where the holding company exercises significant influence
(a) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Employee's Gratuity Fund

Contribution during the year 353.77                         247.78                    
(b) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Managerial Superannuation Fund

Contribution during the year 80.81                           73.38                      
(c) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Employee's Provident Fund

Contribution during the year 281.59                         244.05                    

33 Segment Reporting
Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” requires an entity to disclose information to enable users of its financial statements to evaluate the nature and
financial effects of the business activities in which it engages and the economic environments in which it operates. The Company is managed
as a single operating unit that provides IT Products and Services, mainly ERP Consultancy and Software Services & Solutions and therefore,
has only one reportable business segment. Hence, the disclosure required by this standard is presently not applicable to the Company. For the
disclosure requirement refer Note 34.

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED
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34 Revenue from contracts with customers 

Revenue from Operations
(a) Sale of Products 1,043.64                    
(b) Sale of Services 11,139.21                  
(c) Other Operating Revenues 107.17                       

12,290.02                  

A. Contracts with customers

(a) revenue recognised from contracts with customers 12,290.02                  

182.60                       

B. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

Particulars
Revenue by operation At a point in time Over time Total
Product
Licenses 236.83                     -                           236.83                       
BREP 806.81                     -                           806.81                       

1,043.64                  -                           1,043.64                    

Services
Consultancy & Implementation Services -                           9,818.82                  9,818.82                    
Cloud Services 408.06                     -                           408.06                       
AMC Services -                           912.33                     912.33                       

408.06                     10,731.15                11,139.21                  

Commission 107.17                     -                           107.17                       
-                           -                           -                             

107.17                     -                           107.17                       

Particulars
Revenue by geographical market At a point in time Over time Total

Domestic
Product 302.64                     -                           302.64                       
Services -                           6,560.43                  6,560.43                    
Commission 60.04                       -                           60.04                         
Cloud 127.46                     -                           127.46                       
Total 490.14                     6,560.43                  7,050.57                    

Export
Product 741.00                     -                           741.00                       
Services -                           4,170.71                  4,170.71                    
Commission 47.13                       -                           47.13                         
Cloud 280.61                     -                           280.61                       
Total 1,068.74                  4,170.71                  5,239.45                    

Total (A+B) 1,558.88                  10,731.14                12,290.02                  

Disclosure of amount recognised as revenue from contracts with customers and impairment loss recognised in accordance with Ind 
AS 109 is as under:

(Amount in Lakhs)

The Company has identified a single reportable segment namely "IT Product and Services" as disclosed in Note 1.(E) (o)- "Segment
Reporting" to the Financial Statements. There is a further disclosure of revenue generated by geographical market which is provided only as
per the specific requirement of Ind AS 108 for a single reportable segment. 

(Amount in Lakhs)

(b) any impairment losses recognised (in accordance with Ind AS 109) on any receivables or contract assets arising 
from an entity’s contracts with customers

(Amount in Lakhs)

Contract Type

Contract Type

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended March 31, 2020 based on the operation, 
geographical market and contract-type. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depict how the nature, amount, timing and 
uncertainty of our revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and  other economic factors.

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED
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(Amount in Lakhs)



C. Information about major customers

D. Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations

Changes in contract asset are as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year 360.00                       
Revenue recognised during the year of the opening balance 223.60                       
Revenue reversed during the year of the opening balance 136.40                       
Revenue recognised during the year 12,290.02                  
Invoices raised during the year post Deferred Revenue (12,400.67)                 
Balance at the end of the year (110.65)                      

Changes in deferred revenue are as follows :
Balance at the beginning of the year 178.65                       
Revenue recognised that was included in the unearned and deferred revenue at the beginning of the year (178.65)                      
Increase due to invoicing during the year, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the year 426.95                       

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition

35 Previous years' figures have been regrouped / restated wherever necessary to conform to current year’s classification.

The revenue for fixed-price contract is recognised using Percentage-Of-Completion Method (POCM). The Company uses judgement to
estimate the future cost to complete the contracts which is used to determine the percentage of completion of the performance obligation.

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as at the end of
the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical
expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts
where the revenue recognized corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date, typically
those contracts where invoicing is on time and material basis. Remaining performance obligation estimates are subject to change and are
affected by several factors, including adjustments for currency.

The Company’s contracts with customers includes promise to transfer products / services to the customer. The Company assesses the
products / services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct
performance obligation involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such
deliverables.

Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price is the fixed amount charged to the
customer. Any consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or
service from the customer. 

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

The Company does not have revenue from transactions with a single external customer of 10 per cent or more of an entity’s revenues for the
year ended March 31, 2020.

The Company uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for each performance obligation. The Company allocates
the transaction price to each performance obligation on the basis of standalone selling price of each product or service as mentioned in the
contract. Where standalone selling price is not available, the Company uses the expected cost plus margin approach to allocate the
transaction price to each distinct performance obligation.



 

FORM NO AOC-1 

 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014) 
 
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries / associate companies / 
joint ventures: 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries 
                                                                                                                                       (Amount in Rs.) 

 Godrej Infotech 
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 

Godrej Infotech 
Americas, Inc.  

LVD Godrej Infotech 
NV 

Date since when 
Subsidiary was acquired 

21st May, 2014 28th Feb, 2014 22nd Oct, 2014 

Reporting period for the 
subsidiary concerned if 
different from the Holding 
Company’s reporting 
period 

The reporting period of 
the Holding Company is 
the same as that of the 

Subsidiary 

The reporting period of 
the Holding Company is 
the same as that of the 

Subsidiary 

1st January to 31st 

December 

Reporting currency and 
Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the Financial 
year 

SGD 1 = INR 52.4021 USD 1 = INR 75.3565 EURO 1 = INR 83.1700 

Share capital 52,40,210 7,53,565 51,14,955 

Reserves & surplus 4,41,33,677 (3,51,463) 3,49,06,615 

Total assets 7,24,75,563 1,50,78,610 7,97,83,567 

Total Liabilities 7,24,75,563 1,50,78,610 7,97,83,567 

Investments -- -- -- 

Turnover 8,20,82,649 11,84,830 19,06,99,245 

Profit before taxation (1,87,285) 64,882 2,62,54,274 

Provision for taxation 2,55,827 21,552 79,49,139 

Profit after taxation 68,542 43,330 1,83,05,135 

Proposed Dividend -- -- -- 

% of shareholding 100% 100% 90% 

 
Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: 
 
NIL  

  



 

 

Part “B”: Associate Companies / Joint Ventures 
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Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations : 
NIL       
       
Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: 
      
NIL       
 
 

 
      

 
        

 
 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   
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3rd August 2020 

(DIN: 00281971) (DIN: 00118333)   

 
   

 


